Public Document Pack

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk

You are requested to attend a meeting of
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
on Friday, 11 January 2019, at 1.00 p.m.
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House,
Kendal
Note – A public finance training session will be provided for Members, from
10.00 a.m. to 11.30 a.m., in the District Council Chamber. All Members of the
Council are welcome to attend the session.

Committee Membership
Councillors
Robin Ashcroft
Pat Bell
Brian Cooper
Anne Hall
Hazel Hodgson
Vicky Hughes (Chairman)
Anne Hutton
Janette Jenkinson
Ian Mitchell
Doug Rathbone (Vice-Chairman)
Vivienne Rees
Mark Wilson

Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”.
Wednesday, 2 January 2019
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)
For all enquiries, please contact:Committee Administrator:
Committee Services
Telephone:
01539 733333
e-mail:
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I

1

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2

MINUTES
To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting of the Committee held on 26 October 2018.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this
Agenda.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as
any other registrable or other interests.
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4

DECLARATION OF THE PARTY WHIP
In accordance with Rule 17 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, any
Member who is subject to a party whip on any item must declare the existence
and nature of the whip.

5

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be
considered in the presence of the press and public.

6

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the
meeting. Information on how to make the application can be obtained by
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333.
(1)

Questions and Representations

To receive any questions or representations which have been received from
members of the public.
(2)

Deputations and Petitions

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from
members of the public.

5 - 14

7

NORTHERN RAIL SERVICES
To consider a business update from representative of Northern Rail (verbal
presentation).

8

WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN

15 - 26

To consider the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19,
and the contents of the latest Forward Plan.

9

DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN AND DRAFT COUNCIL POLICY ON CLIMATE
CHANGE

27 - 54

To consider the draft Council Plan 2019 to 2024 and the draft Council Policy on
Climate Change.

10

2019/20 TO 2023/24 DRAFT BUDGET

55 - 94

To consider the draft budget proposals for the financial years 2019/20 to
2022/23.

11

TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL STRATEGIES 2019/20 - 2023/24

95 - 162

To consider the Treasury Management and Capital Strategies and the
authorised borrowing limits.

12

UPDATE ON THE BUILDING FINANCIAL RESILIENCE PROJECT
To consider the progress achieved by the Building Financial Resilience
Partnership Group.

13

CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE UPDATE
To receive an update, if any, on the work of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny
Committee from the Council’s representative or substitute.

PART II
Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)
There are no items in this Part of the Agenda.

163 - 176

This page is intentionally left blank

Item No.2
16
26.10.2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in
the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Friday, 26 October
2018, at 10.30 a.m.
Present
Councillors
Vicky Hughes (Chairman)
Doug Rathbone (Vice-Chairman)
Robin Ashcroft
Pat Bell

Anne Hall
Hazel Hodgson

Anne Hutton
Janette Jenkinson

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brian Cooper, Vivienne Rees and
Mark Wilson.
Officers
Una Bell
Inge Booth
Deborah Clarke
John Davies
Jemma Fells
Sean Hall
Lee Hurst
Fiona Inston
James McEvoy
Shelagh McGregor
Simon McVey
Fraser Robertson
Shaun Senior
Helen Smith
Debbie Storr
David Sykes
Sion Thomas

Assistant Committee Services Officer
Senior Committee Services Officer
Principal Community Spaces Officer
Performance and Risk Officer
Project Support Officer
Principal Environmental Protection Officer
Chief Accountant
Public Protection Manager
Partnerships and Community Project Officer
Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Assistant Director Performance and Innovation
Senior Communications Officer
Environmental Health Officer
Financial Services Manager
Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)
Director People and Places
Corporate Asset Manager

Also in attendance were Councillors Giles Archibald (Leader and Promoting South
Lakeland Portfolio Holder), Andrew Jarvis (Finance Portfolio Holder), Dyan Jones
(Environment Portfolio Holder) and Graham Vincent (Economy and Assets Portfolio
Holder).

O&S/24

MINUTES
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes
of the meeting of the Committee held on 17 August 2018.

Page 5

17
26.10.2018

O&S/25

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
RESOLVED – That it be noted that Councillors Janette Jenkinson declared an interest in
Minute No. O&S/34 (Property and Land Management Strategy 2019-2023).

O&S/26

DECLARATION OF THE PARTY WHIP
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of the party whip were raised.

O&S/27

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda.

O&S/28

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions
have been received in respect of this meeting.

O&S/29

WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN
The Project Support Officer introduced a report including the Forward Plan published on
2 October 2018 and an up to date copy of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s
2018/19 Work Programme, which included a number of amendments made since the last
meeting. She drew attention to fact that, since updating the Programme, she had been
advised that the Strategic Review of the Council’s Health and Wellbeing Priority was likely
to be pushed back due to the draft Council Plan now coming to the Committee’s January
meeting. The Economic Growth Strategy Review was also likely to be delayed due to the
fact that there were ongoing discussions with partner authorities which would result in
informing the review.
The Vice-Chairman referred to Minute O&S/15 of the Committee’s meeting held on
17 August 2018 at which it was decided that a letter be written to Northern Rail
highlighting Members’ continuing concerns. A response had been received from the
Interim Regional Director indicating that he would attend the Committee’s January 2019
meeting. The Vice-Chairman underlined the issue of persistent train cancellations and
short trains on the Lakes Line and suggested that Members consider and prepare
pertinent questions.
In response to a query, the Senior Committee Services Officer indicated that officers were
currently making arrangements for a briefing for all Members on the Cumbria County
Council Rural Transport Policy, as requested at the last meeting of the Committee.
RESOLVED – That
(1)

the Forward Plan published on 2 October 2018 be received; and

(2)
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s current work programme, including the
amendments raised at the meeting and outlined above, be noted.

O&S/30

CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 2
The Finance Portfolio Holder presented the second quarter financial monitoring report of
2018/19.
Although there was a current underspend of approximately £250,000, Appendix 1 set out
the revenue variances to date which totalled a projected a year-end overspend of
£251,000. The Portfolio Holder provided explanations for the key movements.

Page 6

18
26.10.2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

In addition, Members were advised that an additional £45,000 was now required to fund
the costs of the ERDF Flood Alleviation Scheme application process; £25,000 to fund the
Kendal Markets Review; and £12,000 to fund the project development phase of the
Burton-in-Kendal Heritage Scheme. Therefore, approval was to be sought from Cabinet
for an £82,000 transfer from the Cumbria NDR Pool Income Reserve.
Approval was also to be sought for the transfer of £20,000 from the General Reserve to
the Community Grants budget heading further to a request at the July Council that a
£20,000 Community Projects Fund be created. A £12,000 transfer from the Statutory
Duties Reserve was to be requested to fund the costs associated with dealing with the
planning appeal for the Kirkby Moor Wind Farm planning application.
Appendix 2 set out the position on the Capital Programme. Spend against the
Programme to the end of Quarter 2 was £2.366m. A number of minor amendments were
required which would bring the total of the Current Programme to £9.795m, details of
which were provided and which would require Council approval.
Appendix 3 provided an update on Treasury Management for the quarter showing that all
activity had been within the approved limits. Investments had performed better than the
relevant benchmarks. No repayment of existing or new borrowing was anticipated up to
the end of the financial year.
The Finance Portfolio Holder closed by saying that the Council was currently in a strong
financial position and thanking the Finance Team for highlighting the relevant areas.
Discussion took place, during which the Director People and Places responded to a query
on the drop in Development Control income. He explained that planning fees were set
nationally and informed Members that there had been fewer applications for large
developments within the area this year. Major applications attracted a larger fee and this
had led to projections not being met. He informed Members, however, that preapplication fees could be set locally. There was currently a broad banding for the fee for
pre-application within South Lakeland and this was being examined by officers with a view
to changes being proposed. Attention was drawn by Members to the need for a more
thorough pre-application process in order to ease the way for development following
determination. The Director People and Places assured the Committee that there were
now a number of experienced officers in place in the Development Management Team
and that it was intended for work to be carried out to see how this could be achieved.
Reference was made to work recently carried out in partnership with Ulverston Town
Council and the Environment Agency with regard to the re-surfacing of a car park in the
town, parish money having been provided towards the work. Councillor Janette
Jenkinson felt that this type of collaboration should be encouraged and enquired whether
there were any other local councils working in partnership on such projects. The Finance
Portfolio Holder indicated that he was keen to seek external funding wherever possible.
The Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder explained that, prior to flooding issues, Buxton
Place Car Park had been listed for work. The Council was resurfacing car parks and he
was sure that Buxton Place would get priority next year. The Leader highlighted a number
of areas where partnership working and joint funding across tiers had been successful, for
example work at Millerground, Maudes Meadow and Nobles Rest, as well as signage in
Kendal, Grange and Windermere. These were all good examples of localism and
collaborative working. Councillor Jenkinson suggested that more information on this type
of work might be included within future Portfolio Holder reports.

Page 7

19
26.10.2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Details were sought with regard to the take up of small business rate relief and the
Financial Services Manager explained that whilst a variance of £60,000 was indicated,
this was a very small percentage of the £40m rates collectable for the year.
The Finance Portfolio responded to a query with regard to Treasury Management and
investment activity. He explained that the Council followed a conservative policy when
taking longer term investment decisions.
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted.

O&S/31

COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE MONITORING QUARTER 2 2018/19
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder introduced the Council Plan
Performance Monitoring report for Quarter 2 of 2018/19. The report highlighted areas of
significantly good or poor performance relating to the measures of success set out in the
current Council Plan. The report also included the latest Strategic Risk Register.
The Leader advised the Committee that all Members had a part to play in the
development of plans. He referred to paragraph 3.5 and was pleased to report that an
update to Quarter 2 monitoring showed that the figure for the development of affordable
homes to rent was back on track at 421 since 1 April 2014. In addition, he was pleased to
inform the Committee that the implementation of the Customer Connect Programme was
on target. He congratulated those involved in the work on the refurbishment of
playgrounds. Also to be congratulated were those officers and Members involved in the
area of economic performance. In addition, the Leader commended the Council’s unique
offering of grants, as well as the collaborative work on health issues such as obesity and
mental health.
The Leader, however, expressed some concerns. He referred to the Finance Portfolio’s
earlier report and the need to closely monitor the Council’s finances. He stressed
concerns in relation to poverty and in particular the additional hardship being caused by
the roll out of Universal Credit. He referred to the recent Social Metrics Commission
report on children in poverty and to the End Child Poverty website and to the fact that 15%
of children in South Lakeland were considered to be in poverty. Kings Foodbank in
Kendal was reporting record numbers of people coming through its doors. There were too
many families on the housing waiting list. The Leader stressed the need for the Council to
do what it could in this situation which was becoming a crisis. The Leader also drew
attention to the issue of climate change, to the suffering which it had caused within the
community and to the fact that the problem was likely to deteriorate.
In response to a query raised as to whether the Council planned to start building houses
itself in the light of proposed changes in the restrictions on borrowing for house building
purposes, the Leader advised that this was being looked at and that there was active
dialogue between the Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder
and officers. He also drew attention to the £6m loan facility which had been made
available by the Council in December 2017 to support proposals delivering new affordable
housing.
The Leader responded to a question about what the Council was doing to alleviate the
poverty issue. He drew attention to the Council’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme, the
Handy Person Scheme, the building of affordable housing, the LEAP Scheme and various
grants offered by the Council. He highlighted that the Council, together with other
organisations, had formed a Building Financial Resilience Taskforce to find ways to
reduce financial hardship within South Lakeland. The Taskforce had put together a
detailed matrix on areas of poverty and what was being done to address them and this
would be provided to Members together with the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting. The Leader undertook to make arrangements for a briefing session
for all Members on the issue of Poverty.

Page 8

20
26.10.2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Members discussed a number of the risks contained within the Strategic Risk Register at
Appendix 1 to the report. With regard to Risk 15 (Customer Connect Programme), the
Leader indicated that there was good quality project planning in place. Monthly Board
meetings took place at which an Action Plan was considered in order to address any
concerns. The Leader was confident that, although the risk was in the blue zone, the
Programme was on target.
The Finance Portfolio Holder referred to Risk 6 (Medium Term Financial Planning –
delivery of a balanced budget) which was also currently in the blue zone. He reported that
the Government was considering major changes to the Business Rate Retention system
from April 2020. The Government had consulted on changes to the current Local
Government funding system which could result in the Council retaining an additional
£600,000 of Business Rates for 2019/20. This would be confirmed on 6 December 2018
as part of the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement.
The Council had
submitted a bid to enter into a pilot pool with the rest of Cumbria to retain 75% business
rates for next year. This would be benefit the whole county by £5 to £6m, South
Lakeland’s share being £200,000. In the long term it was expected that the Council would
retain less business rates. The Vice-Chairman stressed the importance of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee’s continued monitoring of this key area.
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:-

O&S/32

(1)

the Summary of Performance, as detailed within the report; and

(2)

the detailed risks information contained within Appendix 1 to the report.

PORTFOLIO HOLDER REPORT - PROMOTING SOUTH LAKELAND
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder presented his annual report
on progress made and plans for the future within the portfolio area. He advised the
Committee that he continued to represent the Council on many different bodies, and
played an active role on the Cumbria Leaders’ Board. He highlighted in particular the
good, collaborative work taking place in Cumbria to house refugees, South Lakeland
having offered its share. He also referred to the work of the Local Enterprise Partnership
and the collaborative work with Barrow-in-Furness and Lancaster City Councils on
economic development initiatives.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

O&S/33

PORTFOLIO HOLDER REPORT - ENVIRONMENT
The Environment Portfolio Holder presented her annual report on progress made and
plans for the future within the portfolio area and highlighted a number of areas within her
report.
Firstly, the Portfolio Holder referred to waste management and street scene and advised
that research continued on ways and opportunities to engage with the public to increase
the potential for recycling. She drew attention to the coffee cup initiative, which examined
ways of how coffee cups could be recycled at large events. She referred to the three litter
bins installed in Kendal for the segregated collection of plastic and cans but was
disappointed to advise that this had not been so successful due to non-segregation of
materials and contamination; this would continue to be monitored. She informed the
Committee about the technology being trialled on 104 litter bins in the area, with electronic
sensors installed on the bins to measure the fill levels and usage data.

Page 9

21
26.10.2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Portfolio Holder reported on work being carried out by the Green Team and on
Climate Change roadshows which had been attended by herself and the Leader
throughout the District. These had proved successful and suggestions raised had
resulted in an Action Plan which would inform, influence and advise. The Plan would be
circulated to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee together with the minutes
of the meeting. She stressed that the Council was committed to continue to work on the
prevention of Climate Change.
The Portfolio Holder expressed pride in the Council’s commitment to enhancing its public
realm and referred, in particular, to continuing work on tree planting, which had previously
been raised by Kendal Town Council as a topic for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
to consider.
Discussion took place on the report during which the Environment Portfolio Holder
undertook to talk to the Ward Member for Burneside after the meeting with regard to an
issue relating to items being dropped by waste recycling operatives during the collection
process. In response to a query raised as to how to engage the community with recycling
and the need to educate the public, the Portfolio Holder explained that the Climate
Change roadshows had drawn mainly those who were already passionate about the
subject. She felt that it was important that the message was put across without
disenfranchising the public and she referred to the fact that the Solicitor to the Council
was currently seeking to arrange Nudge psychology training for all Members, which could
be of assistance in this area. The Director People and Places responded to a question as
to whether the Council was looking into tree planting on fell slopes as a way of reducing
flood risk. He informed Members that, although not dealing with this directly, the Council
was aware of partnership working on projects to work with landowners. Discussion
returned to waste management and the Leader suggested that this could form an
interesting review for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee moving forward and one
which could make a significant contribution. The Environment Portfolio Holder advised
that she was able to provide Members with data in relation to kerbside recycling in towns
and rural areas and asked them to provide her details as to what specific information was
required. It was suggested that parish councils might be provided with notes to include
with their newsletters encouraging residents to recycle.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

O&S/34

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018- 2023
Note – Councillor Janette Jenkinson declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item
of business by virtue of the fact that she was a Director of Coronation Hall, which
was one of the Council’s assets. She remained in the meeting during the
discussion and voting on the item.
The Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder introduced the report. The current corporate
property strategy needed updating in line with the Council Plan and the overall Customer
Connect Strategy. Lambert Smith Hampton, the Council’s current property service
provider, had completed the asset review of the Council’s building and land estate in
December 2017. The asset review was a summary of each asset setting out what options
there might be for future change and recommending a mechanism whereby future plans
and programmes of work/investment could be informed and viewed collectively across the
portfolio and help identify and avoid conflicts between budget expenditure.

Page 10

22
26.10.2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The new strategy would help guide the Council on a more holistic, inclusive approach to
the management of its property and land estate following on from the asset review. The
overall aim was to ensure that investment was prioritised in the right areas given the
increasing financial pressure on local authorities and to ensure that the Council had a
balanced estate having regard to its medium and long term commitments, to ensure that
there was an appropriate governance structure in place to allow the estate to flex with
ease and consistency and that decisions were balanced between the need for capital
receipts, investment and revenue income generation.
It was being proposed that a Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) board be set up
which would be made up of a variety of officers across finance, procurement and assets
alongside Members to give a corporate view on decisions to be taken.
Members gave detailed consideration to the draft Strategy which was attached at
Appendix 1 to the report.
Discussion took place on the role of the Board and the relationship between the Council
and Lambert Smith Hampton. Reference was made to planning training which had
recently been provided in-house and the need to ensure that there was no additional
expenditure incurred by Lambert Smith Hampton providing similar sessions. Members
also queried how the income stream was to be developed.
The Corporate Asset Manager clarified that the Board would be made up of a number of
officers from within the Finance, Assets and Procurement Groups, as well as the
Communities and Leisure Manager and three Members of the Cabinet, being the Portfolio
Holders for Economy and Assets, Finance and Housing, People and Innovation. In
addition, the Director of Lambert Smith Hampton would sit on the Board as part of the
core service provided by the Company. The Board would be responsible for, for example,
the prioritisation of asset reviews and forward planning, commercial considerations, as
well as a continuous review of assets and working with the public sector to see where
efficiencies could be made. The Board would consult closely with Ward Members and
town and parish councils as necessary. The Corporate Asset Manager also explained
that the new Strategy, which addressed the findings of the Asset Review, together with
the Council’s Capital Strategy, would assist officers in balancing the estate between
revenue income and capital expenditure and any decisions on repair, investment and
sale.
RESOLVED – That the draft Property and Land Management Strategy 2018-2023,
including the creation of a Strategic Asset management Plan Board, as detailed within the
report, be endorsed for approval by Cabinet.

O&S/35

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION STRATEGY
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder introduced the report,
stressing the importance for all to be treated equally, with fairness and respect.
The Partnerships and Community Officer reported that the draft South Lakeland District
Council Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) Strategy 2019-22 attached as Appendix 1
to the report set out how the Council was meeting the requirements of the public sector
equality duty under the Equality Act 2010. This included setting out specific equality
objectives, as well as containing useful statistics about the Council’s communities to
illustrate the different needs of people in South Lakeland.

Page 11

23
26.10.2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The draft EDI Strategy included definitions of the terms Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion.
It was being recommended to adopt this updated terminology into the title of the new
document, and for this document to supersede the current Equality Scheme 2016-19
which sat within the Council’s Policy Framework.
It was also being proposed that the draft EDI Strategy would have its performance
reviewed annually by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. This would make it a
dynamic document allowing responses to emerging needs, such as changing population
or rates of digital inclusion.
Members gave consideration to the draft Strategy which was attached at Appendix 1 to
the report. They acknowledged the need to embed equality and diversity, not only within
the organisation but throughout the community, as well as the need to seek potential ways
of passing on its message. They welcomed the new Strategy and in particular the
opportunity for its annual review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
The Partnerships and Community Officer would shortly be leaving his post at South
Lakeland District Council and the Chairman thanked him for his work and wished him well
for the future.
RESOLVED – That the draft South Lakeland District Council Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion Strategy 2019-2022, be endorsed for recommendation to Council.

O&S/36

REVIEW OF THE LOCAL DELIVERY OF THE PROPERTY LEVEL FLOOD
RESILIENCE GRANT SCHEME
The Public Protection Manager introduced the report, which informed Members that, in
December 2015, the Prime Minster had announced the roll out of the flood resilience grant
up to the value of £5,000 to all householders flooded by Storm Desmond. This had later
been opened up to businesses. With limited guidance, clarity and any resources from
central government, South Lakeland District Council had had to roll out a grant project,
which had continued to evolve and had had the potential value of £12m.
Previous schemes had been administered by South Lakeland District Council, so there
was expertise and knowledge lying with those officers who had formed the flood grant
team.
The flood grant project had operated over two years, with 1,397 applications having been
made, resulting in a total of £3.4m in flood resilience works having been carried out.
Members were being provided an opportunity to comment on the report which reflected on
the flood grant project and provided recommendations to Central Government on any
future roll outs.
In response to a query as to whether flood protection was to be built into planning
requirements, the Director People and Places explained that new development
management policies would address the need for resilience against flooding.
Members welcomed the report, acknowledged the lessons learnt and commended the
work which had been carried out to date in relation to the flood resilience grant process.
RESOLVED – That the report be received and forwarded to Cabinet with a
recommendation that it be circulated to key organisations to highlight the Council’s
learning from this process and to help influence future delivery of such grants.

Page 12

24
26.10.2018

O&S/37

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS PROGRESS REPORT
The Project Support Officer presented a report setting out the progress made by Cabinet
and officers in implementing recommendations made by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.
RESOLVED – That the progress made by Cabinet in implementing the adopted
recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be noted.

O&S/38

CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE UPDATE
The Vice-Chairman referred to the written report that had been produced by the Council’s
representative to the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Vivienne Rees, and
circulated at the start of the meeting. He informed the Committee of concerns which had
been raised with him by both Councillor Rees and Councillor Wilson who sat on the
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee as a County Councillor. They had suggested the
potential for discussion on the lack of consultation with South Lakeland District Council on
future plans and the organisational framework of the future healthcare systems, and
wished the Committee to consider inviting Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust’s Head
of Communications to a future meeting to provide the necessary information and
rationalise the decisions in the changes to the Trust.
Members acknowledged the concerns and also referred to South Lakeland’s geographical
separation and rural nature and the potential for the service needs required by the area to
be bypassed.
RESOLVED – That
(1)

the update be noted; and

(2)
the Head of Communications of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust be invited
to attend the February 2019 meeting of the Committee, as outlined above.

The meeting ended at 12.20 p.m.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

Item No.8
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Friday, 11 January 2019

Work Programme and Forward Plan
Portfolio:

Cllr Vicky Hughes – Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Report from:

Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

Report Author:

Anthea Lowe – Solicitor to the Council

Wards:

N/A

Forward Plan:

N/A

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

An effective and timely work programme will allow the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee to maximise the value it can add to the work of the Council and the
services provided for residents.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:(1)

receives the latest Forward Plan; and

(2)

notes and/or amends the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s current
work programme.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Forward Plan as published on 21 December 2019 is attached as Appendix 1. Of
the items on the Forward Plan, the following are currently scheduled to be
considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to a decision being made:-

3.2



Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24



Council Plan



Procurement Schedule 2018/19 and 2019/20



Treasury Management Framework 2019/20 to 2023/24



Cumbria Public Health Strategy

Attached as Appendix 2 is the updated Work Programme for 2018/19. Following the
previous meeting, the amendments shown below have been made:

The homelessness strategy will now be presented to the meeting on 1 February
2019;



A presentation from a representative of Morecambe Bay NHS FoundationTrust will
be received at the meeting on 1 February 2019;

Page 15



The 1 February 2019 meeting will also include a presentation from Mr Colin Cox,
Director of Public Health, Cumbria County Council on the new Public Health
Strategy;



The Strategic Review of Health and Wellbeing Priority is to be considered following
the presentations from Mr Cox and the Morecambe Bay Trust at the February
meeting;



The Economic Growth Strategy has been deferred until later in the year pending
input from external partners; and



The Customer Connect review will shortly be commenced. It is proposed that the
group will comprise 7 Members from across the District and the review will consist of
4 meetings in total.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The work programme is set by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee following
consultation with a number of parties including officers, Members and external
stakeholders. The Forward Plan is considered by the Council’s Corporate
Management Team and the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council prior to
publication.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no alternative options presented.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

The topics on the work programme link closely to the various aims and priorities set
out within the Council Plan 2014 – 2019.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Whilst there are no direct financial implications arising from this report, there is a
need to resource Overview and Scrutiny Committee and any associated Task and
Finish Groups/Workshops. The costs of such resources are drawn from existing
budgets.

Human Resources
7.2

There is a need to ensure that there are sufficient resources to enable the work
programme to be supported. The work associated with Task & Finish Groups does
require significant officer contribution.

Legal
7.3

There is a legal requirement for local authorities to operate an overview and scrutiny
committee. The committee needs to be effective in its role. By preparing a planned
work programme, the Committee can ensure that it has adequate time to properly
consider those key areas where it can add greatest value. In turn, this will enable the
Council to demonstrate that it has effective scrutiny arrangements in place.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No, there are no implications arising from this report. Consideration
will be given to any potential implications during reviews.

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:

Page 16

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: There are no
implications arising from this report. Consideration will be given to any potential
implications during reviews.

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No, there are no implications
arising from this report. Consideration will be given to any potential implications
during reviews.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

That Overview and Scrutiny
Committee does not monitor its
work programme.

Opportunities to add value
through additional work
are missed.

Regular review of both the
work programme and the
upcoming work of the
Cabinet through review of
the Forward Plan.

The work programme is
not fit for purpose.
Contact Officers
Anthea Lowe, Solicitor to the Council, 01539 793305, anthea.lowe@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
(delete if no appendices attached)
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Forward Plan published 21 December 2018

2

Current O&S work programme

Background Documents Available
None.
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
Report author
28 December 2018
28 December 2018
N/A

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairperson
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
28 December 2018
N/A
N/A
11 January 2018
N/A
N/A

Page 17

Page 18

Appendix 1
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS, PRIVATE EXECUTIVE MEETINGS AND
BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS
AS PUBLISHED ON 21 DECEMBER 2018
The Council is required to give 28 days’ notice when Key Decisions are to be made, and
when an executive meeting is to be held in private. The Notice has been drafted to comply
with that requirement. It is available for inspection on the Council’s website as well as at
South Lakeland House, Kendal and sets out the following:(1)

the matters which the Executive (also known as the Cabinet) believes fall within the
definition of a Key Decision (see definition below) to be taken by the Executive or a
Senior Officer of the Council;

(2)

details of any private meeting (see definition below) of the Executive; and

(3)

proposals for the recommendation to Council of any plan, strategy or budget that
forms part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework, and its timetable and
arrangements for consultation. The policies which make up the Budget and Policy
Framework can be found in Article 4, Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution, viewable on
the Council’s website www.southlakeland.gov.uk
(Budget and Policy Framework Decisions are not Key Decisions (i.e. they are not
Executive decisions but are decided by the Full Council; although the Executive may
make recommendations to Council about them). In the spirit of openness and
transparency the Council has decided to publicise the decision making process for
such matters in the same manner as for Key Decisions.)

Documentation
Reports, as well as any background information, will be available for public inspection five
working days before the date of the meeting at which the decision is going to made.
However, some of the reports may contain confidential information and, in that case, will not
be available to the public.
When the Executive is going to consider a confidential report, at least 28 days’ notice will be
given of the intention to hold the meeting in private. A Notice to this effect will be published
on the Council’s website.
Background Information
If you wish to inspect background information, which will inform the decision-making process,
contact the Lead Officer identified in the Notice as dealing with that matter. When the agenda
for the meeting is published on the Council’s website, normally at least 5 working days before
the meeting, these documents will also be made available via the website. However, you will
not be allowed to access any papers which contain exempt or confidential information.
Representations (views you wish to make)
If you wish to make a representation, either about one of the Key Decisions listed (where the
meeting is to be held in private), or that an Executive meeting should be open to the public,
you must write to the Lead Officer identified as dealing with that decision with your reasons
why the meeting should not be held in private. This must be received at least five clear
working days before the date of the meeting.

Page
1 19

Decision Notice
A Decision Notice for each Key Decision, or other Executive decision, will be produced as
soon as practicable after the decision has been taken. These Decision Notices will be
available for inspection at South Lakeland House, Kendal and on the Council’s website.
Urgent Decisions
The Law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent decisions to be made provided
certain criteria are met and relevant Notices published accordingly. None of the decisions
detailed in this Notice are deemed to be Urgent Decisions - unless expressly stated.
Key Decision
This definition was adopted by Council on Thursday, 17 December 2015 and is as follows :“An executive decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on
communities in two or more Wards of the Council and/or is likely to result in the Authority
incurring expenditure or making savings above £100,000.”
Private Meetings
In regard to this Notice, private meetings are meetings of the Executive, or part of a meeting,
during which the public are excluded as a result of confidential or exempt information being
discussed. A reason will be given why it is felt that there is a need for the public to be
excluded. If you wish to make a representation regarding the intention to hold the meeting in
private, you must follow the procedure shown above under “Representations”.
The District Council’s Executive Members are:Cllr Giles Archibald – Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
Cllr Jonathan Brook – Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder
Cllr Chris Hogg – Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder
Cllr Graham Vincent – Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder
Cllr Dyan Jones – Environment Portfolio Holder
Cllr Andrew Jarvis – Finance Portfolio Holder
Cllr Philip Dixon –Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder
The District Council’s Chief Officers are:Lawrence Conway – Chief Executive
Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)
David Sykes – Director People and Places
Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director (Resources) and Chief Finance Officer
The District Council’s Assistant Directors are:Ian Hassall –Assistant Director Strategic Development
Simon McVey – Assistant Director Performance and Innovation
Simon Rowley – Assistant Director of Neighbourhood Services

Page2 20

Key Decision - Coastal Communities Funding: Accountable Body Status *NEW*
South Lakeland District Council, along with Morecambe Bay Partnership and the
Morecambe Bay Coastal Communities Team, have been invited to submit a stage 2
proposal to the Coastal Communities Fund (Round 5). The bid is for £2.35m, and includes
SLDC as acting as accountable body for the funding, should we be successful.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Cabinet (23 Jan 2019)
Date notice first published: 21 December 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 18 January 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Draft Partnership Agreement
Lead Officer: Ruth Leahy, Project Officer, Economic Development
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Strategic Development
Portfolio Holder: Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder (Cllr Jonathan Brook)
Key Decision - Waste and Recycling Collection Policy *NEW*
Consideration and approval of a Waste and Recycling Collection Policy
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Cabinet (23 Jan 2019)
Date notice first published: 21 December 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 18 January 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Policy will be appended to report.
Lead Officer: Paul Florentine, Principal Street Scene Officer
paul.florentine@southlakeland.gov.uk
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services
Portfolio Holder: Environment Portfolio Holder (Cllr Dyan Jones)

Page
3 21

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Development Management Policies
and Arnside & Silverdale AONB Development Plans Documents
To request Council to adopt, as part of the Development Plan for South Lakeland, the
Development Management Policies and Arnside & Silverdale AONB Development Plans
Documents, on receipt of the Inspector's reports on the conclusion of the independent
examination of both documents (expected in October or November 2018).
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (26 Feb 2019)
Date notice first published: 10 August 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 7 September 2018)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Final versions of the Development Management Policies and Arnside & Silverdale AONB
Development Plans Documents (DPDs) .
The Inspector's reports following the independent examination of both DPDs.
Lead Officer: Alastair McNeill, Development Plans Manager a.mcneill@southlakeland.gov.uk
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Strategic Development
Portfolio Holder: Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder (Cllr Jonathan Brook)
Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Budget 2019/20 to 2023/24 (including
capital programme and fees and charges)
To set the 2019/20 - 2023/24 capital and revenue budgets, the level of Council tax increase
to apply from 1 April 2019. To also consider the level of reserves, fees and charges.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (26 Feb 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Lake Administration Committee (5 Oct 2018)
Cabinet (31 Oct 2018)
Licensing Committee (5 Nov 2018)
Cabinet (28 Nov 2018)
Cabinet (12 Dec 2018) (if needed)
Council (19 Dec 2018)
Planning Committee (3 Jan 2019)
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (11 Jan 2019)
Licensing Committee (15 Jan 2019)
Cabinet (23 Jan 2019) (if needed)
Lake Administration Committee (25 Jan 2019)
Cabinet (6 Feb 2019)
Date notice first published: 2 October 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 30 October 2018)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 - 2023/24
Lead Officer: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Portfolio Holder: Finance Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)

Page4 22

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Council Plan 2019-2024
The Council Plan 2014-19 is complete. The 2019-2024 sets out the Council's ambition and
priorities over the five year period to 2024 and details key projects that will contribute to
achieving those priorities.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (26 Feb 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (11 Jan 2019)
Cabinet (23 Jan 2019)
Date notice first published: 2 October 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 30 October 2018)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
C/61 2014-2019 Council Plan (2018 Update) http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=4276&Ver=4
C/78 2014-2019 Council Plan (2017 Update) http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=4058&Ver=4
C/79 2014-2019 Council Plan (2016 Update) http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3771&Ver=4
C/82 2014-2019 Council Plan (2015 Update) http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3566&Ver=4
C/78 - Council Plan 2014-2019 http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3460&Ver=4
Lead Officer: Paul Mountford, Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer
p.mountford@southlakeland.gov.uk
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Performance and Innovation
Portfolio Holder: Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder (Cllr Giles Archibald)
Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Procurement Schedule 2018/19 and
2019/20
To set out the Council's plans for procurement exercises during 2019/20 and to update the
plans for 2018/19 including the decision route for each procurement.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (26 Feb 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (11 Jan 2019)
Cabinet (6 Feb 2019)
Date notice first published: 2 October 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 30 October 2018)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Budget report 2019/20 to 2023/24 to be reported to same Committees
Lead Officer: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Portfolio Holder: Finance Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)

Page
5 23

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Treasury Management Framework
2019/20 to 2023/24
To set the 2019/20 Prudential Indicators, Treasury Management Strategy, Treasury
Management Policy and MRP statement which controls the Council's capital financing,
borrowing and investment activities.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (26 Feb 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (11 Jan 2019)
Cabinet (6 Feb 2019)
Date notice first published: 2 October 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 30 October 2018)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 - 2023/24
Budget report 2019/20 to 2023/24 to be reported to same Committees
Lead Officer: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Portfolio Holder: Finance Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)
Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Cumbria Public Health Strategy
*NEW*
To consider adoption of the Cumbria Public Health Strategy in place of the existing Public
Health Strategy in the Policy Framework.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (28 Mar 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (11 Jan 2019)
Cabinet (6 Feb 2019)
Date notice first published: 21 December 2018
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 18 January 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Cumbria Public Health Strategy
Lead Officer: Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk,
Fiona Inston, Public Protection Manager Fiona.Inston@southlakeland.gov.uk
Assistant Director: Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services
Portfolio Holder: Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder (Cllr Philip Dixon)
FIELD_ISSUE_SUMMARY
FIELD_CONSULTEESD

Page6 24

Appendix 2
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
(Changes made since the last meeting are highlighted in red)
Committee Meetings
Date

Expected agenda items
2018

Fri, 13 Jul
10.30am
9.30am Scrutiny
Training

Fri, 17 Aug
2pm

Update from Northern Rail;
Draft Treasury Management Annual Report;
Draft Medium Term Financial Plan;
Revenue and Capital Out-turn;
Procurement Annual Report;
Appointment of representative to the North West Regional Scrutiny Members’ Network;
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q1;
Portfolio Holder Report – Housing, Innovation and People (Deputy Leader);
Contaminated Land Cost Recovery and Hardship Policy;

10am Scrutiny
and Risk
Training

Fri, 26 Oct
10.30am

Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q2;
Portfolio Holder Report – Promoting South Lakeland (Leader) and Environment;
Financial Monitoring Q2;
Flood Grant Report;
Equality Scheme;
Corporate Property and Land Management Strategy (previously referred to as Corporate Asset
Strategy);
Scrutiny Progress Report;
2019

Fri, 11 Jan
1pm

Fri, 1 Feb
10.30am

Fri, 26 Apr
2pm

Draft Council Plan;
Draft Budget;
Draft Treasury Management Framework;
Update on Tackling Poverty Together;
Further Update from Northern Rail;
Financial Monitoring Q3;
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q3;
Portfolio Holder Report – Economy and Assets and Finance;
Green Team Update;
Procurement Schedule 2018/19 and 2019/20;
Presentation from Colin Cox and Cumbria Public Health Strategy;
Presentation from Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust;
Homelessness Strategy 2019 – 2024 (tbc)
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q4;
Portfolio Holder Reports – Culture and Leisure and Health and Wellbeing;
Draft Scrutiny Annual Report;
Work Programme 2019/20 Setting;
Effectiveness Review and Scrutiny Progress Report;
Community Safety Partnership Year-End Update;

Scrutiny Reviews
Date

Format

Information

7 Nov 2018

Task and Finish

Strategic Review of the Council’s Health and Wellbeing
Priority – to be considered following presentation to
Overview & Scrutiny Committee Meeting on 1
February 2019

Early 2019

Task and Finish

Economic Growth Strategy – currently on hold due to

Page 25

Page 1 of 2

Appendix 2

January 2019

Task and Finish/Workshop

ongoing discussions with other authorities in the
Lancaster and South Cumbria Economic Region
initiative.
Development of locality working through Customer
Connect – group to be constituted shortly

Page 26

Page 2 of 2

Item No.9
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Friday, 11 January 2019

Draft Council Plan and Draft Council Policy on
Climate Change
Portfolio:

Councillor Jonathan Brook - Deputy Leader of the Council

Report from:

Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

Report Author:

Paul Mountford - Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer
Laura Chapman - Corporate Support Officer
Dan Hudson - Development Strategy and Housing Manager

Wards:

Not Applicable

Forward Plan:

Forward Plan as published on 2 October 2018

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

The Council Plan sets out a vision, underpinned by three priorities that will guide
how we work together with partners to make South Lakeland the best place to
live, work and explore.

1.2

The corporate Council Policy on Climate Change sets out the Council’s commitment
to progressively address the causes and the impacts of climate change, according to
our local priorities, securing maximum benefit for our communities and is adopted to
form part of the Council’s Policy Framework.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:
(1)

consider the draft Council Plan and provide any comments for Cabinet
to consider prior to its recommendation to Council, and

(2)

consider the draft Council Policy on Climate Change and provide any
comments for Cabinet to consider prior to its recommendation to form
part of the Council’s Policy Framework.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Council Plan sets out the council’s vision and priorities. It is part of a suite of
corporate documents and links closely with the Medium Term Financial Plan. These
documents form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and underpin the council’s
approach to governance and community leadership.

3.2

The current Council Plan was for the period 2014 to 2019, updated annually. This
new Plan is intended to run from 2019 to 2024. In developing the plan the vision has
been revised to add the words “working together” to reflect that we cannot achieve
our ambition alone, and that we work with partners to deliver on our vision and
ambitions.

Page 27

3.3

The vision, as stated in the revised Council Plan is “Working together to make South
Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore.” To achieve the vision the
Council’s areas of focus are:






3.4

3.5

As with the previous versions, the Council Plan retains the values:


Empowering People
By listening to our customers and our employees their ideas and comments
will help us make improvements to customer service and workforce
development.



Excellence
Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that our actions
address the needs of South Lakeland.



Open and Transparent
Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public.

The Council Plan sets out the challenges and opportunities that the district faces in
the short, medium and long term. These are described in detail in Appendix 3. In
brief the challenges and opportunities are:








3.6

Creating an environment for people to thrive
Delivering excellent value-for-money, services
Playing a leading role and influencing others
Empowering customers and communities
Forward thinking, innovative Council

South Lakeland’s demography
Financial resilience
Affordable housing
Sustainability
Rise in obesity levels and inactivity
Access to better training and development, and
Education and skills.

In order to meet the challenges and maximise opportunities the Council Plan sets out
the delivery of the vision by:





Working across boundaries to deliver to communities that,
Creates the right balance across different age groups that,
Reduces inequalities so that no one is left behind that,
Creates a sustainable and inclusive economy.

3.7

In addition to the Council Plan, an Executive Summary (as detailed in Appendix 4)
has been developed. This document states the high level priorities across the crosscutting themes to deliver the overall strategic aims of the Council.

3.8

Developing a sustainable and inclusive economy is a key element of the new Council
Plan. This reflects growing awareness of the importance of Climate Change and the
Council’s role in tackling it.

3.9

The policy (as detailed in Appendix 5) represents a public recognition of the
importance of Climate Change, an awareness of the opportunities offered by both
tackling and adapting to meet the challenge of climate change and a series of ways
in which the Council could reflect the importance of climate change both in how it
manages itself and how it works with partners at the local, regional and national level.

Page 28

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The Council Plan has been developed following meetings held with Cabinet
Members and Officers. Following the consultation with Overview and Scrutiny
Committee the plan will be considered by Cabinet on 6 February 2019 and Full
Council on 26 February 2019.

4.2

In development of the Council Plan the Council’s existing priorities and activities have
been reviewed. An assessment of the challenges facing the South Lakeland and the
views of residents, councillors, staff and other interested parties have been taken into
account.

4.3

As part of the work of the Green Team, a corporate Council Policy on Climate
Change has been drafted which will sit alongside the Council Plan as part of the
Council’s overall Policy Framework.

4.4

The Council Policy on Climate Change has been developed following meetings held
with Cabinet Members and Officers. Following the consultation with Overview and
Scrutiny Committee the policy will be considered by Cabinet on 6 February 2019 and
Full Council on 26 February 2019.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The alternative option is not to approve the Council Plan. This is not recommended
as the strategy sets the visions, values and delivery as the key strategy of the
Council. Not recommending the approval of the plan would reduce the likelihood of
the council’s ambitions being delivered.

5.2

The alternative option is not to approve the draft Council policy on Climate Change
as part of the Council’s Policy Framework. This is not recommended as the policy
sets out a number of commitments as well as acknowledging that climate change is
occurring, and seeks to maximise the social, economic and environmental benefits
which come from combating, and developing resilience to, climate change and
developing a sustainable economy.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

The Council Plan is the key strategic document for the organisation. It sets out the
council priorities and is linked to all key strategies, including the Medium Term
Financial Plan, Workforce Plan and Performance and Service Plans.

6.2

The draft Council policy on Climate Change, once approved, will form part of the
Council’s Policy Framework.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The budget process has been running alongside the development of the Council Plan
and while the Council Plan represents the key strategic vision taken by the council,
the Medium Term Financial Plan details the council’s financial position.

7.2

The Council Plan and Council Policy on Climate Change are linked and the
resources identified in the Medium Term Financial Plan will be allocated to service
areas and capital projects to enable the council priorities to be delivered.

Human Resources
7.3

The Customer Connect Programme sets out the skills, knowledge and support that is
needed to deliver the ambitions and priorities set out in the Council Plan and the draft
Council policy on Climate Change.

Page 29

Legal
7.4

There are no legal implications to raise at this stage.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.5

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? Yes (attached at Appendix 1).

7.6

Assessments will be carried out of the health, social, economic and environmental
impact of individual projects linked to the Council Plan and Council Policy on Climate
Change.

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 2).

7.8

Assessments will be carried out of the impact of individual projects linked to the
Council Plan and the Council Policy on Climate Change in respect of equality,
diversity and inclusion.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

The Council Plan and Climate
Change Policy are not adopted
by the council

Compromise the delivery
of the priorities, service
planning and performance
monitoring.

Ensure significant
engagement and
consultation has been
achieved

The Council does not have
an up to date basis for
prioritisation and
performance management
Actions by partner
organisations, necessary to
deliver the Council Plan and
Council Policy on Climate
Change are not forthcoming

Delivery will not match
expectation

Close engagement and
joint working with critical
delivery partners

There are insufficient resources
to enable delivery of the Council
Plan and the Council Policy on
Climate Change

Priorities and objectives
are not met

Ensure appropriate
resources are available
and account had of the
Council’s Medium Term
Financial Plan

Contact Officers
Paul Mountford, Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer, 01539 793271,
p.mountford@southlakeland.gov.uk
Laura Chapman, Corporate Support Officer, 01539 793440,
l.chapman@southlakeland.gov.uk
Dan Hudson, Development Strategy and Housing Manager, 01539 793378,
d.hudson@southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 30

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Council Plan and Council Policy on Climate Change - Health, Social,
Economic and Environmental Impact Assessment

2

Council Plan and Council Policy on Climate Change - Equality Impact
Assessment

3

Council Plan

4

Council Plan - Executive Summary

5

Draft Council Policy on Climate Change

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

C/61 2014-2019 Council Plan
(2017 Update)

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=4276&Ver=4

C/79 2014-2019 Council Plan
(2017 Update)

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=4058&Ver=4

C/79 2014-2019 Council Plan
(2016 Update)

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=3771&Ver=4

C/82 2014-2019 Council Plan
(2015 Update)

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=3566&Ver=4

C/78 - Council Plan 2014-2019

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=3460&Ver=4

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
13 December 2018
13 December 2018
13 December 2018
20 December 2018

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
13 December 2018
13 December 2018
13 December 2018
20 December 2018
24 December 2018
20 December 2018
N/A
11 January 2019
6 February 2019
26 February 2019

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32

Appendix 1

South Lakeland District Council
Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma

Aims of the Health, Social, Economic &
Environmental Impact Assessment

How do I complete the Impact Assessment?

The aims of conducting the Impact Assessment are:

You will need to consider your proposal against four
different categories, these include:

•

To improve population health

•

Environmental conditions

•

To reduce health inequalities

•

Social and economic factors

•

To maximise any health benefits

•

•

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve
their own health and wellbeing

To minimise any health risks

•

•

To inform decision making of any health impacts
and to ensure that they are given consideration

Access to services, spaces or social
opportunities that improve health and wellbeing

When should an Impact Assessment be
completed?
The Impact Assessment should be carried out at the
beginning of a new project or programme, when
conducting a service review and when developing a
new policy. This enables consideration to be given
to any potential health impacts at the very beginning
of the process.

When undertaking this piece of work it is likely that
you will need to carry out some desk based
research as a minimum to help you assess the
impacts. There are some examples overleaf which
demonstrate how different proposals can impact
health and wellbeing.

It is recommended that officers complete the Impact
Assessment form even if initially they do not
anticipate any health impacts to ensure that the
proposal has been thoroughly considered.

For further information please contact:
Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer: r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 33

Appendix 1

Examples of how proposals can affect health
Will the policy have an impact
on environmental conditions
that would affect health?

A policy on active travel would positively affect health through reducing
motorised forms of transport and increasing more sustainable forms of
transport.
Building a new housing development without footpaths would discourage
people from walking to local shops and services.

Will the policy have an impact
on social and economic
factors that would affect
health?

Increasing access to advice on benefits in a deprived area could reduce
poverty, and increase access to goods, services and activities.

Will the proposal affect an
individual’s ability to improve
their own health and
wellbeing?

Upgrading the equipment in a playground would encourage usage and
active lifestyles for children.

Will the proposal have an
impact on access to
information or access to
services, spaces or social
opportunities that can impact
on health?

A proposal to build a take-away food outlet in an area where there are no
healthy food stores and numerous existing take-away venues would
increase access to unhealthy food types. This will have a further negative
impact on diet, obesity and physical health in South Lakeland.

Assisting businesses who wish to expand who offer good employment
will improve the health of the local population.

Installing benches on walking routes will encourage older adults to take
walks.

Assistance
For assistance in completing the Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Assessment Proforma
please contact Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer: r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 34

Appendix 1

South Lakeland District Council
Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma
Please complete this form and attach it to your report.
Project, policy or programme: COUNCIL PLAN AND COUNCIL POLICY ON CLIMATE CHANGE
Health
Impacts

Potential Impacts
Positive No impact Negative Not sure Comments

Recommendations

Please tick the appropriate box

Environmental Conditions

Air quality
Water quality
and pollution



Creating the environment
for people to thrive
Creating the environment
for people to thrive

Built
environment



Creating the environment
for people to thrive

Housing & Communities

Natural
environment
and biodiversity



Creating the environment
for people to thrive

Health & Environment

Energy
consumption/
efficiency



Playing a leading role and
influencing others

Health & Environment

Noise



Health & Environment

Transport



Recycling



Food
production



Creating the environment
for people to thrive
Playing a leading role and
influencing others
Delivering excellent valuefor-money services
Delivering excellent valuefor-money services

Playing a leading role and
influencing others
Creating the environment
for people to thrive
Creating the environment
for people to thrive

Economy & Culture

Social and Economic Factors

Employment

Health & Environment
Health & Environment

Health & Environment
Health & Environment
Health & Environment

Income



Poverty



Education,
skills and
training



Playing a leading role and
influencing others

Housing



Crime



Work
environment



Creating the environment
Housing & Communities
for people to thrive
Playing a leading role and
Housing & Communities
influencing others
Forward thinking innovative
Housing & Communities
council

Economy & Culture
Economy & Culture

Economy & Culture

(continued overleaf)

Page 35

Appendix 1

Project, policy or programme: COUNCIL PLAN AND COUNCIL POLICY ON CLIMATE CHANGE
Health
Impacts

Potential Impacts
Positive No impact Negative Not sure Comments

Recommendations

Please tick the appropriate box

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve their own health and wellbeing


Nutrition and
diet

Playing a leading role and
influencing others

Health & Environment

Health & Environment

Physical
activity



Playing a leading role and
influencing others

Alcohol



Housing & Communities

Drugs



Risk taking
behaviour



Playing a leading role and
influencing others
Playing a leading role and
influencing others
Playing a leading role and
influencing others

Smoking



Health & Environment

Loneliness and
isolation



Playing a leading role and
influencing others
Playing a leading role and
influencing others

Housing & Communities
Health & Environment

Housing & Communities

Access to services, spaces or social opportunities that impact health
Communication
methods



Forward thinking innovative
Housing & Communities
council

Active travel



Access to
leisure



Playing a leading role and
influencing others
Delivering excellent valuefor-money services

Access to
culture



Playing a leading role and
influencing others

Economy & Culture

Access to
green spaces



Delivering excellent valuefor-money services

Housing & Communities

Health & Environment
Housing & Communities

February 2016

Page 36

Appendix 2

EIA Title:

1.0

COUNCIL PLAN AND COUNCIL POLICY ON CLIMATE CHANGE

The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected
characteristics:
Age, disability, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the
elimination of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0).
1.1

2.0

SLDC includes “rurality” as an additional category in its equality impact
assessments.

The General Equality Duty.
SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act.
b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.
c. Foster good relations between people who share
a protected characteristic and those who
do not.

Page 37

1

Step 1
Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA.
The Council Plan aims to deliver the vision, “Working together to make South Lakeland the best place to
live, work and explore” through the three priorities:
- Economy & Culture
- Housing & Community
- Health and Environment
The purpose of this EIA is to ensure that our strategic Council Plan does not prompt any disproportionate
negative impact on people with any of the protected characteristics.
The expected outcome of this EIA is the identification of any potential issues and a commitment to
undertake the recommended mitigating actions to ensure our services are adequately accessible to the
whole community.
This EIA will be monitored and published onto our website for public accessibility.

Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken (include
surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.)
The below data is the most up-to-date available at District level. Data is not available to breakdown
population statistics for all Protected Characteristics.
Population - In mid-2017 South Lakeland’s resident population was estimated to be 104,321. In 2016 18
million visitors came to South Lakeland, of which 85% were day trippers and 15% were staying visitors
Over the last ten years the population of the district has increased by 355 residents1.
Age
In mid-2017 it was estimated that 13.8% of the population of South Lakeland are aged 0-14 years of age,
58.5% are 15-64 years of age, and 27.7% are aged over 651.
Children and young people
It is projected that numbers of 0-14 year olds in South Lakeland will decrease from 2017 onwards to
20411. Between 2017 and 2041, the number of young people aged 0-14 is forecast to fall by 12.0%
Working age
In South Lakeland the number of 15-64 year olds are projected to decrease by 8,400 (-14%) to 2041
South Lakeland has the lowest proportion of young and working age people in the county and both are in
decline. Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage decrease occurred in the 30-44 age groups (-23.9%)
Older people
In South Lakeland numbers of residents aged 65+ are projected to increase by 8,300 persons (+28.4%) to
2041.
Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage increase occurred in the 90+ age group (+140%)
Disability
18.8% of the population have a long-term health problem or disability, while 4.6% describe their general
health as bad or very bad3.
Race
95.6% of South Lakeland residents are White British, 2.8% are White Other, 0.6% are mixed race, 0.8%
are Asian, 0.2% are Black, and 0.1% are from other ethnic groups4.
Of Cumbria’s six districts, South Lakeland has the second highest proportion of residents from BAME
groups (4.4%).
Religion and Belief
68% of residents are Christian, 23% have no religion. 0.4% are Buddhist, 0.2% are Muslim, 0.1% are
Hindu, 0.1% are Jewish and 0.4% are members of other religions.
Gender
49% of residents are male, 51% are female1.
There is a gender pay imbalance in South Lakeland, the median gross weekly earnings of a male in full
time employment is £579, whereas for a female in full time employment the figure is £4792.
SLDC Employee and Member information
As of 1 April 2017, SLDC employs 422 staff and has 51 councillors.

Page 38

2

Step 2
Equality Action Plan
Mitigating actions (to avoid negative impact):

Lead Officer

Complete
Y/N

In providing this service are there any
negative impacts on the following people?
1. Age (young and old)
2. Black and Minority Ethnic
3. Disabled
4. Faith/Belief
5. Sexual Orientation
6. Gender
7. Gender reassignment
8. Pregnancy and maternity
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership
10. People in rural areas
(See glossary below for definitions)

The Council Plan and how we produce it

Page 39

Consultation
The draft Council Plan was
developed primarily by South
Lakeland District Council’s Cabinet
Members and senior officers.

The draft Council Plan is available for public viewing on the committee section of the
website

Assistant
Directors

Any issues arising from the website consultation will be collated and reported to Overview
and Scrutiny, Cabinet and Full Council.

AWAZ have also been consulted.
Format and navigation of the
document

An accessible version of the Council Plan will be made available via the website and also
our newspaper ‘South Lakeland News’.

Communications

Alternative formats will also be offered with a contact number.
Design of 2019 Council Plan in line with corporate style guidelines. There will also be a
one page summary.
The new Council Plan will have an accessible text version available to view.
The Council Plan will be in Plain English. Website allows people to easily navigate the
document

3

Priority areas to be impact assessed once more detail is available
Economy & Culture
-

-

Page 40

-

Housing and employment sites – accessibility to
be considered.
‘Encourage provision of skills training to meet
the future needs of the economy.’ Need to
consider the provision of training for protected
groups. E.g. access to English language
training, training needs of disabled people to
help access employment.
Parish and Town plans need to consider
Equality and Diversity.
When improving access to town centres,
accessibility for disabled people needs to be a
primary consideration. Facilities for older and
younger people and religion/faith groups also
need to be considered.
Ensure the information about devolution/asset
transfer opportunities is accessible to all.
Improvements to infrastructure and facilities
need to take into account the needs of protected
groups, in particular disabled and BAME

Housing and Communities
-

Advice about energy saving initiatives needs to
be accessible to all.

Areas to be highlighted to assistant director and
recommendation made that further assessment be undertaken
when more detail of the project is available.

Assistant Directors

Consultation with AWAZ resulted in the following suggestions:
-

Include links to the Localism page of the website in the
Council Plan so it is easy for people to access both
SLDC’s asset register and the community asset
register.

-

LEP – AWAZ suggest the district council is well placed
to influence the social inclusion aspect of the LEP.

-

BIDs – AWAZ suggested need to identify community
development/ social inclusion needs.

Progress: Links are included from the Council Plan 2019 to
SLDC’s asset register.
The Economic Development Team will raise the subject of
social inclusion and community development at Kendal and
Ulverston BID meetings in line with agreed and current dates as
detailed in service specific Action Plans
Areas to be highlighted to assistant director and
recommendation made that further assessment be undertaken
when more detail of the project is available.

Assistant Directors

Consultation with AWAZ resulted in the following suggestions:
-

Include links in the Council Plan to the 2013 Gypsy and
Traveller needs assessment and SLDC’s Land
Allocations DPD and Core Strategy. This will enable
people to see that SLDC have considered the issue of
gypsy/traveller site provision and have plans in place.

4

Health and Environment
-

When working with local communities to
manage the public realm and make the best use
of and care for our parks and open spaces, the
opportunity to be involved in this needs to be
accessible to all members of the community.

Delivering excellent services
-

Customer Connect Programme. Equality needs
to be considered to enable all our customers to
access services in the best way for them.

Areas to be highlighted to assistant director and
recommendation made that further assessment be undertaken
when more detail of the project is available.

Assistant Directors

Consultation with AWAZ resulted in the following suggestions:
-

EIA produced for kerbside recycling roll out, we must
ensure the new equipment is suitable for all – or offer
assisted collection to those negatively affected by the
changes

A high level EIA for the Customer Connect Programme is
complete, there will be further and more detailed EIAs of each
project associated with the Customer Connect Programme.

Assistant Directors

Key considerations:

Page 41

-

Communication plan needed to ensure those most
affected are aware of the changes.

-

We need to ensure access to services will be available
to those who are unable to access them online.

-

We need to ensure proposed staff numbers is relative
to the level of need of face to face and telephone
service.

5

Step 3
Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues
used are accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments)
-

The council plan is available in multiple formats, is easily navigable and is in Plain English
A hard copy of the council plan is available at South Lakeland House which is full accessible
The council plan is available to members of the public for comment
Further assessment to be made once service plans are available
Equality impact assessment timetable to be made in consultation with assistant directors and in
conjunction with the consultation timetable.

The Council’s commitment to engaging with the diverse South Lakeland community on key projects and
important local priorities will continue for the life of this Council Plan.
Through research and analysis of reports such as those produced by ACT, we have identified a number of
key issues that affect our residents. The Council Plan aims to reduce these issues.
Key Issues:
• Older housing stock with poor insulation
• Lack of rural affordable homes – housing is a key priority for us and we have the target to build 1000
affordable homes to rent by 2025.
• Providing effective development support to rural businesses – one of our key priorities is economic growth.
The Local Plan provides hectares of new employment land. The Invest in South Lakeland project continues
to promote South Lakeland as a great place to do business and has recently attended the biggest property
expo in London.

Date:

05/12/2018

EIA Author(s):

Paul Mountford

Assistant Director:

Simon McVey

Document version number:

v.1

Date for Review:

December 2019

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer

Y

Glossary
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 yearolds).
Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples on
a range of legal matters.
Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect
on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability,
Mental health or learning disability.
Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is
undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological
or other attributes of sex.
Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection
against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.
Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, Asian,
Black and White minority ethnic groups Inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.
Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and philosophical
beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes, Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, and
non-religious beliefs such as Humanism.
Rurality: South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and
larger market towns.
Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.

Page 42

6

Appendix 3

South Lakeland District Council

T

Making South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore

D

R

A

F

Council Plan

live

work
Page 43

explore

Council Plan

T

Making South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore

Introduction

Climate change is both a
challenge and an opportunity for
South Lakeland. Extreme weather
events are becoming more
frequent and the December 2015
floods were the worst ever
experienced in the District. We need to
work with the Environment Agency to
ensure that we are resilient with effective flood
management including defences, upstream storage and
sustainable land management and development. At the
same time we need to reduce our carbon footprint and
develop low carbon and environmental technologies in
our local economy.

A

The council will continue to use
its leadership and influence in the
places that matter, to focus
resource where it is most effective.

affordable homes between 2016 and
2036. The council has a target of
delivering 1000 affordable homes
for rent between 2014 and 2025
and is on track to meet this
target.

F

This Council Plan is the council’s
strategic document. It sets out
South Lakeland District Councils
vision and strategy to improve
prosperity ensuring a positive
benefit for every part of our
community.

Our ambition is to have a varied
economy with a skilled workforce, a
balanced housing market to meet needs, great
leisure services to encourage healthy lifestyles and a
cultural offer that appeals to residents and visitors alike
as well as delivering excellent regulatory services.

R

By 2040, if current trends continue, South Lakeland’s
population will be smaller (2,200 fewer people overall),
older (9,900 more people over 65) and less active (with
8,800 fewer people of working age. South Lakeland is
ageing significantly faster than UK, regional or County
averages. We need to encourage young people to stay
and attract new people in to rebalance the population
whilst ensuring that our housing, services and
infrastructure meet the needs of older people.

D

In most measures of poverty South Lakeland fares
better than nationally, but a selection of wards can be
identified which have quite extreme levels of low
incomes and poverty even by national standards. By
working together with local partners, for example,
Citizen’s Advice, South Lakes Housing, Age UK and
Kendal College the council is strengthening local
collaboration on projects, resources and strategies
aimed at tackling poverty. This makes it easier for
people to take advantage of the opportunities available
locally and to take action to help themselves.

Housing in South Lakeland is amongst the least
affordable in the north of England. Median house prices
are 9.7 times median earnings. The District needs to
deliver 320 new homes every year including 153 new
page 2

Page 44

Health and wellbeing statistics nationally are showing
an increased trend in obesity levels in both children and
adults as well as a reduction in physical activity. By
utilising our assets to enable physical activity such as
parks, footpaths and the healthy weight declaration we
can support the reduction of these rising levels.
The allocation of public health monies in Cumbria is
low, therefore the council will be adopting the Cumbria
Public Health Strategy and working with different
disciplines and organisations to implement this.
The organisation has been awarded the Bronze Better
Health at Work Award and will be working towards a
Silver award to encourage a healthier workforce.

T

Our vision

Our delivery

“Working together to make South Lakeland the best
place to live, work and explore”

We will deliver our Council Plan:

Creating an environment for people to thrive

•

Delivering excellent value-for-money, services

•

Playing a leading role and influencing others

•

Empowering customers and communities

•

Forward thinking, innovative council

Our values

Working across boundaries to deliver to
communities

•

Creating the right balance across all ages

•

Reducing inequalities where no one is left behind

•

Creating the right balance between a sustainable
and inclusive economy

A

•

•

F

Our areas of focus to achieve this are:

Our Council Plan is influenced by our key three values.

Empowering people

R

By listening to our customers and our employees their
ideas and comments will help us make improvements
to customer service and workforce development.

Excellence

Seeking continuous improvement in what we do,
ensuring that our actions address the needs of South
Lakeland.

D

Open and transparent

Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our
dealings with the public.

Page 45

page 3

Council Plan

T

Making South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore

F

Work across boundaries
We will meet the needs of the communities by:

Preparing a new Local Plan and supporting plans in the National Parks
Intervening to deliver major sites and critical infrastructure and remove barriers
Supporting delivery in neighbouring authorities
Attracting new delivery partners

A

•
•
•
•

Working with our partners to deliver regional growth by:
Working across Morecambe Bay and the North West to secure inward investment
Attracting external funding and deliver critical infrastructure
Shaping the Local Industrial Strategy and the Northern Powerhouse
Promoting unique selling points such as marine and cultural and creative industries

R

•
•
•
•

We will improve wellbeing by:
•

D

•
•

Strengthening relationships with public health providers and partners and achieve joined up
outcomes
Implementing the Cumbria Public Health Strategy
Implementing the Healthy Weight declaration

These are supported by the following documents and measures of success within:
•
•
•

page 4

Local Plan
Economic Growth Strategy
Public Health Strategy

Page 46

T

F

Create the right balance across all
communities
Deliver aﬀordable homes to meet need with:

New affordable homes to rent
New elderly care provision
A range of housing to attract and retain young people
New delivery models including a Loans scheme
Support for Community Housing and self-build

A

•
•
•
•
•

Create opportunities for young people by:

Unlocking development sites and enabling local businesses to grow
Understanding the needs of local businesses
Encouraging graduate retention
Using culture and built heritage to deliver a unique offer

R

•
•
•
•

Improve quality of life by:

Supporting young people to have a greater voice
Using our distinctive environment to create opportunities for all
Working with communities to reduce isolation and loneliness
Improving access to citizen driven technology
Helping people to be independent

D

•
•
•
•
•

These are supported by the following documents and measures of success within:
•
•
•
•

Community Emergency Planning Polices
Energy Company Obligation (ECO) Scheme

Climate Change Policy
Parks and Open Spaces Strategy

Page 47

page 5

Council Plan

T

Making South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore

F

Reducing inequalities

Improve existing housing and reduce homelessness through:
Homelessness prevention and support for vulnerable people
Working with landlords to improve standards
Working to reduce the number of second homes
Bringing empty homes back into use
Maximising access to Disabled Facilities Grants

A

•
•
•
•
•

Deliver inclusive growth so everyone can achieve their potential by:
Supporting people to adapt to changes in technology
Encouraging links between further and higher education and businesses
Providing support, advice and affordable premises for new business start-ups
Protecting the vulnerable and mitigating the effects of poverty

R

•
•
•
•

Reduce disadvantages by:
•

D

•
•
•

Working with partners to reduce domestic violence, alcohol related crime, substance misuse,
child sexual exploitation and antisocial behaviour
Commissioning services through the third sector
Improving air quality and reducing pollution
Working with partners to widen access to low cost energy

This is supported by the following documents and measures of success within:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

page 6

Homelessness Strategy
Local Plan
Empty Homes Strategy
Digital Declaration
Tackling Poverty Together Position Statement
Community Safety Partnership
Action Quality Action Plan
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy

Page 48

T

F

Sustainable and inclusive economy

Protect Our Place:

•

Ensuring that new development is sustainable, energy efficient and flood resilient
Working with partners to develop energy saving and energy efficiency initiatives particularly for
Vulnerable adults
Providing energy advice and additional support to households at risk of falling into fuel poverty

Enhance Our Place:

Developing town centres which are attractive and accessible for living, working, culture and leisure

Ensuring that business areas are protected from flooding
Promoting environmental technologies and the green economy
Working with local communities to improve, manage and promote accessible public realm
Making the best use of our parks, open spaces and lakes

R

•
•
•
•
•

A

•
•

Improve Our Place

Phasing out single-use plastics
Minimising our carbon footprint
Encouraging cycling and walking
Work with partners to prepare for major flood incidents

D

•
•
•
•

These are supported by the following documents and measures of success within:
•
•
•
•

Community Emergency Planning Polices
Energy Company Obligation (ECO) Scheme

Climate Change Policy
Parks and Open Spaces Strategy

Page 49

page 7

T

Contact us

We welcome all feedback.
If you have any comments or questions, or would like further information, please contact us.
Website: www.southlakeland.gov.uk
Tel: 01539 733333

A

South Lakeland District Council
South Lakeland House
Lowther Street
Kendal
Cumbria LA9 4DQ

F

Email: customer.services@southlakeland.gov.uk

D

R

You can view this plan online at: www.southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 50

Appendix 4

Working together to make

South Lakeland the best place to live, work
and explore
A council which:
•

creates the environment for
people to thrive

•

delivers excellent,
value-for-money services

•

plays a leading role and
influences others

•

empowers customers and
communities

•

is a forward-thinking
innovative council

live

work

explore

Work across
boundaries to
deliver
communities that:

Deliver 320 homes
a year

Deliver regional
growth

Improve
wellbeing

Create the right
balance across
communities that:

Deliver affordable
homes to meet needs

Create opportunities for
young people

Enhance our
distinctive character

Reduce
inequalities so
no-one is left
behind that:

Improve existing stock
and reduce
homelessness

Deliver inclusive growth
so all can achieve their
potential

Reduce
disadvantages

Protects
our place

Enhances
our place

Improves our
place

Encourage a
sustainable and
inclusive economy
that:

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52

Appendix 5
Draft Council Policy on Climate Change
South Lakeland District Council acknowledges that climate change is occurring, that man-made
greenhouse gas emissions are a primary cause and that climate change will continue to have far
reaching effects on people and places, the economy, society and environment in the District, across
the UK and across the world.
South Lakeland District Council seeks to maximise the social, economic and environmental benefits
which come from combating, and developing resilience to, climate change and developing a
sustainable economy. South Lakeland District commits to playing its part in meeting emissions
targets set internationally and through UK Carbon budgets.
South Lakeland District Council will work in partnership to respond at a local level, encouraging and
helping local residents, local businesses and other organisations to reduce their energy costs, to
reduce congestion, to adapt to the impacts of climate change, to improve the local environment and
to deal with fuel poverty in our communities.
We commit our Council to











Work with central government and neighbouring Councils to contribute, at a local level, to the
delivery of the target for carbon dioxide reduction set out in the UK Carbon budget by 2022.
Participate in local and regional networks for support.
Develop plans and support projects with our partners and local communities to progressively
address the causes and the impacts of climate change, according to our local priorities, securing
maximum benefit for our communities.
Publicly declare, within appropriate plans and strategies, the commitment to achieve a reduction
of greenhouse gas emissions from our own authority's operations, especially energy sourcing
and use, travel and transport, waste production and disposal and the purchasing of goods and
services.
Assess the risk associated with climate change and the implications for our services and our
communities of climate change impacts and adapt accordingly.
Encourage all sectors in our local community to take the opportunity to adapt to the impacts of
climate change, to reduce their own greenhouse gas emissions and to make public their
commitment to action.
Monitor the progress of our plans against the actions needed and publish the result.

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54

Item No.10
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Friday, 11 January 2019

2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget
Portfolio:

Finance Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer)

Report Author:

Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager
Lee Hurst – Chief Accountant

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan
as published on 2 October 2018

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

This report presents the 2019/20 Five Year Draft Budget. The expected outcome is
that Council will be in a position to deliver the priorities set out in the Council Plan
within its resources. This will enable the statutory requirement to agree a balanced
budget and to set the appropriate Council Tax level for 2019/20. The final proposed
revenue budget and capital programme, including any further amendments, will be
put forward for approval by Council on 26 February 2019.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:
(1)
consider the proposals contained in the report to achieve a balanced
budget in 2019/20; and
(2)

agree any comments to be taken forward for consideration at the
meeting of Cabinet on 6 February 2019.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The first draft budget was considered by Council on 18 December 2018. The report
to Council is attached as Appendix A to this report. The remainder of this report
gives an update on significant changes since the first draft budget was prepared.
The final Draft Budget Report will incorporate the consideration of internal and
external consultation and be presented to the 6 February 2019 Cabinet meeting and
the 26 February 2019 Council meeting for ultimate approval.
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement

3.2

The Government published the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement on
13 December 2018. It will be subject to consultation until 10 January 2019 and the
final settlement for each authority is usually published soon after the conclusion of
the consultation period. The majority of the settlement is in line with the 4-year
settlement the Council accepted in 2016/17 and which is already reflected in the draft
2019/20 – 2023/24 budgets attached to this report. The main changes in the
provisional settlement are set out below.

Page 55

3.3

The Council Tax referendum thresholds remain at the levels set for 2018/19 for
district councils with the maximum increase of the higher of below 3% or £5. For this
Council this could potentially raise the maximum increase in Band D Council Tax
from the £5 that is included in the draft budget to £5.72, which would generate an
additional £32,800 of income from Council Tax. There are no limits on increases for
parish councils but the Government expects parishes to take all available steps to
mitigate the need for Council Tax increases.

3.4

As expected, the Government has chosen not to reduce local authority funding
through reductions in business rate retention, a reduction which has been known as
negative RSG. Under the original 4-year settlement the Council was expecting a
reduction in funding of £613,000 for 2019/20. This decision by the Government was
widely expected and had already been reflected in the draft budget proposals
considered by Council on 18 December 2018.

3.5

Rural Services Delivery Grant was due to be frozen nationally for 2019/20 but the
provisional settlement has increased the national funding from £65m to £81m. This
Council’s share of the grant will increase from £347,900 to £433,500. This is an
extra £85,600 for 2019/20 only.

3.6

The Cumbrian authorities were not successful in the bid to become a business rate
pool pilot. The pilot areas are Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, East Sussex,
Hertfordshire, Lancashire, Leicestershire, Norfolk, Northamptonshire, North and West
Yorkshire, North of the Tyne, Solent authorities, Somerset, Staffordshire and Stoke,
West Sussex and Worcestershire. The draft budgets for 2019/20 to 2023/24 did not
anticipate any additional income from the potential pilot pool. The existing Cumbrian
pool is expected to continue for 2019/20.

3.7

The settlement also included some unexpected funding from the business rate levy
account surplus. The Government collects a levy of up to 50% from authorities who
collect more business rates than their baseline. This levy is used to fund a safety net
for authorities who fall well below their baseline. This is the first time the levy has
exceed the safety net and the Government has £180m to distribute nationally. The
Council’s share is £34,000.

3.8

Finally, the Government confirmed the threshold for payment of New Homes Bonus
will remain at 0.4% of taxbase for 2019/20. For this Council this requires a net
increase in Band D equivalent properties on the council tax list of 211. The actual
increase was only 132 properties so the level of New Homes Bonus due to the
Council will be £141,000 lower than budgeted at £516,700. The table below shows
the allocation of the New Homes Bonus for 2019/20.
New Homes Bonus allocation 2019/20
Members Small Grants
Burton Heritage Scheme
Other LIPs grants
Total Locally Important Project Share (40%)
Use in Capital Programme (60%)
Total New Homes Bonus 2019/20

£000
51.0
35.0
120.7
206.7
310.0
516.7

Next Steps
3.9

The draft budget figures to be included in the report to Cabinet on 6 February 2019
will include the impact of these proposed changes.

3.10

Council on 26 February 2019 will be asked to approve the budget, capital programme
and Council Tax for April 2019 onwards. Council will receive an update of this report

Page 56

reflecting any further announcements or changes which will affect the Council’s
financial position.
3.11

The final finance settlement, including the impact of any adjustments to business
rates multiplier and tariff, will be reflected in the final budget proposals to be
presented to Council on 26 February 2019.

3.12

The Government has already announced changes to the business rates funding
system for 2020. The 50% central share of business rates retained by the
Government will be reduced and the levy will be abolished but the system of tariffs,
top-ups and safety nets will continue. As the proposals are to be fiscally neutral it is
expected that other grants will be cut or local government will be given additional
duties to offset the additional income from business rates. These developments will
be monitored and fed into the MTFP as the details are clarified.

3.13

The current budgets are based on the existing staff establishment in December 2018
and known changes to fixed term posts. The Customer Connect programme is
expected to materially change the establishment and therefore the staffing budgets.
Currently a lump-sum is shown in the budgets for 2019/20 and subsequent years.
During early 2019 it will be necessary to revise the staffing budgets to reflect the
Customer Connect phase 1 staffing changes with further changes as part of the
2020/21 budget process to reflect phase 2 staffing changes.

3.14

The Medium Term Financial Plan will be updated during summer 2019. The updated
MTFP will be reported to Cabinet and Council: it is expected that this will be during
July 2019 and will include the Budget Strategy for 2020/21 – 2024/25.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

This report provides an opportunity for Overview and Scrutiny Committee to
comment on the draft of the budget for 2019/20 to 2023/24.

4.2

Further reports on the budget will be produced including Lake Administration
Committee, Planning Committee & Licensing Committee in January 2019.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

This report presents options in relation to potential budget pressures and savings,
new capital programme bids, one off revenue growth bids and fees and charges. The
proposals together meet the Council’s statutory duty to set a balanced budget for
2019/20. An alternative option would be to reject some of the proposals; this would
then require further work to ensure a balanced budget was set.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

This report sets out a first draft budget that provides resources to implement the
Council Plan. Setting a sound framework for budget preparation assists in the
delivery of all corporate outcomes. This strategy has been developed within the
context of the MTFP.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The draft Budget aims to safeguard the Council’s financial position and ensure a
balanced budget for 2019/20 and an improved position in the years that follow.

Human Resources
7.2

This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council; individual savings and
growth proposals may have direct staffing implications.

Page 57

Legal
7.3

This report has no direct legal implications at this stage but individual proposals
resulting from this report may have direct legal implications.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject
to further consultation. Specific issues that require HSEEIAs will be addressed within
the final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019.

Equality and Diversity
7.6

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.7

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject
to further consultation. Specific issues that require EIAs will be addressed within the
final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Failure to create a balanced
and sustainable budget by
February 2018

Includes: inability to deliver
corporate priorities,
inappropriate spending,
and inappropriate
reductions in services.

Identification of sound
budget guidelines in an
agreed strategy reduces the
risk of an unaffordable
budget and/or precipitate
budget reductions.
Monitoring of progress
against the budget
timetable reduces the need
for last-minute budget
adjustments.

Insufficient staff capacity to
deliver on growth items within
capital and revenue budgets

Inability to deliver services
to expected levels or
additional costs of
temporary staff. Potential
underspends and potential
slippage in expenditure to
subsequent years.

Review resources required
to ensure growth bids are
realistic and deliverable,
including other unavoidable
staffing pressures

Revenue budget and Capital
Programme may not be
integrated and aligned with
Council Plan.

Resources not directed to
achieving corporate
outcomes, leading to
inappropriate spending.

Both the revenue budget
and the Capital Programme
are now embedded in the
corporate planning cycle.
All revenue budgets and
capital programme
schemes are linked to
Council plan priorities

Page 58

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Reduction in funding from
Government is greater than
estimated or announced too
late for adjustments to be
made to budgets

In-year budgetary
pressure and potential
overspending, jeopardising
service delivery.

Close monitoring of
Government
announcements, potential
short-term use of revenue
contingency provision and
General Reserve followed
by review for following year.

Government proposals for
piloting full localisation of
business rates increase
uncertainty of major income
stream.

Income streams will be
insufficient to fund service
delivery.

Monitor Government
proposals for changes in
NNDR legislation.
Maintenance of General
Reserve as a buffer against
unexpected changes in
funding. Monitor changes
in rateable values &
proposals for new
development / closures/
other changes.

Contact Officers
Shelagh McGregor, Chief Finance Officer, s.mcgregor@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539
793112
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793147
Lee Hurst, Chief Accountant, lee.hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793599
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

A

2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget report to Council 18 December 2018

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Medium Term Financial Plan
approved Council 24 July 2018

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b

The 2019-20 Local Government
Finance Settlement Technical
Consultation

https://tinyurl.com/y772s2zr

2019/20 Budget Update Report to
Cabinet 31 October 2018

https://tinyurl.com/yaedogmo

National Pay Agreement 2018-20:
New Pay Grades report to Human
Resources Committee: 11
December 2018

https://tinyurl.com/yaboz97c

Page 59

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
20/12/2018
20/12/2018
20/12/2018
N/A

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
20/12/2018
N/A
N/A
21/12/2018
N/A
21/12/2018
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 60

Appendix A

South Lakeland District Council
Council
Wednesday, 18 December 2018

2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget
Portfolio:

Finance Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Assistant Director Resources (CFO/Section 151 Officer)

Report Author:

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager
Lee Hurst, Chief Accountant

Forward Plan:

Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan
as published on 2 October 2018

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

This report presents the 2019/20 Five Year Draft Budget. The expected outcome is
that Council will be in a position to deliver the priorities set out in the Council Plan
within its resources. This will enable the statutory requirement to agree a balanced
budget and to set the appropriate Council Tax level for 2019/20. The final proposed
revenue budget and capital programme, including any further amendments, will be
put forward for approval by Council on 26 February 2019.

1.2

This report also requests approval of proposed pay scales from 1 April 2019 resulting
from the national local government pay settlement for 2018/20 and consideration by
Human Resources Committee on 11 December 2018.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Council:(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

Notes that the development of the Budget is an iterative process
between now and Council on the 26 February 2019. The assumptions,
proposals and calculations included within it will be subject to change
as more information from internal and external sources is provided and
decisions around the final proposals can be made;
Considers the proposals contained in the report to achieve a balanced
budget in 2019/20;
Notes the projected deficit position of circa £590k in 2020/21 rising to
circa £2.6m by 2023/24 (this is after the Customer Connect savings have
been included) as set out in Appendix 2;
Notes that proposals (1) and (2) form the basis of statutory consultation
with stakeholders;
Approves the amended 2018/19 Capital Programme as presented in
Appendix 6, noting that the future years programme is still under
development; and
Approves the proposed pay scales from 1 April 2019 onwards as set out
in Appendix 9.

Page 61

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1.

The Council, at its meeting on 24 July 2018 agreed to the proposed Budget Strategy
for the current year’s budget process as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP). The Budget Strategy set out some broad principles which are being used in
the preparation of the 2019/20 – 2023/24 Budget.

3.2.

This report presents a draft position. Work will continue to incorporate further
changes into subsequent budget reports, such as the finalised central government
grant position which is not yet known. The position set out in this report forms the
basis of the consultation, subject to approval. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee
will consider the report at its meeting on the 11 January 2019. The final Draft Budget
Report will incorporate the consideration of the internal and external consultation
and be presented to the 23 January 2019 Cabinet meeting. The Council will at its
meeting on the 26 February 2019 be requested to approve the final Budget. The
budget timetable is presented for information at Appendix 1.

DRAFT GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET
SUMMARY POSITION
3.3.

The Medium Term Financial Plan provides a summary five year annual position
which includes a projection of the overall surplus or deficit on the General Fund
Revenue Budget. The assumptions and financial implications are kept constantly
under review as circumstances change. A summary of the known changes at this
stage are provided in the table below, the more detailed analysis of expenditure and
income is set out in Appendix 2.

3.4.

Table 1 sets out the summarised estimated annual General Fund Budget
requirement across the review period, including the projected deficits. It also shows
the savings identified and where the budgets have been reduced.
Table 1 Summary Medium Term Financial Plan
2019/20
£000
27,863.1
500.0
2,031.0
-13,433.7

2020/21
£000
28,013.8
500.0
0.0
-13,695.1

2021/22
£000
28,356.6
500.0
0.0
-13,800.5

2022/23
£000
28,798.7
500.0
0.0
-14,081.4

2023/24*
£000
29,276.4
500.0
0.0
-14,260.3

16,960.4

14,818.7

15,056.1

15,217.3

15,516.1

-15,666.3
-740.0

-12,879.6
-1,550.0

-12,574.6
-1,550.0

-12,127.5
-1,550.0

-11,930.1
-1,550.0

Net draft budget (projected deficit) July 2018

554.1

389.1

931.5

1,539.8

2,036.0

Council Tax second homes agreement income removal

693.6

693.6

693.6

665.0

665.0

1,247.7

1,082.7

1,625.1

2,204.8

2,701.0

330.5
50.0
-323.3
-500.0
-50.0

365.1
50.0
-329.3
-500.0
-50.0

376.2
50.0
-334.3
-500.0
-50.0

448.9
0.0
-334.3
-500.0
0.0

473.4
0.0
-334.3
-500.0
0.0

-21.5

-28.9

-28.8

107.1

219.2

589.6

1,138.2

1,926.5

2,559.3

Service Expenditure
Uncommitted Pressure/Growth
Customer Connect
Service income
Net service expenditure
Corporate items
Further Savings from Customer Connect

Net draft budget (projected deficit) October 2018
Budget Pressures (App 3)
Growth Proposals (App 4)
General Savings (App 5)
Removal of uncommitted Pressure/Growth
Funding of Growth Proposals through Cumbria Business
Rates Pool Income Reserve
Recalculation of MRP as a result of updated capital
programme
Reversal of negative RSG by Government
One-off use of General Reserves
Net draft budget (projected deficit) November 2018

-613.0
-120.4
0.0

*New year of model

Page 62

3.5.

The projected annual revenue deficit totals circa £590k in 2020/21 rising to circa
£2.6m by 2023/24. This position is after the inclusion of Customer Connect savings
of £740k in 2019/20 and £1.550m from 2020/21 onwards. This is the first iteration of
the budget and these annual projections are based on information available at the
time of preparation along with the broad set of assumptions detailed in 3.12 below.
The assumptions, proposals and calculations included above and on the attached
appendices will be subject to change as more information from internal and external
sources is provided, calculations and options are refined and as decisions around
the final proposals are made.

3.6.

Work is underway to resolve the projected deficits. Future year estimates will be
kept under review as part of the MTFP process to ensure that savings plans are
sufficient to set balanced budgets.

3.7.

The July Medium Term Financial Plan included £500k of unallocated growth which
has now been removed. The Council has a statutory duty to set a balanced budget.
Any additional budget pressures or discretionary, fixed term growth items will need
to be funded by savings in existing budgets.

NATIONAL PAY AGREEMENT 2018/20: NEW PAY GRADES
3.8

The authority is part of the National Joint Council for Local Government Services
(NJC) which nationally negotiates pay and grading. In April 2018, national
employers agreed a pay settlement for 2018/19 and 2019/20 for the majority of staff,
excluding the Chief Executive and Directors. The settlement for 2018/19 was
straightforward with a pay award of 2% for most spinal column points (SCP) and
higher percentage increases for staff on lower pay grades. The pay settlement for
2019/20 is complex due to a new national pay spine. As well as the increase in the
bottom rate for the new spine increasing to £9.00 per hour, the changes included
condensing the current lowest 12 SCPs to 6 new pay points and the insertion of 5
new pay points. Councils are expected to implement the new pay spine to ensure
every employee has an increase in pay of at least 2% from 1 April 2019.

3.9

Human Resources Committee on 11 December 2018 considered proposals to
amend the Council’s pay grades to reflect the new national SCP. These proposed
grades are shown at Appendix 9 and the full report is included as a background
document to this report. Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution limits the delegation to
Human Resources Committee to changes where the total costs does not exceed
£250,000. As the costs of the proposal exceed £250,000 the proposal cannot be
approved under delegation but must be approved by Council.

3.10

The Council currently complies with requirements to pay the National Living Wage
and has an aspiration to pay the Real or Foundation Living Wage. The new pay
agreement will mean the Council will pay the equivalent of the Foundation Living
Wage from 1 April 2019 to all staff except apprentices. Apprentice salaries will
remain in line with the national minimum wage. The Living Wage Foundation
announced their new pay rates on 5 November 2018 of £9.00 per hour outside
London for all employees over 18 years of age.

3.11

The Council will commence implementation of the new Customer Connect staffing
structure from April 2019. This new structure is in the process of being developed
and will have regard to the proposed pay scales as the financial implications of the
new structure are finalised.

BUDGET STRATEGY ASSUMPTIONS
3.12

The draft budget proposals for 2019/20 and onwards include:
a)

Inflation in the base budget in accordance with the Budget Strategy (only where
contractually committed or unavoidable).

Page 63

b)

Salary budgets have been prepared based on the current staffing structure
including known incremental advances. From April 2019 onwards the detailed
budgets include 2% for inflationary pay awards. As set out above, the local
government pay settlement for April 2018 covered 2 years and included a
restructuring of the national pay scales. Officers have modelled various
potential options to implement the pay settlement and a budget pressure of
£148k has been included in 2019/20 rising to £346k if all staff reach the top of
scale.

c)

The only major announcement in the Autumn Budget on 29 October 2018 for
the Council concerned the level of the National Living Wage (NLW) for 2019/20.
The local government pay settlement for 2019/20 has a minimum hourly rate
(excluding apprentices) of £9.00 per hour which is higher than the new NLW
levels and will be equal to the Real/Foundation Living Wage which was
announced in November 2018.

d)

Capital charges will be reviewed within the final budget proposals presented to
February Council. These have no impact on the MTFP projections as they are
not charged against Council Tax.

GOVERNMENT FUNDING AND OTHER REVENUE BUDGET UNCERTAINTIES
3.13.

The figures presented include certain assumptions where work is on-going or where
information is not yet available. A key factor going forward will continue to be
central government funding. The potential change to 75% business rates retention
offers both opportunities and risks. This in addition to the proposed Fairer Funding
Review may lead to both increased volatility and reductions in retained local taxation
over the medium term. At this stage these are difficult to quantify. The key items are:
a) The MTFP assumes support from general government grant, such as
Revenue Support Grant, is in line with the multi-year settlement announced
in December 2015. The Government’s 2019/20 Finance Settlement
Technical Consultation indicated the Government was minded not to
implement the £613k of negative Revenue Support Grant for 2019/20. The
MTFP projections have been adjusted to reflect this expectation: the
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement will be on 6 December
2018 and any significant changes to the assumed funding will be reported, if
necessary, as an update to this report.
b) From 2020 the whole system of Government funding will change: the
financial model assumes the overall funding from Government through
general grants or retained business rates will continue to decline by the
same rate as has been seen during the current multi-year settlement
excluding one-off adjustments such as the negative Revenue Support Grant.
This reflects the current indications that funding of local government overall
will stabilise at current levels but that funding will be targeted at social care.
c) All seven Cumbrian authorities have jointly submitted a bid to form a
Cumbrian Business Rate Pool Pilot for 2019/20. This would replace all
Revenue Support Grant and Rural Services Delivery Grant which would
have been payable with the retention of the Government share of business
rates. Potentially the seven authorities could gain £6m of additional funding.
The results of the bid will be announced alongside the Provisional Local
Government Finance Settlement in December 2018. If the bid were
successful the Council could retain circa £200k of additional income but the
actual amount will not be known until the end of the 2019/20 financial year.
Any additional income will be budgeted one year in arrears as part of the
2020/21 budget process.

Page 64

d) Should the bid for a new Cumbria Business Rate Pool Pilot not be approved
by Central Government, it is proposed that the existing business rate pool
will continue for 2019/20. Due to the level of uncertainty around these
arrangements, the funding is built into budgets 1 year in arrears so this can
be used to support financial years 2020/21 onwards. Any unallocated
balance remains within the NNDR pool reserve which is earmarked for
economic development (Appendix 8).
e) Interest payable and receivable will continue to be reviewed prior to the final
budget being set in February 2019 to ensure this reflects the most up to date
interest rate projections and capital programme funding assumptions.
3.14

The MTFP assumes the New Homes Bonus will be split 60:40 between support for
the capital programme, which has been used to support housing, and Locally
Important Projects (LIPs), including community planning and the £1,000 budget per
member for community projects. The Government consulted in autumn 2015 about
reducing the level of New Homes Bonus and this was partially implemented from
April 2017. Further changes are expected to be confirmed as part of the 2019/20
local government finance settlement and it is expected that New Homes Bonus will
be discontinued from April 2020. SLDC does not use the NHB to balance its base
budgets. Funding of approved schemes in the capital programme has been reviewed
to reflect expected funding but future projects will need to be reviewed as clarity is
provided

3.15

The Council earns significant sums through recycling credits (£1.3m for 2017/18).
The payments are made in accordance with legislation which clearly sets out the
statutory basis and mechanism for calculating the recycling payments. Any change to
the current system would need agreement from the County and all districts and would
need to be considered alongside other countywide issues.

3.16

Overall, although there are still uncertainties, the Council is in a strong position to set
a balanced budget for 2019/20 and to address the additional level of deficit from
2020/21. From 2020 however it is worth reiterating that the challenges arising from
the change in Government support through the Fair Funding Review and changes to
business rate retention could have a significant impact.

RECURRING REVENUE BUDGET PRESSURES
3.17

There are a number of recurring budget pressures and adjustments that have been
identified through the budget process. As identified in Table 1, these total £330k for
2019/20 increasing to £473k by 2023/24. The details of these are contained within
Appendix 3.
The largest single pressure relates to the implementation of the 2019/20 pay
settlement, as set out in para 3.12.b above. The other large budget pressures relate
to planning application fees and supporting people grant at Town View Fields Hostel
which have both been reported as part of the Corporate Financial Monitoring report
for Quarter 2 2018/19.

2019/20 GROWTH PROPOSALS
3.18

The detail of revenue growth items is included at Appendix 4. These have
intentionally been kept to a minimum. The only growth bid relates to the business
support programme for economic development activities of £50k per year for three
years. It is proposed that this is funded through the use of the NDR Pool reserve,
which is set aside specifically to support economic development.

SAVINGS PROPOSALS
3.19

A number of savings proposals have been brought forward as part of the budget
exercise excluding any savings relating to Customer Connect which are being
accounted for separately. These total £323k in 2019/20 rising to £334k by 2023/24.

Page 65

These are detailed in Appendix 5. The amount and nature of the savings identified
are considered reasonable and deliverable from 2019/20.
3.20

The main savings relate to decisions earlier this year regarding funding of community
toilets and Kendal Museum. Officers have also reviewed corporate budgets including
insurance, business rates, energy and water charges and identified savings.

Savings and efficiencies
3.21

Significant savings targets of £361k in 2018/19, £740k in 2019/20 and rising to
£1.550m have been agreed from the Customer Connect Programme. Further work
will be carried out to identify proposals to meet the additional amounts required. This
process needs to be flexible according to the challenges and opportunities that arise
to meet the projected deficits, which are very likely in themselves to change,
particularly given the large uncertainty over business rates retention.

3.22

Employee consultation on the new leadership and organisational structure of the
Customer Connect operating model concluded in November. The structure will be
confirmed in early December after consideration and finalisation of the response to
the consultation. Detailed design will continue to refine the estimated number of
specialist/case workers in phase 1. The actual employment costs will not be
confirmed until recruitment is completed in March 2019. Voluntary redundancy offers
were made the week commencing 3rd December. Officers will continue to work on
estimates as the 2019/20 budget is prepared and greater certainty will be developed
as the Council progresses through the next stages, delivering the programme in
accordance with the approved business plan. Updates will be provided in
subsequent budget reports.

3.23

The Budget for 2018/19 included a savings target of £361k. The Quarter 2 Corporate
Financial Monitoring elsewhere on this agenda reported progress in meeting this
target. The budget monitoring for period 7 (to the end of October 2018) includes
significant changes to the projected overspends on homelessness and planning costs
and a new projected underspend on the Minimum Revenue Provision compared to
Quarter 2. The current projection is a contribution of £112k will be made towards this
savings target of £361k. Officers will continue to work to identify further budget
savings in 2018/19 to deliver the remaining £249k to meet the full savings target.

FEES AND CHARGES
3.24

The MTFP assumes that income to be generated from fees and charges will total
£10.0m for 2019/20. This figure has been adjusted to reflect the budget pressures
from Appendix 3, where these relate to fees and charges.

3.25

The 2019/20 car parking income budgets have been inflated by 2% in line with the
MTFP. Monitoring for 2018/19 to the end of Quarter 2 suggests that the current level
of demand is generating £160k more against the annual base. The estimate for
2019/20 has therefore been increased by this amount (Appendix 5). At this stage it
is not proposed to adjust the charges. Hourly rates have been frozen on most car
parks since April 2011. This is subject to annual review.

3.26

Lake Administration Committee considered fees and charges on 5 October 2018 and
Licensing Committee considered its fees 6 November 2018. The full fees and
charges listing will be presented as part of the January Cabinet report.

COUNCIL TAX
3.27

Central government’s policy around Council Tax changed during the 2016/17 finance
settlement. It moved from incentivising Council Tax freezes to assuming increases in
Council Tax as part of the overall financial resources Council’s would utilise. The
MTFP assumes Council tax will continue to rise by £5 per annum to £195.63 at April
2019 which equates to 2.62% per band D property for 2019/20 (the CPI inflation
figure for September 2018 is 2.4%). The power to charge the higher of £5 or up to

Page 66

3% was included as part of the 2018/19 settlement and it is anticipated that this
power will continue for 2019/20. A 3% increase would be equivalent to an increase
of £5.72. Full details of the settlement, including limits around Council Tax are likely
to be provided with the Local Government Finance Settlement figures on 6 December
2018.
3.28

Each 1% increase in Council Tax generates an additional £86k of income to the
Council. If the Council Tax were to be frozen in 2019/20 at existing levels and based
on the estimated taxbase for 2019/2 of 45,515 band D equivalent properties an
additional £227k of savings would be required to balance the General Fund.

3.29 The MTFP assumes an increase in the Council tax base of 250 band D properties for
2019/20. At £195.63 per band D this is equivalent to an additional £49k of Council tax
each year for this Council. The actual tax base for 2019/20 will be calculated in
December 2018 and will be included in future budget reports. This will also include any
distribution of anticipated surpluses or deficits from 2018/19.
4

CAPITAL PROGRAMME

4.1

Proposals for new areas of capital expenditure were considered by Portfolio Holders
on the 5 October 2018 and were prioritised with reference to the funding available. The
resulting proposed capital programme is presented at Appendix 6. A summary of the
proposed capital expenditure up to 2023/24 is shown below:
Table 2: Summary Draft Capital Programme Expenditure

2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

£000
7,950.0

£000
10,163.2

£000
16,776.7

£000
3,406.7

£000
1,928.0

£000
2,828.0

4.2

Total
2018/19 to
2023/24
£000
43,052.6

There were a number of capital bids prioritised. These include:
a) £6.0m in relation to loans to housing associations utilising the Right to Buy
receipts accumulated to date;
b) £9.2m in relation to Ulverston Leisure Centre, in line with the business case
supporting the Cabinet decision to proceed with the next stage of work
including design to RIBA stage 3;
c) £461k in relation to developing additional homelessness accommodation for
families
d) £100k contribution to redevelopment at Abbot Hall: ;
e) £1.9m in relation to Grange Lido based on light-touch proposals. Following
receipt of a petition on the Lido, there will be a debate on the petition at
Council in December.
These are the schemes where outline approval has already been given, where
expenditure relates to health and safety issues or where works are unavoidable.

4.3

There are a number of significant potential additional service areas and schemes to be
added to the capital programme where bids have been received but that have yet to be
prioritised and allocated a capital and or revenue budget. These schemes would lead
to additional capital budget costs on top of those presented in Appendix 6. These
include:
a)

Schemes arising from the Car Parking Study in Kendal and Oxenholme as
well as engineering appraisals undertaken on surfacing options at Braithwaite
Fold, additional capacity options at Rydal Road, Ambleside and Rayrigg Road
Car Park, Bowness and the siting of electric charging points..

Page 67

b)

South Lakeland House and Kendal Town Hall accommodation review to
provide a fit for purpose and fit for future office accommodation and Town Hall
refurbishment. The capital cost of any improvements is likely to be significant
and a Business case for the work will be provided to enable an affordable
solution to be delivered.

c)

The review of the Kendal depot location is also not included as yet. A report
setting out the likely financial implications and benefits and timescales will be
provided in due course.

4.4

Once receipts earmarked for specific purposes are removed the programme has a
modest element of unallocated resources, however, as noted at 4.3 above, there are
a number of potentially significant unavoidable schemes that are likely to make a call
on these. The capital programme to be considered by Cabinet in January 2019 and
subsequent reports is expected to change to include some or all of these potential
schemes. There are other assets, as set out in the Property and Land Management
Strategy, that will require further consideration as part of longer term capital
planning.

4.5

Although the capital programme contains estimates of expenditure for future years,
these rely on the income budgets being met (e.g. Capital Receipts, Right to Buy and
VAT shelter). All elements of the programme, and particularly those areas with
recurring budgets, will be reviewed annually with reference to the actual resources
available. Where no other funding is available, and where appropriate, borrowing
will be needed to fund the proposed additional schemes. The appropriate level of
borrowing, based on considerations of affordability and risk, will be set out in the
Council’s Capital Strategy and Treasury Management strategy to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet in January 2019 and Council in February 2019.

4.6

It was reported in the Quarter 2, 2018/19 Monitoring Report that certain elements of
the capital programme would be underspent in year and would require re-profiling
into subsequent years. This includes the ERDF funded scheme for flood alleviation
works at Mintsfeet, Kendal and the Cross-a-Moor junction improvement scheme.
Adjustments have also been made to increase the capital budget for Millerground
and the Burton in Kendal heritage scheme to reflect external contributions. These
are reflected in Appendix 6 within the updated 2018/19 programme along with other
schemes where the need for re-profiling has been highlighted, as part of the budget
process.

4.7

Due to unprecedented demand for Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) funding, 86
adaptations were completed in the first two quarters of 2018/19 compared to 81 in
the whole of 2017/18, it is expected that there will be insufficient funds available for
the whole financial year. As DFGs are a statutory duty the Council needs to provide
the necessary funding to meet demand. There is £191k unallocated in the Affordable
Homes budget that won’t be spent in 2018/19. Therefore it is proposed that this
funding is transferred to the DFG budget. This will provide sufficient funds to meet
demand for DFGs in 2018/19.

4.8

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is not currently reflected in the capital
programme or its funding. The Council has started to receive modest levels of
income from CIL. The governance arrangements over when and how to allocate this
and the Infrastructure Delivery Plan were approved by Cabinet on 13 September
2017.

4.9

Appendix 2 shows the current estimates in relation to NHB income. 40% of this
currently supports the Members small grants scheme and Locally Important Projects
whilst 60% of this is earmarked to support other capital schemes. It is expected that
no further income will be received beyond April 2020: funding has been reviewed for
existing capital programme schemes but the capital budgets for LIPS have been
removed from 2020/21.

Page 68

4.10

A summary of the draft capital programme funding is in the table below. This shows
the proposed use of capital resources in support of the capital programme (see
Appendix 6).

Table 3: Capital Funding 2018/19 to 2023/24
Balance April
2018
£000
General
Usable Capital Receipts
VAT Shelter receipt
New homes bonus (capital)****

Estimated
Income
£000

Use in capital
programme
£000

Potential
Balance March
2024
£000

1,744

417

-1,953

831

1,200

-2,031

209
0

1,271

1,138

-2,177

232

Earmarked or allocated
Revenue (LIPS)

185

995

-995

185

IT replacement reserve

74

480

-480

74

Major Repairs Reserve

307

800

-868

239

General Revenue contributions

587

1,574

-1,940

221

Cap grants and contributions (inc S106)

593

7,924

-8,467

50

Disabled Facilities Grants

360

3,620

-3,980

0

Community Housing Fund*

2,309

0

-490

1,819

Right to Buy receipt**

3,788

4,200

-6,495

1,493

0

13,177

-13,177

0

12,049

35,525

-43,053

4,522

Borrowing
Funding from borrowing***.
Total

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes, £2.36m less £235k funding revenue
budgets
**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable
housing.
***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover
the cost over the assets' life
****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement

4.11

5

Table 1 includes some amendments to the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) in
the financial model. These changes reflect changes in the profiling of the rolling
vehicle and plant programme and the additional costs if Ulverston Leisure Centre is
to be funded from borrowing.

RESERVES AND WORKING BALANCE

WORKING BALANCE
5.1

The Council’s working balance at 1 April 2018 was £1.5m. Working balances are
used to help cushion the organisation against uneven cash-flows and avoid
unnecessary borrowing. The balance on the working balance should be maintained
at £1.5m.

OTHER RESERVES
5.2

5.3

The Council holds a General Reserve of monies set aside to form a buffer against
future financial risks in the medium term and to enable the Council to progress major
organisational and transformational changes by providing resources to fund the initial
costs of these developments.
Authorities in England and Wales are required to have regard to the level of
reserves needed for meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the
budget requirement. An annual review is carried out to assess risks including:
 pay and pension costs

Page 69

 inflationary pressures
 interest rates
 Government grant
 income from fees and charges
The Council considers the impact of holding monies unnecessarily in reserves giving
the ongoing impact on local residents and taxpayers. The External Auditor considers
the level of reserves each year to ensure the amounts held are sufficient but not
excessive. There is no theoretical “correct” level of reserves because the issues that
affect an authority’s need for reserves will vary over time.
5.4

Appendix 7 shows the latest risk-based calculation of a minimum recommended
working balance and General Reserve for 2019/20. This suggests the overall
projected balance is slightly higher than necessary. It is proposed this surplus should
be used to offset the projected 2019/20 deficit. The fundamental principle governing
the use of reserves is that they should not be used to fund recurring expenditure.

5.5

The risk assessment of reserves includes a portion of the General Reserve
earmarked to meet the up-front costs of delivery of approved savings. These costs
could include redundancy, building adaptations or new IT costs.

5.6

The Statutory Duties Reserve consists of an original sum of £150k set aside for legal
and other statutory requirements with delegation to Senior Management Team to
approve the use of the monies, topped back up at year end if necessary. The use of
these amounts is reported as part of the Corporate Financial Monitoring process.

5.7

The Council holds a number of other reserves for various reasons. Appendix 8
summarises the individual reserves, their purpose and their expected balances and
movements 2018/19 to 2023/24. The projected reserves reflect contributions in but
do not anticipate the element of spend to cover contingencies which are not
predictable when they will be spent.

5.8

Table 4 summarises the projected balances on reserves and the working balance at
the end of each financial year.
Table 4: Reserves summary

General Reserves
Capital Reserves
Earmarked Reserves
Total Reserves
Working Balance
Total Reserves and
Working Balance

31/03/2018
£000
(8,600)
(2,434)
(4,412)
(15,447)
(1,500)
(16,947)

31/03/2019
£000
(6,705)
(1,343)
(3,508)
(11,555)
(1,500)
(13,055)

31/03/2020
£000
(4,914)
(744)
(3,508)
(9,165)
(1,500)
(10,665)

31/03/2021
£000
(5,114)
(661)
(3,508)
(9,282)
(1,500)
(10,782)

31/03/2022
£000
(5,314)
(583)
(3,508)
(9,404)
(1,500)
(10,904)

31/03/2023
£000
(5,514)
(562)
(3,508)
(9,583)
(1,500)
(11,083)

6

NEXT STEPS

6.1

This draft Budget Report will be updated as both internal and external issues
become clearer. The finance settlement, including the impact of any 4 year
settlement agreement and adjustments to business rates multiplier and tariff, will be
reflected in the final budget proposals to be presented to Cabinet in February and
Council 26 February 2019.

6.2

The Government has already announced changes to the business rates funding
system for 2020. As well as the increase in local retention of business rates to 75%
through the reduction of the 50% central share of business rates retained by the
Government to 25% and replacement of certain grants the Government is reviewing
the needs formula which will control how much business rates will be retained

Page 70

locally. A national working group including the Department of Communities and
Local Government (DCLG), HM Treasury, the Local Government Association
(LGA), professional organisation and representatives of interested groups such as
the District Council’s Network (DCN) meets to discuss the proposals which are
badged as the Fair Funding Review. These developments will be monitored and
fed into the MTFP as the details are clarified.
Consultation
6.3

This report provides a first draft of the 2019/20 Five Year Budget. This will be
subject to the statutory four week period following the 18 December 2018 Council
meeting.

6.4

The Lake Administration, Planning and Licensing Committees will receive and
consider the elements of the draft Budget Report which are relevant to them. The
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be asked to consider the 18 December
Council first draft Budget Report at its January 2019 meeting.

7.0 Alternative Options
7.1

This report presents alternative options in relation to potential budget pressures and
savings, new capital programme bids, one off revenue growth bids and fees and
charges. The proposals together aim to meet the Council’s statutory duty to set a
balanced Budget for 2019/20.

8.0

Links to Council Priorities

8.1

This report sets out the first draft Budget to enable the consideration of how the
Council’s priorities will be delivered. Setting a sound framework for budget
preparation assists in the delivery of all corporate outcomes. This strategy has been
developed within the context of the MTFP.

9.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
9.1

The draft Budget aims to safeguard the Council’s financial position and ensure a
balanced budget for 2019/20 and an improved position in the years that follow.

Human Resources
9.2

This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council; individual savings and
growth proposals may have direct staffing implications.

Legal
9.3

This report has no direct legal implications at this stage but individual proposals
resulting from this report may have direct legal implications.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
9.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

9.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject
to further consultation. Specific issues that require HSEEIAs will be addressed within
the final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019.

Equality and Diversity
9.6

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

9.7

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject

Page 71

to further consultation. Specific issues that require EIAs will be addressed within the
final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019.
10.

Risk

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Failure to create a balanced
and sustainable budget by
February 2018

Includes: inability to deliver
corporate priorities,
inappropriate spending,
and inappropriate
reductions in services.

Identification of sound
budget guidelines in an
agreed strategy reduces the
risk of an unaffordable
budget and/or precipitate
budget reductions.
Monitoring of progress
against the budget
timetable reduces the need
for last-minute budget
adjustments.

Insufficient staff capacity to
deliver on growth items within
capital and revenue budgets

Inability to deliver services
to expected levels or
additional costs of
temporary staff. Potential
underspends and potential
slippage in expenditure to
subsequent years.

Review resources required
to ensure growth bids are
realistic and deliverable,
including other unavoidable
staffing pressures

Revenue budget and Capital
Programme may not be
integrated and aligned with
Council Plan.

Resources not directed to
achieving corporate
outcomes, leading to
inappropriate spending.

Both the revenue budget
and the Capital Programme
are now embedded in the
corporate planning cycle.
All revenue budgets and
capital programme
schemes are linked to
Council plan priorities

Reduction in funding from
Government is greater than
estimated or announced too
late for adjustments to be
made to budgets

In-year budgetary
pressure and potential
overspending, jeopardising
service delivery.

Close monitoring of
Government
announcements, potential
short-term use of revenue
contingency provision and
General Reserve followed
by review for following year.

Government proposals for
piloting full localisation of
business rates increase
uncertainty of major income
stream.

Income streams will be
insufficient to fund service
delivery.

Monitor Government
proposals for changes in
NNDR legislation.
Maintenance of General
Reserve as a buffer against
unexpected changes in
funding. Monitor changes
in rateable values &
proposals for new
development / closures/
other changes.

Page 72

Contact Officers
Shelagh McGregor, Chief Finance Officer, s.mcgregor@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539
793112
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793147
Lee Hurst, Chief Accountant, lee.hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793599
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Budget process, strategy and timetable

2

MTFP Financial Model

3

Revenue Budget Pressures

4

One-off Revenue Growth Proposals

5

Revenue Savings Proposals

6

Draft Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2023/24

7

Risk Assessment of Level of Reserves

8

Reserves Summary

9

Proposed Pay Grades from 1 April 2019

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Medium Term Financial Plan
approved Council 24 July 2018

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b

The 2019-20 Local Government
Finance Settlement Technical
Consultation

https://tinyurl.com/y772s2zr

2019/20 Budget Update Report to
Cabinet 31 October 2018

https://tinyurl.com/yaedogmo

National Pay Agreement 2018-20:
New Pay Grades report to Human
Resources Committee: 11
December 2018

https://tinyurl.com/yaboz97c

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
29/11/18
29/11/18
29/11/18
29/11/18

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman

Date sent
29/11/18
N/A
N/A
29/11/18
N/A

Page 73

Circulated to
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
29/11/18
N/A
HR Committee 11/12/18
28/11/18
18/12/18

Page 74

Appendix 1

Budget process and strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24
By incorporating the Budget Strategy within the Medium Term Financial Plan the Council
ensures the two parts of the budget process are seamless and consistent. The proposed
budget strategy is shown below:

Proposed 2019/20 Budget Strategy
a. This proposed Budget Strategy explains the approach to setting a balanced
budget for 2019/20 in accordance with the principles set out in the Medium Term
Financial Plan. Through the MTFP updates, corporate issues have been
addressed that will alter the future years position from the budget that was
approved on 27 February 2018.
b. To address future deficits, savings options have been approved for 2018/19 and
for future years. Savings will also be sought to provide funding for budget
pressures to ensure the Council Plan priorities are delivered. Members will be
asked to consider the range of options for savings put forward and which are to be
consulted on. These may include:

c.



increasing income



reducing costs by improving service efficiency including the use of assets



reduction of costs through cutting overheads



alternative service delivery mechanisms



ceasing to deliver services

The detailed service and capital budgets will be reviewed to ensure that these
remain reasonable, with reference to the 2017/18 out-turn, monitoring during
2018/19 and the Service Managers’ knowledge of any changes due to take effect
over the budgeting time frame.

General Fund Services
d. The overall General Fund Service budget strategy is that:


budgets will be updated by Finance for known, externally-driven changes to
salaries including inflation; they will also update capital charges and
recharges;



all establishment changes must be treated as growth bids or savings and
forwarded to Human Resources Committee at the appropriate time;

1

Page 75

Appendix 1



virements and minor (less than £10k gross) cost neutral changes can be made
to base budgets without bid documents;



changes identified as part of the Customer Connect programme and savings
identified as part of the Corporate Savings Exercise will be worked up into
budget amendments as part of the budget process;



all other changes, including those that are statutory or demand led will need to
be brought forward for consideration as part of a budget amendment process,
signed-off by the AD and Portfolio Holder.

e. More detail of the approach is given below:
1

Salary budgets are increased by known incremental advances. The 2018 pay
award covered a two year period beginning April 2018 and included a 2%
increase in April 2019 along with a new pay scale. From April 2020 2% will be
included for inflationary pay awards. A 4% reduction will be allowed for
vacancies and turnover on all salary cost centres; posts which are currently
vacant will be budgeted at the scale mid-point; rates and thresholds for PAYE,
NI and pension deductions will be updated.

2

No allowance will be made for inflation in expenditure budgets unless
contractually committed or unavoidable (e.g. energy, fuel and utility bills); the
current inflation assumptions built in to the base will be reviewed and updated
where necessary. Where a contract is due for re-tendering a review of the
appropriate inflation rate and budget should be undertaken and a budget
pressure bid prepared where necessary.

3

Future year’s income base budgets already have inflationary growth built into
them. Where this cannot be met or managed through reductions in
expenditure, this will be identified as a budget pressure.

4

Fees and Charges need to be consistent with income budgets. This process
must involve:
a.

review of 2017/18 out-turn and any relevant multi-year trends;

b.

review of current 2018/19 budget position;

c.

review of future year income budget; and

d.

assessment of the options for any changes to fees (structures as well as
tariff) and the impact of this on the income budget.

e.

For any service area where income budgets are £100k or more per
annum, this process will be documented. All services will review the
potential for new fees.

Fees and Charges must be consistent with the Council’s Corporate Charging
Policy as approved in July 2017.
2

Page 76

Appendix 1

5

Existing base budgets will be challenged to identify savings that can be
released to offset projected budget deficits.

6

Budget Pressures: the delivery of the Council Plan requires constant review of
budgets to ensure funding is available to deliver the Council Plan priorities.
Any increases to expenditure or decreases to income base budgets (excluding
1 and 2 above) will be either matched corporately by a compensating saving
or will need to be submitted as budget pressures. The de-minimis is set at
£10k.

7

If the budget deficit is balanced then resources may be made available for
growth bids: where growth is to be funded from earmarked resources only
then bids will be accepted as part of the budget process.

8

Reserves will be used in accordance with their agreed policies with the
fundamental principle that they are not used to fund recurring expenditure.

9

Effective consultation will be carried out in accordance with the Corporate
Consultation strategy.

10 Schemes which attract external funding need to be considered with reference
to the Council Plan and capacity to deliver.
11 The Budget assumes a £5 Council tax increase annually from April 2018
onwards. The decision on the actual Council tax each year will be taken by
Council in February and will be influenced by current Government policy and
the influence of this on local government funding.
12 The working balance contributions be reviewed against the current long-term
target minimum General Fund working balance of £1,500,000 by 31 March
2019; any surplus over this target should be transferred to the General
Reserve.

Capital
f.

The approach to setting the capital programme will be as follows:
1 A longer-term view will be taken of spending needs to balance priorities and
resources more evenly over the life of the capital programme. The Council’s
property advisors will be consulted as to the on-going maintenance programme
with the aim being to develop a 10 year programme for recurring capital costs.
2 Bids for new initiatives which recover the investment in a 5 year period will be
prioritised. Capital Bid documents will be required prior to a scheme being
accepted as part of the Capital Programme. These are to be signed-off by the
relevant Portfolio Holder and will be prioritised by Members as part of
developing the 2019/20 to 2023/24 Capital Programme. Bids will be
considered alongside future expected spend on major projects, as indicated in
the capital programme.
3

Page 77

Appendix 1

3

Schemes which attract external funding should be considered in the light of
capacity to deliver these and need to be prioritised with reference to the
Council Plan.

4 Existing schemes within the programme will also be reviewed with reference to
their progress and any external funding restrictions.
5

Capital receipts will only be committed once they have been received.
Although there are known sources of capital receipts (e.g. South Lakes
Housing VAT Shelter/Right to Buy receipts), future aspirations will take into
account the resources required to support unavoidable recurring costs. Right
to Buy receipts will be earmarked for social housing to replace the units sold
that generated the receipt.

Budget Process
g. The approach to the review of the current-year budget, based on budget monitoring,
will continue. The Council’s Efficiency and Value for Money Strategy will be applied.
The 5 year position will be set out as part of the process.
h. Regular budget reports will be provided to inform Members on the emerging issues.
This will integrate information from review of base budgets, higher level factors (such
as the grant settlement) represented in the MTFP and the corporate savings process.
i.

Following approval of these proposals, Assistant Directors, managers and finance
staff will work together on the preparation of budgets based on the strategy set out
(ensuring consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holders). Work will continue to be
undertaken on refining the options for reducing the deficits currently projected and
inclusion in the future Budget reports.

j.

The Draft Budget and Council Plan will be consulted on in accordance with the
Consultation Plan. The Draft Budget will also be subject to the statutory four week
period post the 18 December 2018 Council meeting.

4

Page 78

Appendix 1

First draft timetable
The purposed of this appendix is to set out the timing of key events in the 2019/20 budget
setting process

High level 2019/20 Budget and Council Plan timetable
Task

Who

Due date

Update the Medium Term
Financial Plan and Budget
Strategy

SMT and Cabinet Members/
FS Manager

O&S 13 July (28/6 GK)
Cabinet 18 July (2/7 GK)
Council 24 July (5/7 GK)

Preparation of detailed base
budgets

Budget Holders and
Finance

August – 28 November
Cabinet (5/11 GK)

Service Development
Proposals & Review of
Council Plan

Bid submission deadline
of 30 August 2018

Complete Capital Bid Pro
Forma
Revenue Growth Bid Pro
Forma
Revenue Savings/Increased
Income

Finance, Budget Holders
and Assistant Directors in
consultation with Portfolio
Holders and appropriate
Members

Vehicle and Plant budget
proposals
SMT Bid consideration

Jim Maguire, Chief
Accountant
Special SMT

Informal Cabinet/SMT
Meeting to score the
Revenue and Capital bids –
Budget Prioritisation Meeting
Fees and Charges

Assistant Directors, Cabinet
Members and Finance

6 Sept (4/9 GK)
9am - 1pm
14 Sept (12/9 GK)
10-2pm

Lake Admin.

5 October (20/9 GK)

Updated MTFP
Fees and Charges options

SMT/Cabinet Members
Assistant Directors and
Chief Accountant in
consultation with Portfolio
Holders

Quarter 2 Monitoring

Chief
Accountant/FSM/Finance
PH and Cabinet Members

5

Page 79

Summary of the Budget
process to date to be
included in the 31 Oct
Cabinet Reports (8/10
GK)
As above

Cabinet 31 October
(8/10 GK)

O&S 26 October (GK
11/10),
Cabinet 28/11, and
Council 18/12

Appendix 1

Task
Draft Budget Report
including:
1) Update MTFP
2) Draft 5 year detailed Base
Revenue and Capital
Budgets
3) Draft 5 year Budget
Options for Service
Growth and Savings
(including increases in
income)
4) Draft Fees and Charges
Options
5) Repairs and Maintenance
Budget
1st draft Council Plan

Who

Due date

CFO and Assistant
Directors

Special SMT 8/11 for
Budget Report (GK
6/11) 9 to 12 noon

Budget options aligned to
corporate priorities and draft
Council Plan
Cabinet Members

Cabinet 28 November
(5/11 GK)

Fees and Charges

Licensing

06 Nov (22/10 GK)

1st Draft Budget (as above)

Cabinet (if needed)

12 December (19/11
GK)
3.30pm 18 December
(19/11 GK)

All councilor Budget Briefing
Council (with Draft Council
Plan)
4 weeks statutory
consultation period
commences

From 19 December

Draft Council Plan (including
consultation with
stakeholders)

O&S

11 January (24/12 GK)

1st Draft Budget
Draft Treasury Management
Strategy
Relevant Service Budget
Report extracts including
Fees and Charges

O&S

11 January (24/12 GK)

Planning Committee
Licensing Committee
Lake Admin Committee

03 January (14/12 GK)
15 January (28/12 GK)
25 January (10/01 GK)

2nd Draft Budget including
consideration of O&S and
other consultees comments
on the 18/12 Draft Budget
proposals
2nd Draft Council plan (for
approval including
consultation feedback)

Cabinet if needed for the
Budget

23 January (31/12 GK)

6

Page 80

Appendix 1

Task

Who

Due date

Quarter 3 Monitoring

Chief
Accountant/FSM/Finance
PH and Cabinet Members

O&S 1 Feb,
Cabinet 6 Feb and
Council 26 Feb (GK
14/01)

Formulation of Final Budget
proposal
Final Council Plan (if not
approved in Jan)
Final Treasury Management
Strategy

Cabinet

6 February (14/01 GK)

Approval of Budget, Council
Tax and Treasury
Management Strategy
Adoption of Council Plan

Council

26 February (28/01 GK)

7

Page 81

Appendix 2
The purpose of this appendix is to set out further detail of the MTFP financial model.

Expenditure
Employee Costs
Running Costs
Capital Charges
Customer Connect
Total Service Expenditure
Income
Car Parking Income
Contributions from other Local Authorities and Public
Bodies
General Income
Government Grants
New Homes Bonus
Lake Income
Recycling Credits

Total Service Income
Net Service Budget
Corporate items
Interest Receivable
Interest Payable
Other Govt Grants
Income from Council Tax (net of Parish Precept)
Parish Grant
Retained Business Rates
Direct Revenue Financing
Minimum Revenue Provision
Reversal of Capital Charges
Transfers to/(from) Reserves
Transfers from Reserves: Customer Connect

Total Corporate Items
Projected Surplus/Deficit (-/+)
Customer Connect savings
Projected Surplus/Deficit (+/-) Nov '18

2019/20
£000

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

14,560.3
9,689.2
3,788.8
2,031.0
30,069.3

14,872.2
9,745.5
3,592.9
0.0
28,210.6

15,242.7
9,788.0
3,528.8
0.0
28,559.5

15,603.4
9,918.6
3,502.3
0.0
29,024.3

15,921.9
10,102.5
3,502.3
0.0
29,526.6

(4,532.2)
(38.9)

(4,618.3)
(39.3)

(4,706.2)
(39.6)

(4,795.8)
(68.5)

(4,887.2)
(68.5)

(4,260.2)
(483.9)
(658.1)
(1,459.5)
(1,425.3)
(12,858.1)

(4,326.6)
(560.7)
(28.6)
(1,492.6)
(1,468.1)
(12,534.2)

(4,390.1)
(560.7)
(28.6)
(1,518.6)
(1,512.1)
(12,755.9)

(4,373.2)
(590.7)
0.0
(1,544.2)
(1,557.5)
(12,929.9)

(4,356.4)
(622.3)
0.0
(1,570.2)
(1,604.3)
(13,108.8)

17,211.2

15,676.4

15,803.6

16,094.4

16,417.8

(199.0)
747.8

(214.7)
765.6

(215.1)
780.6

(223.7)
801.3

(232.6)
822.5

(347.9)
(8,904.3)
92.0
(3,536.7)

0.0
(9,182.0)
92.0
(2,756.8)

0.0
(9,462.3)
92.0
(2,241.2)

0.0
(9,745.0)
92.0
(1,725.6)

0.0
(10,030.2)
92.0
(1,328.6)

618.5
751.7

567.3
982.7

451.0
1,021.3

586.5
1,226.0

586.5
1,411.3

(3,788.8)
126.5
(2,031.0)

(3,592.9)
(198.0)
0.0

(3,528.8)
(12.9)
0.0

(3,502.3)
(127.1)
0.0

(3,502.3)
(127.1)
0.0

(16,471.2)

(13,536.8)

(13,115.4)

(12,617.9)

(12,308.5)

740.0
(740.0)
0.0

2,139.6
(1,550.0)
589.6

2,688.2
(1,550.0)
1,138.2

3,476.5
(1,550.0)
1,926.5

4,109.3
(1,550.0)
2,559.3

Page 82

Appendix 3
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue budget pressures from 2019/20 onwards
Revenue Pressures

Page 83

Scheme

Portfolio

AD area

Description

Microsoft
Licenses

Housing,
People and
Innovation

Performance
and Innovation

Enterprise Microsoft licence fee
increase.

Supporting
people grant

Housing,
People and
Innovation

Strategic
Development

Telephony

Housing,
People and
Innovation

Performance
and Innovation

Grounds
maintenance

Environment

Neighbourhood External contractor Living Wage cost
Services
pressure.

New pay
scales

N/A

Corporate item

Impact of 2017/18 2 year pay
settlement. Second year changes to
pay scales.

75,000

Change to block funding for supporting
people from the county council previously was spot funding, resulting
in a reduction in income.
Previous year's telephony budget
reductions not achievable. Increase in
expeniture budget required.

Planning
applications

Housing,
People and
Innovation

Strategic
Development

Due to the changing nature/volume of
planning applications SLDC has
received during 2018/19 it has become
apparent that the current income
budget for planning fee's is not
consistent with the fee's being received
to date. Future years income budgets
already reduced.

Rental income

Economy and
Assets

Strategic
Development

South Lakeland House rental income
reduction due to surplus space not
being let

Other base
budget
adjustments

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

39,000

39,000

39,000

39,000

39,000

13,500

13,500

13,500

13,500

13,500

30,000

30,900

31,827

32,781

33,765

147,961

230,047

254,918

324,374

346,028

14,000

14,000

14,000

14,000

14,000

-8,972

17,614

2,933

5,233

7,133

330,489

365,061

376,178

448,888

473,426
1,994,042

Appendix 4
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue growth proposals for 2019/20 onwards
Name

Business
Support
Programme

Portfolio

Economy and
Assets

Page 84

AD area

Description

Strategic
Development

Provision of Business Support
programme available to South Lakeland
businesses of all sizes and sectors.
Including specialist training, advice and
mentoring for existing businesses and
those looking to start up. This is a further
phase of an ongoing successful initiative
to aid business performance and growth,
and its continuation will help create and
sustain jobs in the district

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

0

0

Appendix 5
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue savings for 2019/20 onwards
Revenue Savings
Name

Portfolio

Corporate Budget
N/A
Review

Page 85

Community Toilet
Finance
Scheme

Kendal Museum

Economy and
Assets

Car Parks

Economy and
Assets

AD area

Description

Corporate item

Review of corporate
budgets including
insurances, energy
and business rates

Performance
and Innovation

Changes to the
Community Toilet
Scheme as per
Cabinet decision
CEX/87

Revenue savings as a
result of transfer of
Kendal Museum to
third party
Increase in base
Neighbourhood budget for volume
Services
changes as identified
in 2018/19 monitoring
Strategic
Development

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

-43,800

-43,800

-43,800

-43,800

-43,800

-19,500

-25,500

-30,500

-30,500

-30,500

-100,000

-100,000

-100,000

-100,000

-100,000

-160,000

-160,000

-160,000

-160,000

-160,000

-323,300

-329,300

-334,300

-334,300

-334,300
-1,655,500

Appendix 6

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24
Programme Spending by Project

2018/19
Approved July
2018

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2018/19
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Play Areas (including community funded schemes and
schemes arising from the Play Space Audit)

341.0

144.2

485.2

Millerground Public Open Space, Access and Play Project

138.3

22.2

0.0

0.0

193.4

Grange Regeneration
Nobles Rest
Ferry Nab Redevelopment Phase 1
Cockshott Point Entrance Improvements

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

585.2

160.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

160.5

0.0

157.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

157.3

-15.3

178.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

178.1

42.6

0.0

42.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.6

Page 86

0.0

1.8

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.8

Waterhead Public Jetty

27.0

4.4

31.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

31.4

Public Realm - The Glebe phase I and II

50.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

Kendal Town Centre Public Realm

19.5

3.1

22.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

22.6

New Road Common (approved Council 12 Oct 2017)

231.0

0.0

231.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

231.0

Kendal Leisure Centre (including changing rooms)

159.6

0.0

159.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

159.6

Wordsworth Trust contribution

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.0

Festival Infrastructure

64.8

0.0

64.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

64.8

Flood impact works Rothay Park

207.2

0.0

207.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

207.2

Footway Lighting

49.4

0.0

49.4

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

174.4

IT Replacements

80.0

0.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

480.0

Customer Connect

290.0

0.0

290.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

590.0

Mobile Working

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

120.0

16.2

0.0

16.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

16.2

South Lakeland House carpark works

377.5

0.0

377.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

377.5

Car park re-surfacing

339.7

0.0

339.7

25.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

364.7

1,169.0

0.0

1,169.0

1,711.0

594.0

499.0

690.0

2,100.0

6,763.0

Town and Car Park signing

Vehicle & Plant Programme (inc bins and boxes)

Appendix 6

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24
Programme Spending by Project

2018/19
Approved July
2018

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2018/19
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Page 87

Disabled Facilities Grants

743.4

191.0

934.4

661.0

661.0

661.0

603.0

603.0

4,123.4

Right to buy replacement scheme

495.0

0.0

495.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

495.0

Affordable & Empty Homes, Town Centre Properties.

359.0

-191.0

168.0

260.0

260.0

260.0

260.0

0.0

1,208.0

S106 funded affordable homes purchase

146.0

0.0

146.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

146.0

Cross-a-Moor junction improvement

300.0

-300.0

0.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

Community Housing Fund

490.0

0.0

490.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

490.0

Kendal Museum contribution

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

85.0

Coronation Hall alterations

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

79.8

149.2

0.0

149.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

149.2

89.1

0.0

89.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

89.1

3.2

29.7

32.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

32.9

19.9

0.0

19.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

19.9

Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

140.0

LIPS (excluding contributions to SLDC property included under
individual properties)

439.1

-143.7

295.4

165.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.2

Grange Promenade Structural works

100.0

0.0

100.0

300.0

300.0

225.0

250.0

0.0

1,175.0

Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extention

214.3

0.0

214.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

214.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

0.0

0.0

240.0

Energy-saving building enhancements
Former Knitware Factory (Ulverston) site clearance
Kendal Town Hall stone work
Castle Dairy flood damage reinstatement

Burton Hertiage Grant Scheme (funded from LIPS)
Kendal Castle (funded from LIPS)

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.0

Car Parking Machines

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

140.0

Parkside Road, Kendal car park

160.4

0.0

160.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

160.4

50.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

1,556.7

-1,556.7

0.0

1,556.7

1,556.7

1,556.7

0.0

0.0

4,670.1

Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations

0.0

0.0

0.0

3,000.0

3,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

6,000.0

New Ulverston Leisure Centre

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

Disabled Toilet improvements
ERDF funded flood defence works
New Bids

Appendix 6

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24
Programme Spending by Project

2018/19
Approved July
2018

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2018/19
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Homeless Accommodation for Families

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Abbot Hall redevelopment

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

Grange Lido

0.0

0.0

0.0

960.0

1,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1,960.0

9,760.3

-1,810.4

7,950.0

10,163.2

16,776.7

3,406.7

1,928.0

2,828.0

43,052.6

461.4

Bids subject to further assessment:
Accomodation review
Car park investments*
Employment site land acquisition
Rydal Road car park bridge
Depot review

Page 88

Total

*subject to detailed review of car parking strategy including potential new car parks at Oxenholme and Arnside, double decking options on existing car parks, provision in Kendal, Braithwaite
fold surfacing and electric charging points

Appendix 6

Capital Funding 2018/19 - 2023/24
Balance April
2018
£000
General
Usable Capital Receipts
VAT Shelter receipt
New homes bonus (capital)****

Estimated
Income
£000

Use in capital
programme
£000

Potential Balance
March 2024
£000

1,744

417

-1,953

831

1,200

-2,031

209
0

1,271

1,138

-2,177

232

Earmarked or allocated
Revenue (LIPS)

Page 89

185

995

-995

185

IT replacement reserve

74

480

-480

74

Major Repairs Reserve

307

800

-868

239

General Revenue contributions

587

1,574

-1,940

221

Cap grants and contributions (inc S106)

593

7,924

-8,467

50

Disabled Facilities Grants

360

3,620

-3,980

0

Community Housing Fund*

2,309

0

-490

1,819

Right to Buy receipt**

3,788

4,200

-6,495

1,493

0

13,177

-13,177

0

12,049

35,525

-43,053

4,522

Borrowing
Funding from borrowing***.
Total

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes, £2.36m less £235k funding revenue budgets
**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable housing.
***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover the cost over the assets' life
****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement

RISK ASSESSEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES: 31/3/19

Potential Risk
Base Budget Contingency for inflation or other
unanticipated rise.
Underachievement of Charges Income targets and
spending exceeds budgets

Financial Balance
Risk
Exposure Required
Score Weighting
(£000)
(£000) Comment (Basis of Financial Exposure)

Page 90

4

50%

301

151 Assumed at 1% of Gross Revenue Budget for 2019/20

4

50%

511

255 Estimate of 5% Customer Receipts Income forecasts for 2019/20

Underachievement of Investment Income

4

50%

130

Insurance Excesses

5

50%

47

Potential costs of legal challenges

2

25%

700

Savings not achieved

2

25%

3,927

Vacancy target not delivered

2

25%

556

Pay increase

3

50%

146

Increase in pension contributions

4

50%

360

Changes to existing government funding regimes

6

75%

1,942

1,457

Changes to existing external grants and contributions

4

50%

974

487

Impact of introduction of Universal Credit

2

25%

200

Changes to Homelessness requirements

2

25%

200

Localisation of business rates

4

50%

227

Council tax reduction scheme

4

25%

64

Risk Management

9

100%

500

Emergency Contingency

9

100%

1,000

1,000

11,785

5,718

TOTALS

Appendix 7

Maximum Risk Based Reserve Balances

65 1% of exposure of average balance of £13m
24 Based on 10% of insurance premia payments
175 Based on estimated cost of a public enquiry or legal challenge
982 Savings target at 31/3/23 including customer connect
139 Staff vacancy target topsliced from salary budgets
73 2% allowance made in budget for pay increase from April 2020. Impact of additional 1% pay award
180 Allowance for 1.5% increase in pension fund contributions at next triennial revaluation
50% of Total of RSG/transitional grant/Rural Services grant/NNDR retained funding, based on 2019/20 estimated
settlement
50% of total revenue grants and contributions received, excluding benefit subsidy and formula grant (based on
2019/20 excluding New Homes Bonus)

50 Increase in homelessness, changes in administration arrangements, reduction in collection rate etc
50 Changes in requirements for homelessness
114 Assume 5% reduction in rateable values based on 2017/18 estimate
16 SLDC share, based on 10% increase in claims based on 2018/19 estimate
500 Monies set aside to meet the one-off costs of risk management
Emergency contingency fund - Council practice to allocate £1m for any unforeseen emergencies. Bellwin scheme
cuts in at 0.2% of net budget and provides for up to 85% of eligible costs.

11,785 Total Financial Exposure

Recommended Risk Base Reserve Balances

5,718 from above

Minimum Risk Based Reserve Balances

2,946 25% of Total Financial Exposure

Projected Level of Reserves
- General Fund Working Balance

1,500 Estimated balance 31/3/19

- General Reserve

4,304 Estimated balance 31/3/19

Projected Level of Reserves (General Fund )

5,804

Projected (Shortfall)/Excess of Current Reserve Balance over Risk Based Reserves

86 assumes use the recommended risk based balance

Appendix 8

Reserves Summary
The purpose of this table is to set out the projected balance on the Council's usable reserves over the MTPF period.
Reserve

General Reserve

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(6,024)

Summary, Purpose and Commentary
Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(4,304)
(4,504)
(4,704)
(4,904)
(5,104) The main use of this reserve in recent years
has been to fund the one-off costs of
flooding, staff redundancy and early
retirements to enable organisational
reorganisation and the discontinuation of
direct provision of services. Unless allocated
for a particular purpose, revenue budget
under-spending and windfalls are added to
the General Reserve. (For more details of
the risk and an assessment of the potential
financial exposure please see the Risk
Assessment of Level of Reserves).
The Medium Term Financial Plan
provisionally assumes a £200,000 annual
contribution to the Reserve, depending on
quantification of the potential impact of these
factors. Any balance on the General Fund
working balance above £1.5m is transferred
to this reserve as part of the closure of
accounts.

Statutory Duties Reserve

(150)

(138)

(138)

(138)

(138)

(138) Part of General Reserve earmarked for
certain purposes: use delegated to SMT &
reported as part of Corporate Financial
Monitoring. Includes £50k legal costs/byelection contingency, £40k planning legal
costs contingency, £60k enforcement legal
costs contingency

Flooding Costs Reserve

(14)

0

0

0

0

0 Part of General Reserve earmarked for the
costs of remediation of December 2015
floods, use delegated to Chief Finance
Officer by Council February 2016

(438)

(10)

0

0

0

0 Part of General Reserve earmarked for
revenue budgets carried forward from
2017/18 to future years.

0

0

0

0

0

0 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on building control.

(95)

0

0

0

0

0 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on local land charges.

12

12

12

12

12

12 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

(76)

(76)

(76)

(76)

(76)

(76) Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

Misc Licensing Reserve

32

32

32

32

32

32 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

Gambling Licensing Reserve

13

13

13

13

13

13 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

Community Housing Fund

(2,309)

(1,819)

(1,819)

(1,819)

(1,819)

Commuted Sums Reserve

(153)

(3)

(3)

(3)

(3)

Carry-forward Reserve

Building Control Fee Income
Reserve
Local Land Charges Reserve

Hackney Carriage Licensing
Reserve
Licensing Act Reserve

Page 91

(1,819) income received from Government for
Community Housing Fund not spent in year.

(3) Income received under various s106
agreements not spent in year

Reserve

Cumbria NDR Pool Income
Reserve

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(1,302)

Summary, Purpose and Commentary
Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(1,150)
(1,150)
(1,150)
(1,150)
(1,150) Income from Cumbria NNDR pool,
earmarked for economic development

Cumbria NDR Pool volatility
Reserve

(166)

(166)

(166)

(166)

(166)

Customer Connect Reserve

(1,301)

(1,981)

(0)

(0)

(0)

Debt Redemption Reserve

(455)

0

0

0

0

Economic Development Fund

(167)

(220)

(220)

(220)

(220)

(220) To encourage economic development in the
District and to ensure that unused funds in a
particular year can be carried forward.

General Fund Major Repairs
Reserve

(307)

(177)

(207)

(237)

(267)

(297) To fund major repairs and maintenance to
General Fund properties that are not
capitalisable and would be difficult to
accommodate in the annual planned
maintenance programme. The Reserve:
• acts as a backstop for emergency major
repairs
• accumulates funds as necessary to meet
an abnormal year in maintenance terms,
• is able to assist in meeting regular
maintenance costs.

(74)

(74)

(74)

(74)

(74)

(74) To fund the replacement of hardware and
software with a preference for the updating of
the corporate and networking infrastructure.

Kendal Employment Dev. Fund

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0) Assistance to eligible developing firms in the
Kendal area

LABGI

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5) To fund non-recurring initiatives that
contribute directly to one or more of the
Council’s priority initiatives, with a preference
for economic development. This fund is now
practically fully committed and should be
closed once the committed spend is
achieved.

Local Arts Strategic Partnership

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30) Monies provided towards Arts Strategy and
related activities carried forward for use in
subsequent years.

LSVT Environmental Warranties

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282) To pay for environmental insurance until
2032 relating to warranties given as part of
the housing transfer.

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(1,457)

(1,085)

(903)

(690)

(482)

IT Replacement Reserve

Marshall Hooper Reserve

New Homes Bonus Reserve

Page 92

(166) Share of NNDR pool income retained by pool
to offset potential future deficits
(0) To fund the implementation of the Customer
Connect Project, initially using the Customer
Connect budgets from 2016/17 revenue
budgets not spent during 2016/17.

0 Underspend on budget for interest payment
and MRP due to changes in capital
programme, originally set aside for future
costs of debt repayment, proposed transfer
to Customer Connect Reserve

(37) Monies left to the Council as a bequest to be
used for housing for the elderly in Grange

(331) New reserve to enable forward funding of
eligible schemes through the Council's New
Homes Bonus protocol

Reserve

NNDR Surplus Reserve

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(1)

Summary, Purpose and Commentary
Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1) Timing gap between recognising s31 grant
and recognising offsetting NDR collection
fund deficits.

Planning Delivery Grant Fund

(18)

0

0

0

0

0 Monies provided by Planning Delivery Grant
in 2009/10 carried forward for use in a
subsequent years. This source of grant
funding has now been discontinued and the
fund will be closed when the current balance
is spent.

Revs and Bens Replacement
Reserve

(10)

0

0

0

0

0 Transferred to Customer Connect Reserve
following replacement of Revs & Bens
system in 2017/18

(587)

(7)

440

340

240

140 Monies provided from revenue to support the
Capital Programme & fund expenditure that
may not be capitalisable: annual contribution
£100k

(46)

(46)

(46)

(46)

(46)

(46) Initiatives to enable the provision of
affordable housing: transfer of unspent
balance at end of year

0

0

0

0

0

Total Reserves excluding
working balance
GF Working balance

(15,447)

(11,555)

(9,165)

(9,282)

(9,404)

(9,583)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500) Buffer against unforeseen & emergency
expenditure in-year, inflationary demands,
adverse cash flow, inability to use capital
resources.

Total Usable Reserves

(16,947)

(13,055)

(10,665)

(10,782)

(10,904)

Revenue Funds for Capital

Second Homes Income Reserve

Social Lettings Reserve

Page 93

0 income from the social lettings scheme set
aside for potential losses or repair bills

(11,083)

Proposed SCP and Grades

Appendix 9

Ths purpose of this appendix is to show the salaries associated with the old and new SCPs and the proposed new
grades to apply from 1 April 2019
Old
SCP
66
65
64
63
62
61
60
59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45
44
43
42
41
40
39
38
37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28

Old Salary
60,125
59,309
58,493
57,677
56,860
56,047
55,230
54,415
53,597
52,535
51,477
50,453
49,504
48,558
47,578
46,614
45,659
44,697
43,757
42,806
41,846
40,858
39,961
39,002
38,052
37,107
36,153
35,229
34,106
33,136
32,233
31,401
30,756
29,909
29,055
28,221
27,358
26,470
25,463

27
26

24,657
23,866

25

23,111

24
23

22,401
21,693

22
21

21,074
20,541

20
19
18
16/17
14/15
12/13
10/11
8/9
6/7

19,819
19,446
18,870
18,319 - 18,672
17,681 - 17,972
17,173 - 17,391
16,863 - 17,007
16,626 - 16,755
16,394 - 16,495

New
SCP
60
59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45
44
43
42
41
40
39
38
37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

New New Hourly
Salary
Rate
61,328 31.78793
60,495 31.35616
59,663 30.92492
58,831 30.49367
57,997 30.06138
57,168 29.63169
56,335 29.19993
55,503 28.76868
54,669 28.33639
53,586 27.77505
52,507 27.21577
51,462 26.67412
50,494 26.17238
49,529 25.67220
48,530 25.15439
47,546 24.64435
46,572 24.13950
45,591 23.63103
44,632 23.13395
43,662 22.63117
42,683 22.12373
41,675 21.60126
40,760 21.12699
39,782 20.62007
38,813 20.11781
37,849 19.61814
36,876 19.11381
35,934 18.62555
34,788 18.03154
33,799 17.51892
32,878 17.04154
32,029 16.60148
31,371 16.26042
30,507 15.81259
29,636 15.36113
28,785 14.92003
27,905 14.46390
26,999 13.99430
26,317 13.64080
25,801 13.37334
25,295 13.11107
24,799 12.85398
24,313 12.60207
23,836 12.35483
23,369 12.11277
22,911 11.87538
22,462 11.64265
22,021 11.41407
21,589 11.19015
21,166 10.97090
20,751 10.75579
20,344 10.54484
19,945 10.33802
19,554 10.13536
19,171
9.93684
18,795
9.74195
18,426
9.55068
18,065
9.36357
17,711
9.18008
17,364
9.00022

New
SCP
Q 60
841 59
58
57
56
P
815
55
840
54
53
52
O
750
51
814
50
49
48
N
710
47
749
46
45
44
M
679
43
709
42
41
L
40
637
39
678
38
37
36
K
595
35
636
34
33
J
544
32
594
31
30
29
I
511
28
543
27
26
H
478
25
510
24
23
22
G
21
443
20
477
19
18
17
16
F
401
15
442
14
13
12
E
358
11
400
10
9
8
7
D
316
6
5
4
C
243
3
2
1

Proposed Grades

Page 94

Item No.11
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Friday, 11 January 2019
Cabinet, Wednesday 6 February 2019
Council, Tuesday 26 February 2019

Treasury Management and Capital Strategies
2019/20 - 2023/24
Portfolio:

Finance Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer)

Report Author:

Lee Hurst – Chief Accountant, Claire Read – Financial Services
Officer

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Treasury Management Framework 2019/20 to 2023/24 first published
on the forward plan published on 2 October 2018

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

It is expected that the Treasury Management Strategy and Capital Strategy for
2019/20 – 2023/24, will be approved by Council on 26 February 2019. The Strategies
ensure that the Council have robust arrangements for investing and only borrows
where it is appropriate and affordable.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet:Note and recommend that Council approve the Treasury Management and
Capital Strategies and the authorised borrowing limits within the report.

2.2

It is recommended that Council:Approve the Treasury Management and Capital Strategies and the authorised
borrowing limits within the report

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

This report sets out the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and Capital
Strategy for 2019/20 – 2023/24. The Strategies have been updated to reflect the
2019/20 budget and capital programme.

3.2.

The framework fulfils five key legislative requirements:

Page 95

•

•

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA)’s Prudential
Code requires the Council to set a number of Prudential Indicators setting
out the expected capital activities and financing.
The Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy, sets out how the
Council will pay for capital assets through revenue each year.

•

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement sets out how the Council’s
treasury service will support the capital decisions taken, the day to day
treasury management and the limitations on activity through treasury
prudential indicators;

•

The Investment Strategy which sets out the Council’s criteria for choosing
investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss.

•

The Capital Strategy, to demonstrate that the authority takes capital
expenditure and investment decisions in line with service objectives and
properly takes account of stewardship, value for money, prudence,
sustainability and affordability

This report reflects the budget proposals considered by Council on 18 December
2018 for consultation.
3.3.

The Council is required to set a balanced annual revenue budget. The timing and
nature of income and expenditure within the budget needs to be understood and
managed so that cash is available when it is required. This is a key function of
the treasury management operation.

3.4.

The second key function is the funding of the Council’s capital plans. These
capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council. This may
involve arranging new or replacement loans or the planned use of cash balances.

3.5.

CIPFA defines treasury management as:
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of
the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks. ”

3.6.

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals.
These reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before
being recommended to the Council. These are as follows:
•

Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy (this report), setting
out the expectations for a minimum of three years, linked into the Council’s
wider budget setting process.

•

A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report – This will update Members with
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as
necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or
whether any policies require revision. This report is incorporated into the
Council’s quarterly corporate monitoring reports.

•

An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared
to the estimates within the strategy.

Page 96

3.7.

The Treasury Management Strategy is based on the proposed capital
programme for 2018/19 – 2023/24 as considered by Council on 18 December
2018.

3.8

The Capital Strategy includes potential capital expenditure not currently in the
proposed programme and arising from the review of Council Assets. The
resulting indicators in the Capital Strategy are therefore higher as it includes
potential expenditure and borrowing which may not arise, depending on future
decisions around service delivery. The Capital Strategy will assist in ensuring the
Council has funds available in the future to meet future opportunities which may
arise. It also considers organisational issues including how the capital
programme will be prioritised and considerations including capacity to deliver.

3.9

The appendices to this report contain the strategy for 2018/19 which covers two
main areas:
Treasury management Issues (appendices 1 and 2)
• prudential and treasury indicators;
• the Minimum Revenue Provision statement.
• high level Treasury Management Policy statement;
• prospects for interest rate;
• the current treasury position;
• the borrowing strategy;
• policy on borrowing in advance of need;
• the investment strategy including creditworthiness policy;
• non treasury management investments
• policy on use of external service providers;
• Indicative lending list based on the proposed investment strategy.
Capital issues (appendices 3 and 4)
• Capital Strategy;
• the Capital Programme 2018/19 – 2023/24

3.10. The Treasury Management and Capital Strategies cover the requirements of the
Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA Prudential Code, the Ministry of Housing
and Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) MRP Guidance, the CIPFA
Treasury Management Code and the MHCLG Investment Guidance. They are
mainly technical documents that also reflects the decisions made as part of the
wider budget process.
3.9.

It is important to note that the key controls around placing investments focus on
counterparty security, liquidity and then yield, in that order, in line with the CIPFA
Code.

3.10. In addition to the credit rating criteria, the report also details the type of
investment instruments officers can use. The instruments selected are designed
primarily to ensure preservation of capital and sufficient liquidity, with yield to be
considered once security and liquidity are assured.

Page 97

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The strategies have been prepared in consultation with the Council’s Treasury
advisor (Link Asset Services). The draft strategies will be considered by Cabinet
and Overview and Scrutiny Committee before the final version is presented to
Council for approval on 26 February 2019.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

No alternative options are proposed; the Treasury Management Framework is
driven largely by legislation and external guidance and reflects the 2019/20
budget.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

These arrangements enable the priorities as set out in the Council Plan to be
achieved. Performance indicators are included within the report.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Although concerned with good financial management, the report in itself has no
direct financial implications.

Human Resources
7.2

This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council.

Legal
7.3

This report provides a framework for treasury management in accordance with
legislation. There are no other legal implications.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
has not been carried out as this policy does not directly impact individuals

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
has not been carried out as this policy does not directly impact individuals

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Reporting is not compliant with
the statutory guidance.

Members do not have the
opportunity to scrutinise
the Treasury function.

Full year TM report to be
presented to Scrutiny,
Cabinet and Council.

Investment and borrowing
activity is outside of the
approved TM framework.

The Council is exposed to
an unauthorised level of
Treasury related risk.

Robust governance
arrangements to control
day to day operations,
based on the approved
strategy, with regular
reporting of compliance.

Long-term borrowing is taken at

Council incurs

Treasury advice is taken

Page 98

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

rates that are not advantageous.

unnecessary interest
costs.
Council occurs
unnecessary premium
costs
Loss of principal due to
default by borrower.

on optimum timing of
borrowing
Treasury advice is taken
on optimum timing of loan
repayment
Stringent and cautious
lending criteria are built
into the Council’s
Investment Strategy.
Monitoring performance of
in-house investments

Repayment of long term
borrowing at rates that are not
advantageous
Investment of principal sums
with insecure counterparties.

Investment returns are volatile
and may fall short of
expectations.
Borrowing is not affordable.

Underperformance and
underachievement of
budgeted income levels.
Financial pressure on the
General Fund.

Brexit - there is considerable
uncertainty at the time of
preparation of this report (late
December 2018) as the format
of Brexit is yet to be determined
and as such this report assumes
no changes to inflation or
interest rates

Potential increased costs
and lost opportunities

Prudent borrowing in
accordance with the
Strategy and indicators.
Forecast borrowing costs
are factored into the
2019/20 Budget and
Medium Term Financial
Plan.
Close monitoring of
developments surrounding
Brexit

Contact Officers
Claire Read, Financial Services Officer; Tel 01539 793152;
Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk
Lee Hurst, Chief Accountant; Tel 01539 793599; Lee.Hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 to 2023/24

2

Example 2019/20 Counterparty List

3

Capital Strategy for 2019/20 to 2023/24

4

Capital Programme for 2018/19 to 2023/24

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

2019/20 Revenue and Capital
budget

On the same agenda

Page 99

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
18/12/2018
18/12/2018
18/12/2018
20/12/2018

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
18/12/18
N/A
N/A
21/12/2018
N/A
21/12/2018
N/A
11/1/2019
6/2/2019
26/2/2019

Page 100

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20Appendix 1
2023/24

Contents
1. Introduction ............................................................................................................... 2
2. The principles underpinning the Treasury Strategy .................................................. 2
3. Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2018/19 – 2023/24 ............................................ 4
4. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement ........................................... 10
5. Treasury Management Policy Statement ................................................................ 11
6. Economic Background and prospects for Interest Rates ........................................ 12
7. Current Portfolio position ........................................................................................ 13
8. Borrowing Strategy ................................................................................................. 14
9. Investment Strategy ................................................................................................ 16
10. Non Treasury Management Investments ................................................................ 21
11. Knowledge and Skills ............................................................................................. 23
12. Review and monitoring of the Treasury Management Strategy .............................. 24

1

Page 101

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
1.

Introduction

1.1.

The council is required to set a balanced annual revenue budget. The timing and
nature of income and expenditure within the budget needs to be understood and
managed so that cash is available when it is required (Liquidity). This is a key
function of the Treasury Management operation.

1.2.

The second key function is the funding of the Council’s capital plans. These capital
plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council. This may involve
arranging new or replacement loans or the planned use of cash balances.

1.3.

This Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 – 2023/24 sets out the Council’s
approach to ensuring cash flows are adequately planned, with surplus money
being invested in low risk counterparties (Security), providing access to funds
when required (Liquidity) before considering optimising investment return (Yield).

Links to other plans and strategies
1.4.

2.

This Treasury Management Strategy links to, and is consistent with, the following
other plans and strategies:


Council Plan



Service Plans & Strategies



Medium Term Financial Plan



Capital Strategy

The principles underpinning the Treasury Strategy

Background
2.1.

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy has been set in line with:
2.1.1. The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act)
2.1.2. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
Guidance on Local Government Investments (2018)
2.1.3. MHCLG Capital Finance: guidance on minimum revenue provision (2018)
2.1.4. Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Prudential
Code (2017) and Treasury Management Code of Practice (2017)

2

Page 102

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24

2.2.

The strategy also has regard to:
2.2.1. The Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II (MIFID II),
2.2.2. International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 Financial Instruments

Key Requirements
2.3.

The above requires the Council to set out its Treasury Management Strategy for
borrowing and to prepare an annual investment strategy setting out the council’s
policies on managing its investments and for giving priority to the security and
liquidity of those investments.

2.4.

This strategy fulfills the following key requirements, setting the:


Prudential Indicators; setting out the expected capital activities and
managing its capital finances.



Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy; which sets out how
the Council will pay for capital assets through revenue each year.



Treasury Management Strategy Statement; which sets out how the
Council’s treasury service will support the capital decisions taken, the day to
day treasury management and the limitations on activity through treasury
prudential indicators;



Investment Strategy; which sets out the Council’s criteria for choosing
investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss.

This report reflects the budget proposals considered by Council on 18th December
2018 for consultation.
2.5.

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports
each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals. These
reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before being
recommended to Council. These are as follows:

 Treasury Management and Investment Strategy - setting out the
expectations for a minimum of three years, linked into the Council’s wider
budget setting process.

 A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report – This will update Members with
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as
necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or
whether any policies require revision. This report is incorporated into the
Council’s quarterly corporate monitoring reports.

3

Page 103

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24


An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to
the estimates within the strategy.

3.

Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2019/20 – 2023/24

3.1.

The Council’s Capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury
management activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in
prudential indicators, which are designed to assist Member’s overview and confirm
capital expenditure plans

Capital Expenditure
3.2.

This indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans based on
the current capital programme projections and potential capital expenditure. This
is summarised below along with the sources of finance.

Table 1: Capital expenditure and financing
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Estimate
£000
7,949.95

Estimate
£000
10,163.20

Estimate
£000
16,776.70

Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000
£000
£000
3,406.70 1,928.00 2,828.00

Capital receipts

1,851.65

4,360.00

3,746.80

260.00

260.00

0.00

Grants

1,910.70

2,445.00

5,037.70

2,287.70

628.00

628.00

Revenue and Reserves

2,804.30

1,647.20

1,198.20

360.00

350.00

100.00

Increased borrowing
need

1,383.30

1,711.00

6,794.00

499.00

690.00

2,100.00

Capital expenditure

2022/23

2023-24

Financed by:

The Council’s borrowing need
3.3.

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s underlying
need to borrow for a capital purpose. This is different to any actual borrowing. If
the Council generates the same amount of resources in a year to meet its capital
expenditure requirements, then there is no change to the CFR. However, if the
Council spends more than the resources it generates in year, the CFR will
increase as in effect the Council has created a borrowing requirement to bridge
the gap in the resources it needs and the resources it has.

4

Page 104

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
3.4.

Although the CFR does not necessarily reflect actual borrowing taken from an
external source, it can reflect the use of internal cash resources, i.e. internal
borrowing.

3.5.

Where the Council has a positive CFR, i.e. an underlying need to borrow, it must
make provision to repay that ‘debt’. This is known as Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP). The Council’s current policy is set out in the MRP Strategy in part 4 of this
report (page 10).

3.6.

The current forecast for the CFR and MRP based on the current capital
programme is shown in the table below:
Table 2: CFR projection

Capital
Financing
Requirement

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023-24

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

CFR opening

£000
17,992.00

£000
18,636.10

£000
19,595.40

£000
25,406.70

£000
24,884.40

£000
24,348.40

Add unfinanced
capital

1,383.30

1,711.00

6,794.00

499.00

690.00

2,100.00

Less MRP

(739.20)

(751.70)

(982.70)

(1,021.30)

(1,226.00)

(1,411.31)

18,636.10

19,595.40

25,406.70

24,884.40

24,348.40

25,037.09

CFR closing

Prudence and Sustainability
3.7.

Prudence and sustainability year on year are addressed through the prudential
indicators for external debt, which must be set and revised taking into account
their affordability.

3.8.

External borrowing must not (except in the short term to support operational cash
flow) exceed the underlying level of indebtedness (the CFR) and is intended to
control any ‘borrowing to on-lend’ or borrowing to support the revenue account.

3.9.

Table 3 confirms that the Council expects to be compliant with this indicator and
should remain under-borrowed across the period. The increase in borrowing
reflects the prudent assumption that the unfinanced element of the capital
programme would be funded through external debt. The revenue budget for
interest cost has been prepared on this basis to ensure that these investment
plans are affordable. However, the actual cash need may be met from reduced
investment balances.

5

Page 105

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24

Table 3: Gross debt and the CFR

CFR at 31 March
Borrowing at 31
March
(Under)/over
borrowing
Investments at 31
March

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023-24

Estimate
£000
18,636.10

Estimate
£000
19,595.40

Estimate
£000
25,406.70

Estimate
£000
24,884.40

Estimate
£000
24,348.40

Estimate
£000
25,037.09

12,800.00

12,800.00

25,406.70

24,884.40

24,348.40

25,037.09

(5,836.10)

(6,795.40)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(17,500.51) (12,745.89) (21,453.09) (24,814.79) (28,854.89) (35,000.30)

Affordability
3.10. The fundamental objective in determining the affordability of the authority’s capital
plans is to ensure that the total capital investment remains within sustainable
limits.
3.11. This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long
term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.
The estimates are presented in the table below:
Table 4: Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
2018/19
Estimate
7.98%

2019/20
Estimate
7.77%

2020/21
Estimate
13.49%

2021/22
Estimate
13.78%

2022/23
Estimate
15.75%

2023-24
Estimate
17.71%

3.12. This shows that the amount of revenue budget spent financing debt is rising over
the MTFP period. The main reasons for this trend are:
a. MRP is rising to the level required to sustain the vehicle and plant programme.
Older vehicles were grant funded whereas replacement vehicles are financed
through borrowing.
b. The net revenue stream (Council Tax, retained rates and non-service grant) is
forecast to reduce over the period although reductions in grant are partially offset
by increases to income from local taxation. And;
c. Increase in borrowing costs due to new property schemes within the capital
programme which are likely to require funding from borrowing.

6

Page 106

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment
decisions on council tax
3.13. This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to
the capital programme compared to the Council’s existing approved commitments
and current plans. This reflects interest income foregone on the use of reserves
and additional costs where schemes are funded by external borrowing.
Table 5: Incremental impact of capital investment

Council tax - band D

3.14

2018/19
Estimate
£8.17

2019/20
Estimate
£8.11

2020/21
Estimate
£13.08

2021/22
Estimate
£7.85

2022/23
Estimate
£7.32

2023-24
Estimate
£11.66

The Change shown is reflective of the revised timescales for existing projects and
new capital schemes, along with their anticipated use of reserves and potential
borrowing requirements. This also shows the impact of rising MRP as discussed in
3.13 above.

Treasury Indicators for External Debt
3.15. Within the Prudential Code are a number of key treasury management indicators
which are focused on gross debt and involve setting limits on external debt.
3.16. The Operational Boundary; is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally
expected to exceed. This is set at a level consistent with the borrowing need
(CFR).
3.17. The Authorised Limit; reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired,
could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. This
is a limit on the maximum level of debt, beyond which external debt is prohibited
and the limit can only be set or revised by Full Council.
3.18. The authorised limit is set as the borrowing need (CFR) plus any anticipated
further borrowing that may be required to manage operational cash balances. This
may be required, for example, at year end when operational cash balances are at
their lowest due to the timing of local taxation collection.

7

Page 107

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
Table 6: Authorised limit and operational boundary

CFR at 31 March

2018/19
Estimate
£000
18,636.10

2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000
£000
£000
£000
19,595.40 25,406.70 24,884.40 24,348.40

Under borrowing
31 March
Add operational cash
limit
Operational
boundary

(5,836.10) (6,795.40)

Authorised limit

2023-24
Estimate
£000
25,037.09

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

18,700.00

19,600.00 25,500.00 24,900.00 24,400.00

25,100.00

24,915.00

25,815.00 31,715.00 31,115.00 30,615.00

31,315.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

Treasury Management Limits on Activity
3.19. In addition to the limits on external debt there are three more debt related treasury
activity indicators. The purpose of these is to restrain the activity of the treasury
function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of any
adverse movement in interest rates. The indicators are:


Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit
for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments



Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous
indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates



Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are
required for upper and lower limits.

8

Page 108

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
Table 7: Interest rate exposure limits
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

£m Principal

Upper

Upper

Upper

Upper

Upper

Limits on fixed interest
rates based on net debt

Authorised Authorised Authorised
limit
limit
limit

Interest Rate Exposures

Authorised Authorised
limit
limit

Limits on variable interest
rates
-

Investments

-

Borrowing

£20m

£20m

£20m

£20m

£20m

£0m

£0m

£0m

£0m

£0m

Lower

Upper

Under 12 months

0%

25%

12 months to 2 years

0%

25%

2 to 5 years

0%

25%

5 to 10 years

0%

100%

10 to 20 years

0%

100%

20 to 30 years

0%

100%

30 to 40 years

0%

100%

40 years and above

0%

100%

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2018/19

Other indicators
3.20. The Council has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice and Cross Sectorial Guidance Notes.

9

Page 109

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
4.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement

4.1.

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund
capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum
revenue provision - MRP).

4.2.

MHCLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve
an MRP Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to
councils, so long as there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to
approve the following MRP Statement.

4.3.

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be
Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be:


4.4.

Previous practice - MRP will follow the practice outlined in former CLG
regulations (option 1); this option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in
the borrowing need (CFR) each year on eligible debt.

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including Private Finance
Initiative and finance leases) the MRP policy will be


Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in
accordance with the proposed regulations (this option must be applied for any
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction). This option provides
for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s life.
This method allows for annual payment to be calculated as equal instalments or
set as an annuity (increasing payments) over the life of the asset. The exact
repayment calculation will be determined on a case by case basis.



For Finance leases, the MRP will be calculated to match the capital repayment
identified within the annual lease payments.

10

Page 110

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
5.

Treasury Management Policy Statement

5.1.

This organisation defines its treasury management activities as:

5.2.

“The management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks”.

5.3.

This organisation regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of
risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management
activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury
management activities will focus on their risk implications for the organisation and
any financial instruments entered into to manage these risks.

5.4.

This organisation acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide
support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is
therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury
management, and to employing suitable comprehensive performance
measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management.

11

Page 111

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
6.

Economic Background and prospects for Interest
Rates

6.1.

The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of
their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.

6.2.

It is important to note that interest rate projections are estimates at a point in time
and are subject to constant revision. However, in terms of managing interest rate
risk, it is important to be aware of expert opinion around the magnitude, timings
and direction of travel on rates. Link Asset Services’ view on rates is presented in the
table below:

6.3.

On 2 August the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the Bank of England
increased the Bank Rate, above 0.5% for the first time since the 2008 financial
crash, to 0.75%. At subsequent meetings, the MPC left the Bank Rate unchanged,
and it is thought unlikely that the MPC would increase the Bank Rate, ahead of the
deadline in March for Brexit. The next increase in the Bank Rate is currently
forecast to be in May 2019, followed by increases in February and November
2020, before ending up at 2.0% in February 2022.

6.4.

Growth in the UK was 0.4% in Quarter 2; quarter 3 is expected to be robust at
around +0.6% but quarter 4 is expected to weaken from that level. However, the
Chancellor’s Budget announcements of fiscal stimulus are thought likely to add
0.3% to growth going forward.

6.5.

UK inflations as measured by the Consumer Price index (CPI) has fallen to 2.4%
in October 2018 from 3.1% in November 2017. The latest quarterly inflation report
in November 2018, forecasts inflation to still be marginally above its 2% target two
years ahead.

6.6.

Unemployment is currently at 4.1% just above the long term low and wage
inflation has picked up to 3.2%. Real earnings growth is currently at 0.8% the
highest since 2009.

6.7.

Rising bond yields in the US have caused some upward pressure on bond yields
in the UK and other developed economies. However, the degree of that upward
pressure has been dampened by how strong or weak the
12

Page 112

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
prospects for economic growth and rising inflation are in each country, and on the
degree of progress towards the reversal of monetary policy away from quantitative
easing and other credit stimulus measures.
6.8.

From time to time, gilt yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to
exceptional levels of volatility due to geo-political matters (such as Brexit), a
sovereign debt crisis, emerging market developments or sharp changes in investor
sentiment. Such volatility could occur at any time during the forecast period.

6.9.

Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external
influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts, (and MPC decisions), will be
liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and developments
in financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments,
especially in the EU, could also have a major impact. Forecasts for average
investment earnings beyond the three-year time horizon will be heavily dependent
on economic and political developments.

7.

Current Portfolio position

7.1.

The Council currently has borrowings of £12.8 million from the Public Works
Loans Board at an average rate of 4.3% with the first maturity not due until
2046/47.

7.2.

As at 12/12/2018, the council had £38 million invested, made up of £26 million of
operational cash balances and £12 million of core cash balances. Operational
balances relate to short term cash management, whereas the core cash balances
reflect longer term strategic resources (such as the General Fund balance and
useable capital receipts).

13

Page 113

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
8.

Borrowing Strategy

8.1.

Chart 1 below brings to together and shows the Council’s external debt position,
Capital Financing Requirement and debt limits together.
Chart 1 Borrowing v Debt limits

Debt limits
35000
30000

£000

25000
External Debt

20000

CFR at 31 March

15000

Operational
boundary

10000
5000
0

Year

8.2.

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position, where borrowing
is lower than the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). As a result we are using
internal cash balances to fund the capital program. This is estimated to be £5.8
million in 2018/19.

8.3.

To put this into perspective the Annual Accounts for 2017/18 shows the Council
has £24.6 million in useable reserves. Assuming the level of reserves stay the
same, then we are currently using 23.6% of cash supporting the reserves for
internal borrowing to support the capital programme.

8.4.

The policy of avoiding new borrowing and minimising cash balances has been a
prudent strategy while investment returns are low, helping to keep borrowing costs
down and minimising counterparty risk. This policy will be kept under review to
manage the risk of changes to the availability of internal cash and future borrowing
costs.

8.5.

The projections include an assumption that the “under borrowing” will be reversed
in 2020/21. This is to ensure that the medium term projections are prudent, it does
not mean that the Council will definitely borrow (up to the CFR) in that year.

14

Page 114

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24

8.6.

The Assistant Director (Resources) will continue to monitor this position through
out the year and will respond to changing circumstances. As required by the
Prudential Code, the MTFP reflects the cost of potential further borrowing and
sufficient budget is available to ensure that, if requried, an increased borrowing
requirement is affordable. Any decisions taken will be reported to members at the
next available opportunity.

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need
8.7.

The Council will not borrow in advance of its needs in order to on lend. Any
decision to borrow will be within the approved CFR estimates, and will be
considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated, and that
gross long term borrowing will not exceed the CFR.

8.8.

Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraints that:

8.9.



It will be limited to no more than 50% of the expected increase in borrowing
need (CFR) over the five year planning period and then only where there is
sufficient certainty that expenditure will be incurred to prevent borrowing
exceeding the CFR at any year end within the planning period; and



The Council would not look to borrow more than 6 months in advance of need.

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reports.

15

Page 115

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
9.

Investment Strategy

9.1.

As a holder of public funds, the Council recognises its responsibility to the prudent
management of public funds, and follows relevant Government and CIPFA
guidance.

9.2.

The Council’s overiding policy objective is to prudently manage council funds;
ensuring risks are minimised whilst maximising returns. The Councils investment
priorities, in order, are:

9.3.



Security of the invested capital



Liquidity of the invested capital



Yield (return on investment), which is in line with security and liquidity

In order to minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum
acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy
counterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of
concentration risk.

Investment Counterparty Selection Criteria
9.4.

The Assistant Director (Resources) will maintain a counterparty list in compliance
with the following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to Council for
approval as necessary. These criteria provide an overall pool of counterparties
considered high quality which the Council may use.

9.5.

This Council will apply the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset
Services. This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit
ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard
and Poor’s. The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the
following overlays:

9.6.



credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;



Credit Default Swaps (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in
credit ratings;



Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy
countries.

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of
CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of bands which indicate the
relative creditworthiness of counterparties and provide a suggested duration for
investments.
16

Page 116

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
9.7.

The Council will apply a duration overlay to banks selected under the credit
worthiness service, such that the investment duration will be the lessor of 1 year
for UK banks, or 190 days for non Uk banks, and Links’s suggested duration with
the exception of part nationlised banks.

9.8.

With the exception of the UK, the minimum soverign rating is AAA by 2 out 3 of the
main rating agencies. The minimum counterparty credit rating criteria is a Short
Term rating (Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a Long Term rating of A-.

9.9.

In addition the the council will also invest in;


Building Societies



Multilateral Development Banks and Supranational Organisations



Money Market Funds



Other collective investment schemes

provided they meet the criteria laid out in Table 5 Counterparty limits.
9.10. Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of Link’s external service. In additon the
Council will also use market information, economic data and information on any
external support for banks to help support its decision making process.
9.11. The time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s counterparty list are
as follows:
9.12. Table 8: Counterparty limits
Criteria

UK Banks

Money

Time

Limit

Limit

£3m

1 year

UK Banks

Yellow, Purple, Blue
or Orange
Red

£3m

6 Months

UK Banks

Green

£3m

100 Days

Non UK Banks

£3m

190 Days

Non UK Banks

Yellow, Purple, Blue
or Orange
Red

£3m

6 Months

Non UK Banks

Green

£3m

100 Days

Banks

No colour

£0m

n/a

Building Societies

Top 5 by Asset size
and assets> £2 billion
Top 6-10 by Asset
size and assets> £2
billion

£3m

6 months

£2m

6 months

Building Societies

17

Page 117

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
Criteria

Money

Time

Limit

Limit

Debt Management Account Deposit
Facility - DMADF

n/a

Unlimited

6 months

UK Gilts, Treasury Bills

n/a

Unlimited

5 years

Local Authorities

n/a

£5m

2 years

Money Market Funds
- LVNAV
- CNAV Government Funds

AAA

£5m

Liquid

Multilateral Development Banks and
Supranational Organisations

AAA

£3m

2 years

Other Collective Investment Schemes
e.g. Enhanced Money Market Funds &
Bond Funds

AAA S1/V1

£2m

1 year

9.13. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all three agencies through its use of
the Link’s credit worthiness service. In addition a full review will be carried out at
least monthly.
9.14. In the event of a downgrade resulting in a counterparty or investment scheme no
longer meeting the Council's minimum criteria, its further use for new investments
will be withdrawn immediately.
9.15. Any changes in counterparty ratings or other criteria that put the counterparty
below the minimum criteria, whilst holding a deposit for the Council, will be brought
to the attention of the Assistant Director (Resources) and the Portfolio Holder with
responsibility for Finance. Further action will be decided on a case-by-case basis.
9.16. Specified investments are investments less than 1 year in duration meeting the
criteria for high quality above.
9.17. Non specified investments are all investments with a duration of 1 year or greater
and/or not meeting the definition of high credit quality. A maximum of 75% of
investments can be non-specified.
9.18. A copy of the Council’s counterparty list under the above criteria is attached as
Appendix 2

18

Page 118

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
Other Considerations
9.19. In addition to the credit criteria, due care will be taken to consider the country,
group and sector exposure of the Council’s investments.
9.20. In part the country selection will be chosen by the credit rating of the sovereign
state in Banks 1 above. In addition no more than £3 million will be placed with
counterparties from any one non-UK country at any one time up to a maximum of
£9 million being held in non UK countries at any one time (excluding Money
Market Funds, Multilateral Development Banks and Supranational Institutions and
Collective Investment Schemes).
9.21. Limits in place above will apply to a group of companies
9.22. Sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness, to help mitigate
against concentration risk. This is the risk of having a significant proportion of your
investments in one sector of the market and that sector failing
9.23. To ensure sufficient liquidity, detailed cash flow forecasts will be kept by the
financial services team to give as accurate a picture as possible of the movement
and timing of income & expenditure and the resulting daily cash balances.
9.24. When placing investments, officers will refer to the cash flow forecast to determine
the best duration for the investment.
9.25. Funds invested for greater than 365 days are set with regard to the Council’s
security and liquidity requirements. They are based on the lowest expected
availability of funds after each year-end (ie the core balances) within the five year
plan. To allow longer term investment of the core balances, subject to satisfying
security and liquidity, the Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and
limit:Table 9 Maximum principal sums invested for more than 365days
£m

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Principal sums invested >
365 days

£12m

£12m

£12m

£12m

£12m

9.26. When placing investments the Council will seek to optimise returns commensurate
with the management of the associated risks, limiting its investment activities to
the approved financial instruments. The financial instruments authorised for use by
officers are;
a. Fixed Deposits; deposits at a fixed interest rate for a fixed duration.
b. Certificate of Deposits; similar to fixed deposits but tradeable in a
19

Page 119

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
secondary market
c. Government Treasury Bills & Gilts; UK Government debt instruments
d. Call accounts; instant access accounts with banks at a variable interest
rate,
e. Notice accounts; Savings accounts where by we have to give the
bank/building society notice to withdraw our money.
f. Money Market Funds; collective investment accounts with a Low Volatility
Net Asset Value) LVNAV or constant net asset value, generally these allow
investors instant access and have a variable interest rate.
g. Other Collective Investment Schemes; similar to money market funds these
are funds with a variable net asset value, which can invest in a wider range
of instruments. These are generally instruments whereby the Council would
invest for longer periods and receive a greater return over time, though the
value of the fund can modestly fluctuate.
9.27. Under the Markets in Financial Derivatives 2 (MIFID II) directive the Council is
classified as a retail investor with the option to opt-up to professional status,
provide certain conditions are met. The Council meets these conditions and has
decided to Opt-up to Professional Status to maintain the level of access to the
money markets it has always had.

20

Page 120

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
10. Non Treasury Management Investments
10.1. Some investments are taken out for non-treasury management purposes, and
these are held primarily or partially to generate a profit. Examples of this include
investment properties and loans supporting service outcomes.

Investment Properties
10.2. The Council has 23 Investment properties including retails units and industrial
sites. Which at 31st March 2018 had a value of £4.97 million and after expenses
earned the council £0.325 million in income, creating a return on investment of
9.3% overall. This will vary year on year depending on maintenance required.
10.3. As part of the changes to the Treasury and Prudential Codes of Practice and the
MHCLG guidance a list of non-treasury investments is being compiled and will be
kept up-to-date.
10.4. In the future such investments will have to go through a robust procedure to
ensure that they fit in with the council’s plans, are affordable and sustainable. The
principles of the procedure are:


Ensuring the investment meets the councils risk profile



Ensuring the portfolio of assets is prudently balanced to minimise risk of
income fluctuations and loss of capital value.



Ensuring the rate of return exceeds that which could be achieved through
traditional sources of investments



Establishing a comprehensive due diligence process to minimise risks
including use of specialist external advice where appropriate



Establishing appropriate governance arrangements to ensure decisions are
made in a streamlined and efficient way.

Service Loans
10.5. The Council makes loans for a number of reasons primarily economic
development and investment objectives or to help meet other Council priorities.
These are often outside of normal commercial terms The Council in making these
loans ensure they are prudent and secured by:






Carrying out a full independent due diligence exercise
Using an expected loss model to assess the impact on the balance budget
requirement if the loan was at risk
On-going monitoring of the loans
Ensuring adequate security is in place
The financial exposure of the Council is proportionate to its size.
21

Page 121

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24


All loans are agreed by the Council’s Cabinet

10.6. The loans are accounted for as soft loans and the Council’s accounting policy on
soft loans is described in the Accounting Policies of the Statement of Accounts.
10.7. The balance outstanding of these loans as at 31st March 2018 was £110,877.
10.8. Once such loan that the Council has agreed to make is to South Lakes Housing
and other housing providers. The aim of the loan is to provide low cost finance in
order to enable a house building programme to meet the Council Plan target of
delivering 1000 affordable homes for rent. A loan of £6m over 25 years has been
agreed in principle by the Council’s Cabinet.

Commercial Activity
10.9. The Council is also developing a Commercial Strategy because reductions in
funding mean the Council Should look at whether it is appropriate to engage in
commercial activities to supplement its income and support service delivery.
However, to minimise risk of potential loss of income in the longer term it needs to
ensure that any investment opportunities are based upon sound decision making
that consider the future likelihood of investment income reducing.

22

Page 122

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
11. Knowledge and Skills
11.1. The Council utilises the knowledge and skills of its internal officers when
considering treasury investment and borrowing decisions and where necessary it
also relies on the expert knowledge of specialist external advisors.

Staff
11.2. Finance staff are professionally qualified to advise the Council on all areas of
finance. Included within the team is an officer with specialist knowledge of
Treasury Management. All finance staff undertake Continuous Professional
Development and they maintain knowledge and skills through regular technical
updates from appropriate bodies and attending specialist courses.
11.3. Staff follow Treasury management Practices (TMP) approved by the Assistant
Director (Resources).

Members
11.4. Training is given to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on treasury management,
this training annually, this training is also open to all members to assist in their
understanding of the treasury management strategy

External Advice
11.5. The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as it treasury advisors and part of
their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.
11.6. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not
placed upon our external service providers
11.7. It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources.
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by
which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and
subjected to regular review

23

Page 123

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/202023/24
12. Review and monitoring of the Treasury Management
Strategy
12.1. This Treasury Management Strategy is based on the proposed Budget and Capital
Programme for 2019/20 to 2023/24 which will be approved by Council on the 26th
February 2019. The strategy will be monitored and reviewed throughout the
financial year and may be updated if required.

24

Page 124

Appendix 2
2018/19 Sample Counterparty List
Counterparty

Capita
Creditworthiness
Methodology
suggested
durations

SLDC
Monetary
Limit

SLDC
Duration
(lower of 190
days or Capita
duration)

Australia (AAA)
Banks

Australia and New Zealand
Banking Group Ltd.

O - 12 mths

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

O - 12 mths

Macquarie Bank Ltd.

R - 6 mths

National Australia Bank Ltd.

O - 12 mths

Westpac Banking Corp.

O - 12 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

190 Days
190 Days
6 Months
190 Days
190 Days

Canada (AAA)
Banks

Bank of Montreal

O - 12 mths

Bank of Nova Scotia

O - 12 mths

Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce

O - 12 mths

National Bank of Canada

R - 6 mths

Royal Bank of Canada

O - 12 mths

Toronto-Dominion Bank

O - 12 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

190 Days
190 Days
190 Days
6 Months
190 Days
190 Days

Denmark (AAA)
Banks

Danske A/S

R - 6 mths

3.00
Million

6 Months

Germany (AAA)
Banks

BayernLB

R - 6 mths

DZ BANK AG Deutsche ZentralGenossenschaftsbank

O - 12 mths

Landesbank Baden-Wuerttemberg

R - 6 mths

Landesbank Berlin AG

O - 12 mths

Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen
Girozentrale

O - 12 mths

Landwirtschaftliche Rentenbank

P - 24 mths

Norddeutsche Landesbank
Girozentrale

G - 100 days

NRW.BANK

P - 24 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

6 Months
190 Days
6 Months
190 Days
190 Days
190 Days
100 Days
190 Days

Luxembourg (AAA)
Banks

European Investment Bank

P - 24 mths

Page 125

3.00
Million

2 Years

Building
Society Rank
by Asset
(size)

Counterparty

Capita
Creditworthiness
Methodology
suggested
durations

SLDC
Monetary
Limit

SLDC
Duration
(lower of 190
days or Capita
duration)

Netherlands (AAA)
Banks

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

R - 6 mths

Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten
N.V.

P - 24 mths

Cooperatieve Rabobank U.A.

O - 12 mths

ING Bank N.V.

R - 6 mths

Nederlandse Waterschapsbank
N.V.

P - 24 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

6 Months
190 Days
190 Days
6 Months
190 Days

Singapore (AAA)
Banks

DBS Bank Ltd.

O - 12 mths

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp.
Ltd.

O - 12 mths

United Overseas Bank Ltd.

O - 12 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

190 Days
190 Days
190 Days

Sweden (AAA)
Banks

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken
AB

O - 12 mths

Svenska Handelsbanken AB

O - 12 mths

Swedbank AB

O - 12 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

190 Days
190 Days
190 Days

Switzerland (AAA)
Banks

Credit Suisse AG

G - 100 days

UBS AG

O - 12 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million

100 Days
190 Days

United Kingdom (AA)
AAA rated
and
Government
backed
securities

UK Local Authorities

Not Applicable

5.00
Million

2 Years

Debt Management Office

Not Applicable

Unlimited

Unlimited

Multilateral Development Banks

Not Applicable

Supranationals

Not Applicable

UK Gilts

Not Applicable

Page 126

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
Unlimited

2 Years
2 Years
Unlimited

Building
Society Rank
by Asset
(size)

Counterparty

Banks

Building
Society

Nationalised
and Part
Nationalised
Banks

Capita
Creditworthiness
Methodology
suggested
durations
Abbey National Treasury Services
PLC

R - 6 mths

Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)

O – 12 Mths

Barclays Bank PLC (NRFB)

R - 6 mths

Barclays Bank PLC (RFB)

R - 6 mths

Close Brothers Ltd

R - 6 mths

Goldman Sachs International
Bank

R - 6 mths

Handelsbanken Plc

O – 12 Mths

HSBC Bank PLC (NRFB)

O - 12 mths

HSBC Bank Plc (RFB)

O - 12 mths

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets
Plc (NRFB)

R - 6 mths

Lloyds Bank Plc

O - 12 mths

Santander UK PLC

R - 6 mths

Standard Chartered Bank

R - 6 mths

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation Europe Ltd

R - 6 mths

UBS Ltd.

R - 6 mths

Nationwide Building Society

R - 6 mths

Yorkshire Building Society

G - 100 days

Coventry Building Society

R - 6 mths

Skipton Building Society

N/C - 0 mths

Leeds Building Society

R - 6 mths

Principality Building Society

N/C - 0 mths

West Bromwich Building Society

N/C - 0 mths

Newcastle Building Society

N/C - 0 mths

Nottingham Building Society

N/C - 0 mths

Cumberland Building Society

Not Applicable

National Westminster Bank PLC
(RFB)
The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
(RFB)

B – 12 Months
B – 12 Months

Page 127

SLDC
Monetary
Limit
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
2.00
Million
2.00
Million
2.00
Million
2.00
Million
2.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

SLDC Duration
(lower of 190
days or Capita
duration)

Building
Society
Rank by
Asset (size)

6 Months
1 Year
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
1 Year
1 Year
1 Year
6 Months
1 Year
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months

1 (£207 Bln)

6 Months

2 (£43 Bln)

6 Months

3 (£33 Bln)

6 Months

4 (£16 Bln)

6 Months

5 (£14 Bln)

6 Months

6 (£7 Bln)

6 Months

7 (£5 Bln)

6 Months

8 (£3.4 Bln)

6 Months

9 (£3.3 Bln)

6 Months

10 (£2.1
Bln)

1 Year
1 Year

Counterparty

Capita
Creditworthiness
Methodology
suggested
durations

SLDC
Monetary
Limit

SLDC Duration
(lower of 190
days or Capita
duration)

United States (AAA,AAA,AA+)
Banks

Bank of America N.A.

O - 12 mths

Bank of New York Mellon, The

P - 24 mths

Citibank N.A.

O - 12 mths

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.

O - 12 mths

Wells Fargo Bank, NA

O - 12 mths

3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million
3.00
Million

190 Days
190 Days
190 Days
190 Days
190 Days

Key to Capita creditworthiness methodology suggested durations:
Y – Yellow, 60 months
P – Purple, 24 months
B – Blue, 12 months
O – Orange, 12 months
R – Red, 6 months
G – Green, 100 days
N/C – no colour, 0 days

Page 128

Building
Society
Rank by
Asset (size)

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3

Contents
1.

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 2

2.

The principles underpinning the Capital Strategy ..................................................... 3

3.

Capital Expenditure .................................................................................................. 7

4.

Debt, Borrowing and Treasury Management ......................................................... 14

5.

Commercial Activity ................................................................................................ 23

6.

Other Long-Term Liabilities and Investments ......................................................... 24

7.

Knowledge and Skills ............................................................................................. 26

8.

Review and monitoring of the Capital Strategy ...................................................... 27

1

Page 129

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
1.

Introduction

1.1.

This Capital Strategy sets out the Council’s approach to meeting community and
service needs through its capital investment programme. The Council’s priorities,
objectives and corporate outcomes are set out in its refreshed Council Plan which
is due to be approved on 26 February 2019. The Plan is supported by a set of
annual service plans. This Capital Strategy describes how the deployment of
capital resources will contribute to the achievement of these objectives.

1.2.

Capital spending is strictly defined and is principally incurred in acquiring,
constructing or improving physical assets such as buildings, land, vehicles, plant
and machinery. It also includes grants and advances to be used for capital
purposes. The Council’s policy on capitalisation is included in the Accounting
Policies of the Statement of Accounts, approved by Audit Committee. The policy
states the de-minimus level set by the authority for capital expenditure is £10,000.
Individual schemes must therefore be £10,000 and above to be included in the
authorities capital programme. The only exception is where the funding for the
project is external and requires the scheme to be capital.

1.3.

The Council owns property, plant and equipment assets, investment properties
and heritage assets with a total net book value of £73m at March 2018. Council
assets include 43 car parks, 186 parks and open spaces, 9 cemeteries, 5 depots,
3 sports centres, 3 public offices and 2 public halls. The Council also owns a large
number of commercial properties and agricultural land used to generate income.

1.4.

The Capital Strategy is written following guidance included in the CIPFA
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 2017 (The Prudential
Code) and is required to be approved by Full Council. It forms part of the Council’s
integrated revenue, capital and balance sheet planning.

Links to other plans and strategies
1.5.

This Capital Strategy links to, and is consistent with, the following other plans and
strategies:


Council Plan



Service Plans & Strategies



Medium Term Financial Plan



Property and Land Management Strategy



Car Park Strategy



Risk Management Strategy
2

Page 130

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3

2.



Procurement and Commissioning Strategy



Treasury Management Strategy

The principles underpinning the Capital Strategy

Overarching objectives
2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

The Council’s Capital Strategy is to deliver a capital programme that:


Contributes to the Council Plan, and the Council’s vision, values,
strategic objectives and priorities



Is closely aligned with the Council’s asset management plans



Supports service-specific and other plans and strategies



Is affordable, financially prudent and sustainable, contributes to better
value for money

The Capital Strategy will be delivered through:

Effective political and corporate leadership


Adequate and effective performance management arrangements



Clearly defined processes for building and monitoring the capital
programme



Clear policies on financing capital expenditure



Effective risk management arrangements



A clear procurement protocol

In prioritising the Capital Programme, particular emphasis will be given to
schemes that:


Achieve the Council’s priorities



Improve performance against national and local targets



Improve efficiency and effectiveness in service delivery, including
through partnership working



Generate or increase income streams



Promote effective asset management, including Disability Discrimination
Act (DDA) and Health & Safety issues

3

Page 131

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3

4

Page 132

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
The Prudential Code
2.4. The Prudential Code was introduced by the Local Government Act 2003 and has
since been updated in 2017. It sets out the concepts of affordability,
sustainability and prudence as they apply to capital expenditure. To demonstrate
that these objectives have been met the Code sets out the prudential indicators
that must be used, and the factors that must be taken into account. These are
designed to support and record local decision-making in a manner that is publicly
accountable. This includes the setting of the prudential indicators by Council in
February and the monitoring of treasury management through the Corporate
Quarterly Financial Monitoring process. The prudential indicators are discussed
in section 4 of this Capital Strategy and the concepts of affordability,
sustainability and prudence as they apply to capital expenditure are discussed in
the following paragraphs.

Affordability
2.5.

The fundamental objective in determining the affordability of the authority’s capital
plans is to ensure that the total capital investment remains within sustainable
limits. This includes considering the impact on Council Tax. The Council is
required to take into account all its current and forecast resources, together with
the capital expenditure plans and revenue income and expenditure forecasts for
the coming year and the following two years: The Council has opted to forecast up
to five years ahead. This is done on a rolling basis, with regard to risk analysis and
risk management strategies. Any significant known variations beyond this time
frame must also be considered.

Prudence and Sustainability
2.6.

Prudence and sustainability year on year are addressed through the prudential
indicators for external debt, which must be set and revised taking into account
their affordability.

2.7.

The key indicator of prudence laid down by the Code is that net external borrowing
should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing
requirement in the preceding year, plus the estimates of any additional capital
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. This ensures
that, over the medium term, net borrowing will only be for capital purposes.

2.8.

It is also prudent to carry out treasury management activities in accordance with
good practice, and the Prudential Code sets a number of indicators to address
this.

Value for Money
2.9.

It is important that best value for money is obtained from capital investment. The
Council is committed to making continuous improvements to
5

Page 133

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
processes and practices to increase value for money. Those that are embedded or
being developed include:

Improvements to procurement


Investing to improve performance and/or generate efficiency savings (spend
to save)



Working with partners to improve efficiency

2.10. In assessing capital bids the Council first considers whether the proposed capital
investment represents the most efficient way of delivering the desired outcomes,
i.e. whether there are alternative approaches to resolving the problem that provide
greater value for money.

Financial Procedure Rules
2.11. Capital budgets, expenditure and financing are the subject of various Financial
Procedure Rules within Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution. Capital expenditure is
only to be incurred in line with key Financial Procedure Rules as follows:


Capital budgets shall be prepared in the form of a rolling five-year Capital
Programme. The Chief Finance Officer shall review and estimate the capital
resources available to the Council over the five year period. Bids for the use
of capital resources shall be in a form agreed by the Cabinet, to include an
appropriate level of project appraisal and an assessment of the revenue
consequences of the capital scheme. The Cabinet shall be responsible for
the allocation of resources within a viable Capital Programme for submission
to the Council for approval. (3.4);



Capital expenditure shall not be incurred unless it forms part of the approved
Capital Programme and has been allocated and expenditure account by the
Chief Finance Officer (8.1).

6

Page 134

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
3.

Capital Expenditure

Governance process for approval and monitoring of capital
expenditure
Capital programme project appraisals
3.1.

All bids for inclusion in the capital programme are supported by a project
appraisal, the preparation of which is the responsibility of the budget holder or
project manager. The project manager signs the appraisal to confirm that their
Assistant Director, Director and Portfolio Holder are aware of and support the
scheme.

3.2.

All bids for inclusion in the following years programme are considered according to
a set of objective criteria to assist with the prioritisation of schemes and the
allocation of funds. This ensures that, in a context of limited resources, the
community vision and strategy and the Council’s vision, values, objectives and
priorities form the framework for decisions about investment priorities, and that
capital allocations are made using clear impartial criteria.

3.3.

The prioritisation process is linked directly to the information given on the
completed project appraisals, with weighting given to schemes that strongly
support the Council’s objectives and priorities, and those that fulfil an urgent legal
or statutory requirement.

3.4.

In summary, each bid can be rated on the extent to which the project contributes:


The Council’s objectives and priorities



Legal commitments or statutory duties, including DDA & Health & Safety
issues



Equalities



Improvements in performance indicators



Efficiency savings



Value for money



The delivery of service objectives



Effective Asset Management



Extent of ring fenced or specific funding



Levels of financial risk involved



Impact on the revenue budget and income generation
7

Page 135

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
3.5.

Prioritisation of the bids enables officers to put forward a recommended
programme that is within available resources. The weighting within the scoring
framework will be reviewed on an annual basis as part of a policy of continuous
improvement and to take into account any relevant factors. Bids for work required
to meet a statutory or legal obligation will be given a high priority.

3.6.

The prioritised programme is for guidance only. Members are responsible for
agreeing the capital programme and have the discretion to include or exclude
schemes as they deem appropriate.

3.7.

Project appraisals have been completed for capital programme bids since 2014.
The appraisal pro-forma has been designed to ensure that the information
gathered is sufficient in order to make decisions based on the criteria set out
above. Project appraisals must consider carefully the deliverability of projects to
avoid slippage of the capital programme.

3.8.

The project bid template and project prioritisation and assessment criteria are
included as Appendix A to this Capital Strategy.

Monitoring the capital programme
3.9.

Project managers are responsible for the proper and effective control and
monitoring of their projects, including financial monitoring. This includes ensuring
that:
 Only capital expenditure is charged to the capital project;


Proper procurement processes are followed, in accordance with the
Contract Procedure Rules;



Only expenditure properly attributable to the scheme is coded to the
scheme;



The scheme expenditure is contained within the agreed budget, and that
any ‘unavoidable’ variations are dealt with appropriately;



Realistic expenditure profiles are determined;



A realistic forecast outturn for the financial year and the project as a whole
are calculated and kept under regular review;



Any slippage of expenditure from current to future years is identified;



Any grants or third party funding is applied for and all grant conditions met



The source of any revenue funding is identified.

3.10. Project managers are also responsible for carrying out project reviews following
scheme completion. The finance team is responsible for providing support and
advice to assist project managers in managing and monitoring their capital
budgets. It also has a key role in consolidating and co-ordinating
8

Page 136

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
the monitoring information that is required for reporting purposes. This involves
reporting to Corporate Management Team, Cabinet and Council.
3.11. The capital programme position is reported to Senior Management Team, Cabinet
and Council as part of Corporate Financial Monitoring report and covers the latest
programme and any amendments to be notified or approved, expenditure to date,
and the forecast outturn. It also outlines the financing position and any steps
needed to deal with potential financing difficulties.
3.12. At year-end, an outturn report and carry-forward requests are taken to Cabinet
and Council. These will include an analysis of programme slippage to the following
year, including the reasons for that slippage and how it is to be financed.

Changes to the Agreed Programme
3.13. The programme for the coming year is set and agreed by Council prior to 1st April
(at the February Council as part of the Budget process), but it is essential to also
have a process that then allows for changes during the year.
3.14. Changes may be required as a result of proposed additions to the programme,
amendments to existing schemes or deletions from the programme. For example
tenders may come in above or below estimate; difficulties may be encountered in
implementation, which require a change of approach; funding may need to be
released to support another more urgent priority.

Proposed additions to the programme
3.15. The need to add a scheme to the programme usually arises from either access to
additional funding, such as a grant or third party contribution, or as a response to
an unforeseen urgent issue (often related to legal or health and safety concerns).
3.16. In order to bid for an addition to the programme, a project appraisal must be
completed and signed off in the usual way. The funding for the project must be
identified at this stage. Where there is no additional funding to support the bid,
resources must be identified from within the existing programme. The prioritisation
of the proposed addition will need to be considered with reference to any reserve
list of projects, as well as projects already in the programme but not yet complete.
3.17. The request for the addition will either be incorporated into the regular Corporate
Quarterly Financial Monitoring report to Cabinet or Council, or approved by
Cabinet and Council.

Amendments to existing schemes
3.18. If the proposed amendment is one of substance, which results in a scheme
materially different from the original project appraisal, then the original project
must be withdrawn, and a new project appraisal completed to support the new bid.
If, however, the substance of the scheme remains the same, then
9

Page 137

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
the change can be dealt with through the Corporate Quarterly Financial Monitoring
process or as a budget virement if within the limits set in the Financial Procedure
Rules, which is currently up to £60,000.
3.19. Formal variations to budgets for existing projects must be completed and
authorized in the following circumstances:


Forecast total scheme outturn is materially in excess of budget



Additional funding has become available to support a scheme



A forecast overspend is to be funded by a forecast underspend in
another project



Funding is released due to a forecast underspend on a scheme



A scheme is to be withdrawn from the programme

Long-term view of capital expenditure plans
3.20. Proposals for new areas of capital expenditure were considered by Portfolio
Holders on the 5 October 2018 and were prioritised with reference to the funding
available. The resulting proposed capital programme for 2019/20 to 2023/24 is
presented at Appendix 4. A summary of the proposed capital expenditure up to
2023/24 is shown below:
Table 1: Summary Draft Capital Programme Expenditure
2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

£000
7,950.0

£000
10,163.2

£000
16,776.7

£000
3,406.7

£000
1,928.0

£000
2,828.0

Total
2018/19 to
2023/24
£000
43,052.6

3.21. There were a number of significant capital bids prioritised. These are the schemes
where outline approval has already been given, where expenditure relates to
health and safety issues or where works are unavoidable and include:
a)
b)

c)
d)
e)

£6.0m in relation to loans to housing associations utilising the Right to Buy
receipts accumulated to date;
£9.2m in relation to Ulverston Leisure Centre, in line with the business case
supporting the Cabinet decision to proceed with the next stage of work
including design to RIBA stage 3;
£461k in relation to developing additional homelessness accommodation
for families
£100k contribution to redevelopment at Abbot Hall
£1.9m in relation to Grange Lido based on the light-touch proposals.

10

Page 138

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
3.22. There are a number of significant potential additional service areas and schemes
to be added to the capital programme that have yet to be prioritised and allocated
a capital and or revenue budget. These schemes would lead to additional capital
budget costs on top of those presented in Appendix 4. These include:
a)

b)

c)

Schemes arising from the Car Parking Study in Kendal and Oxenholme as
well as engineering appraisals undertaken on surfacing options at
Braithwaite Fold, additional capacity options at Rydal Road, Ambleside and
Rayrigg Road Car Park, Bowness and the siting of electric charging points.
South Lakeland House and Kendal Town Hall accommodation review to
provide a fit for purpose and fit for future office accommodation and much
needed Town Hall refurbishment. The capital cost of any improvements is
likely to be significant and a Business Case for the work will be provided to
enable an affordable solution to be delivered.
The review of the Kendal depot location is also not included as yet. A report
setting out the likely financial implications and benefits and timescales will
be provided in due course.

3.23. While currently not prioritised and so not allocated budget, these schemes must
be included as part of the overall longer-term capital plans, as they are
aspirational should suitable funding be identified. Therefore the table below
summarises expenditure for all potential identified schemes through to 2033/34.
These schemes will be subject to detailed business case assessment before they
become part of the approved draft capital programme and will only be selected
with overall consideration of the affordability of the capital programme.
Table 2: Summary Aspirational Long-Term Capital Programme Expenditure
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Estimate
£000
7,949.95

Estimate
£000
10,290.20

Estimate
£000
25,651.85

Estimate
£000
12,906.40

Estimate
£000
7,004.59

Estimate
£000
5,908.87

24/25 –
28/29
Estimate
£000
11,951.60

29/30 –
33/34
Estimate
£000
31,984.70

2018/19 –
2033/34
Estimate
£’000
113,648.16

3.24. For those schemes that have been prioritised, a summary of the draft capital
programme funding is in the table below. This shows the proposed use of capital
resources in support of the proposed capital programme (see Appendix 4).

11

Page 139

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
Table 3: Capital Funding 2018/19 to 2023/24
Balance April
2018
£000
General
Usable Capital Receipts
VAT Shelter receipt
New homes bonus (capital)****

Estimated
Income
£000

Use in capital
programme
£000

1,744

417

-1,953

Potential
Balance March
2024
£000
209

831

1,200

-2,031

0

1,271

1,138

-2,177

232

Earmarked or allocated
Revenue (LIPS)

185

995

-995

185

IT replacement reserve

74

480

-480

74

Major Repairs Reserve

307

800

-868

239

General Revenue contributions

587

1,574

-1,940

221

Cap grants and contributions (inc S106)

593

7,924

-8,467

50

Disabled Facilities Grants

360

3,620

-3,980

0

Community Housing Fund*

2,309

0

-490

1,819

Right to Buy receipt**

3,788

4,200

-6,495

1,493

0

13,177

-13,177

0

12,049

35,525

-43,053

4,522

Borrowing
Funding from borrowing***.
Total

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes, £2.36m less £235k funding revenue
budgets
**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable
housing.
***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover
the cost over the assets' life
****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement

Asset Management Planning
Strategic Asset Management Planning
3.25. Until recently the Council’s approach to asset management was set out in the
Corporate Asset Strategy. A thorough review of property assets was completed by
the Council’s external property services advisors in December 2017. This in turn
led to the development of a Property and Land Management Strategy (approved
by Cabinet on 28 November 2018), which will help guide and advise the Council
on land and building investment, disposals and acquisitions. The key aims of this
strategy are:


Ensuring investment is prioritised in the right areas with the ever
increasing financial pressure on Local Authorities.



Ensuring the Council has a balanced estate looking at the medium and

12

Page 140

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
long term commitments of the Council and in the wider context of other
assets in public ownership.


Ensuring that there is a sufficient governance structure in place to
allow the estate to flex with ease and consistency.



Ensuring that the decisions achieve a balance of requirements for
capital receipts, investment and revenue income generation.

3.26. The strategy also lead to the establishment of the Strategic Asset Management
Plan Board (SAMP Board) which will provide oversight and governance and
ensure a more strategic approach to the management of its property estate.

Building Asset Maintenance Programme
3.27. The Council utilises a property and asset management system to record data on
the property portfolio to assess building condition and maintenance requirements.
This data is then used to set the Council’s annual building maintenance
programme and budget for both reactive and planned maintenance. The Council
also holds a Major Repairs Reserve to cover the costs of major repairs and
renewals of Council assets.
Table 4: Building Repairs and Maintenance Budgets for 2019/20 to 2023/24
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
542.0
541.5
541.0
541.0
541.0

Vehicle and Plant Replacement Programme
3.28. The Council also maintains a Vehicle and Plant and Replacement Plan which
outlines the anticipated replacement lifecycle for the main items of fleet and plant it
requires to operate services. This plan is updated annually and is fed into the
budget process to determine the capital requirement.

IT Replacement Programme
3.29. The Council also maintains an IT Replacement Plan which outlines the anticipated
replacement lifecycle for the main items of information technology equipment it
requires to operate services. While major IT projects are funded through the
capital programme, routine replacement is funded from the IT Replacement
Reserve.

13

Page 141

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
4.

Debt, Borrowing and Treasury Management

Borrowing
4.1.

The Local Government Act 2003 introduced new flexibilities into the capital
expenditure and financing rules governing local authorities. The new rules,
contained in the ‘Prudential Code’, allow local authorities to set their own limits
with regard to borrowing undertaken to support capital expenditure. Additional
borrowing may now be undertaken, but a key objective of the Prudential Code is to
ensure that the capital investment plans of the local authority are, and can be
shown to be, prudent, affordable and sustainable.

4.2.

In order for borrowing to be prudent, affordable and sustainable, there must be an
identifiable, long-term source of revenue funding for the associated revenue (debt
financing) costs. Ideally this will come from revenue savings or additional income
arising directly from the capital scheme. For example, refurbishment of a building
may generate maintenance and/or energy savings, or the building of a car park
could generate income through charges. The cost of borrowing therefore should
be offset by savings within the service that uses the asset.

4.3.

The Prudential Code sets out the prudential indicators that must be used, and the
factors that must be taken into account to ensure investment plans are prudent,
sustainable and affordable. These are designed to support and record local
decision-making in a manner that is publicly accountable.

4.4.

A summary of the Council’s capital expenditure aspirations based on the latest
capital programme proposals along with further additional longer-term and
unprioritised projects is summarised below along with the sources of finance. It
must be stressed that not all these expenditure plans will be accepted and taken
forward. The plans are designed to identified all areas of potential expenditure so
that they may be assessed and in terms of both suitability and affordability.

Table 5: Potential Capital expenditure and financing

Capital
expenditure
Financed by:
Capital receipts
Grants
Revenue and
Reserves
Increased
borrowing need

Estimate
£000

24/25 –
28/29
Estimate
£000

29/30 –
33/34
Estimate
£000

7,004.59

5,908.87

11,951.60

31,984.70

260.00
2,287.70

260.00
628.00

0.00
628.00

0.00
3,015.00

0.00
3,015.00

1,623.20

360.00

350.00

100.00

500.00

500.00

15,244.15

9,998.70

5,766.59

5,180.87

8,436.60

28,469.70

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

7,949.95

10,290.20

25,651.85

12,906.40

1,851.65
1,910.70

4,360.00
2,445.00

3,746.80
5,037.70

2,804.30

1,647.20

1,383.30

1,838.00

14

Page 142

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
The Council’s borrowing need
4.5.

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s underlying
need to borrow. This is different to any actual borrowing. If the Council generates
the same amount of resources in a year to meet its capital expenditure
requirements, then there is no change to the CFR. However, if the Council
spends more than the resources it generates in year, the CFR will increase as in
effect the Council has created a borrowing requirement to bridge the gap in the
resources it needs and the resources it has.

4.6.

Although the CFR does not necessarily reflect actual borrowing taken from an
external source, it can reflect the use of internal cash resources, i.e. internal
borrowing.

4.7.

Where the Council has a positive CFR, i.e. an underlying need to borrow, it must
make provision to repay that ‘debt’, or repay the cash used through internal
borrowing. This is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). The Council’s
current policy, as set out in the MRP Strategy is to charge MRP on a straight line
basis over the life of the asset.

4.8.

The current forecast for the CFR and MRP based on the current proposed capital
programme along with the further additional longer-term and unprioritised
projects is shown in the table below:
Table 6: CFR projection

Capital
Financing
Requirement

Estimate
£000

24/25 –
28/29
Estimate
£000

29/30 –
33/34
Estimate
£000

42,961.25

47,501.84

51,271.40

54,131.31

9,998.70

5,766.59

5,180.87

8,436.60

28,469.70

(982.70)

(1,021.30)

(1,226.00)

(1,411.31)

(5,576.69)

(5,576.69)

33,983.85

42,961.25

47,501.84

51,271.40

54,131.31

77,024.32

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023-24

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

Estimate
£000

CFR opening
Add unfinanced
capital
Less MRP

17,992.00

18,636.10

19,722.40

33,983.85

1,383.30

1,838.00

15,244.15

(739.20)

(751.70)

CFR closing

18,636.10

19,722.40

Prudence and Sustainability
4.9.

Prudence and sustainability year on year are addressed through the prudential
indicators for external debt, which must be set and revised taking into account
their affordability.

4.10. A key prudential indicator is that external borrowing must not (except in the short
term to support operational cash flow) exceed the underlying level of indebtedness

15

Page 143

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
(the CFR) and is intended to control any ‘borrowing to on-lend’ or borrowing to
support the revenue account.
4.11. Table 7 confirms that the Council expects to be compliant with this indicator and
should remain under-borrowed across the period. The increase in borrowing
reflects the prudent assumption that the unfinanced element of the capital
programme would be funded through external debt. That said, a thorough review
of the affordability of the current plans will need to be carried out.
Table 7: Gross debt and the CFR

CFR at 31
March
Borrowing at
31 March
(Under)/over
borrowing
Investments at
31 March

Estimate

24/25 –
28/29
Estimate

29/30 –
33/34
Estimate

£000

£000

£000

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023-24

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

18,636.10

19,722.40

33,983.85

42,961.25

47,501.84

51,271.40

54,131.31

77,024.32

12,800.00

12,800.00

33,983.85

42,961.25

47,501.84

51,271.40

54,131.31

77,024.32

(5,836.10)

(6,922.40)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(17,500.51) (12,618.77) (21,027.97) (24,389.67) (28,429.77) (31,875.18) (29,260.18) (26,645.18)

Affordability
4.12. The fundamental objective in determining the affordability of the authority’s capital
plans is to ensure that the total capital investment remains within sustainable
limits. This includes considering the impact on Council Tax.
4.13. This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long
term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.
The estimates are presented in the table below:
Table 8: Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
2018/19
Estimate
7.98%

2019/20
Estimate
7.77%

2020/21
Estimate
15.46%

2021/22
Estimate
18.24%

2022/23
Estimate
21.63%

2023-24
Estimate
24.56%

4.14. This shows that the amount of revenue budget spent financing debt is rising over
the MTFP period. There are two main reasons for this trend.
a. MRP is rising to the level required to sustain the vehicle and plant programme.
Older vehicles were grant funded whereas replacement vehicles are financed
through borrowing.
b. The net revenue stream (Council Tax, retained rates and non-service grant) is
forecast to reduce over the period although reductions in grant are partially offset
16

Page 144

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
by increases to income from local taxation.

Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment
decisions on council tax
4.15

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to
the capital programme compared to the Council’s existing approved commitments
and current plans. This reflects interest income foregone on the use of reserves
and additional costs where schemes are funded by external borrowing.
Table 9: Incremental impact of capital investment

Council tax - band D

4.16

2018/19
Estimate
£8.17

2019/20
Estimate
£8.19

2020/21
Estimate
£19.44

2021/22
Estimate
£14.04

2022/23
Estimate
£10.61

2023-24
Estimate
£13.65

The increase shown is reflective of the revised timescales for existing projects and
new capital schemes, along with their anticipated use of reserves and potential
borrowing requirements. This also shows the impact of rising MRP as discussed in
4.15 above

Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary
4.17. The Council currently distinguishes between operational and core cash balances.
The operational balances relate to short term cash management whereas the core
cash balances reflect longer term strategic resources (such as the General Fund
balance and usable capital receipts).
4.18. A key prudential indicator is that external borrowing must not (except in the short
term to support operational cash flow) exceed the underlying level of indebtedness
(the CFR) and is intended to control any ‘borrowing to on-lend’ or borrowing to
support the revenue account. As shown in table 7 external debt is £12.8 million
and internal borrowing is £5.8 million during 2018/19.

The Operational Boundary
4.19. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to exceed.
This is set at a level consistent with the borrowing need (CFR), the anticipated
level of external borrowing plus any anticipated further borrowing that may be
required to manage operational cash balances. This may be required, for
example, at year end when operational cash balances are at their lowest due to
the timing of local taxation collection.

17

Page 145

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
The Authorised Limit for external debt.
4.20. This reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded
in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. This is a limit on the
maximum level of debt, beyond which external debt is prohibited and the limit can
only be set or revised by Full Council.
Table 10: Authorised limit and operational boundary

CFR at 31 March
Under borrowing
31 March
Add operational cash
limit
Operational
boundary
Authorised limit

2018/19
Estimate
£000
18,636.10

2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000
£000
£000
£000
19,722.40 33,983.85 42,961.25 47,501.84

(5,836.10) (6,922.40)

2023-24
Estimate
£000
51,271.40

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

18,700.00

19,800.00 34,000.00 43,000.00 47,600.00

51,300.00

24,915.00

26,015.00 40,215.00 49,215.00 53,815.00

57,515.00

6,215.00

6,215.00

Risk Appetite
4.21. As a holder of public funds, the Council recognises its responsibility to the prudent
management of public funds, and follows relevant Government and CIPFA
guidance.
4.22. The guidance defines a prudent investment policy as having two objectives:
achieving first of all security (protecting the capital sum from loss) and then
liquidity (keeping the money readily available for expenditure when needed).
Provided that proper levels of security and liquidity are achieved, it may then (but
only then) be reasonable to seek the highest yield consistent with those priorities.
4.23. Consequently, the Council will seek to optimise returns commensurate with the
management of the associated risks, limiting its investment activities to the
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in Treasury Management
Practice 4 Approved Instruments Methods and Techniques. The Treasury
Management Practices (TMP’s) are approved by Chief Financial Officer and form
the framework for operational treasury management practice and procedures on a
day-to-day basis.

Counterparty Risk
4.24. The Council also recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a
formal counterparty policy in respect of those organisations from which it may
borrow, or with whom it may enter into other financing arrangements. Before the
start of each financial year the council will determine though it’s
18

Page 146

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
Annual Investment Strategy, within the Treasury Management Framework, the
credit criteria for selecting counterparties. The Chief Financial Officer will maintain
a counterparty list in compliance with the criteria which will be approved annually
by Full Council. Updates will be taken though the year as necessary. These
criteria provide an overall pool of counterparties considered high quality which the
Council may use.

Liquidity Risk
4.25. This is the risk that cash will not be available when it is needed, causing additional
costs and potentially compromising the Councils business/service objectives.
Detailed cash flow forecasts will be kept by the financial services team to give as
accurate a picture as possible of the movement and timing of income &
expenditure and the resulting daily cash balances.
4.26. Individual managers have the responsibility of providing the team with adequate
notice of any large payments and receipts, to aid the team in keeping the cash
flow forecasts as accurate as possible, and avoiding causing the Council
additional costs.
4.27. The Chief Financial Officer will ensure that adequate, though not excessive cash
resources, borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities exist to enable
it at all times to have the level of funds available for the achievement of its
business/service objectives.
4.28. The Council will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business
case for doing so and will only do so for the current capital programme or to
finance future debt maturities.

Interest Rate Risk
4.29. The risk that unexpected changes in interest rates expose the Council to greater
costs or a shortfall in the income contained in the annual budget.
4.30. The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to
containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with
the its latest approved budget.
4.31. It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment
instruments, methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of
costs and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility
to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the level or
structure of interest rates. This should be the subject to the consideration and, if
required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications.

19

Page 147

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
Exchange Rate Risk
4.32. The risk that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates expose the council to greater
costs or a shortfall in income than have been budgeted for.
4.33. The Council has a minimal exposure to exchange rate risk as it has no powers to
enter into loans or investments in foreign currency for treasury management
purposes.
4.34. From time to time the Council may be exposed to exchange rate risk through the
receipt of income or the incurring of expenditure in a currency other than sterling.

Refinancing Risk
4.35. The risk that when loans or other forms of capital financing mature, that they
cannot be refinanced where necessary on terms that reflect the assumptions
made in formulating revenue and capital budgets.
4.36. This Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile
of the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for
renewal or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favourable to the
organisation as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions
prevailing at the time.
4.37. It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these transactions
in such a manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid overreliance on any
one source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above.

Legal and Regulatory Risk
4.38. The risk that the Council itself, or an organisation with which it is dealing in its
treasury management activities, fails to act in accordance with its legal powers or
regulatory requirements, and that the Council suffers losses accordingly.
4.39. This Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with
its statutory powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such
compliance, if required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities.
In framing its credit and counterparty policy, it will ensure that there is evidence of
counterparties’ powers, authority and compliance in respect of the transactions
they may affect with the Council, particularly with regard to duty of care and fees
charged.
4.40. This Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact
on its treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so,
will seek to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the Council.

20

Page 148

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
The Risk of Fraud, Error and Corruption, and Contingency
Management
4.41. The risk that the Council may fail to employ adequate systems, procedures and
other arrangements that identify and prevent losses through such occurrences.
4.42. This organisation will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may
expose it to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in
its treasury management dealings. Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems
and procedures, and will maintain effective contingency management
arrangements, to these ends.
4.43. The Council will therefore:a)
b)
c)

d)

Seek to ensure an adequate division of responsibilities and maintenance at
all times of an adequate level of internal check which minimises such risks.
Fully document all its treasury management activities so that there can be
no possible confusion as to what proper procedures are.
Staff will not be allowed to take up treasury management activities until
they have had proper training in procedures and are then subject to an
adequate and appropriate level of supervision.
Records will be maintained of all treasury management transactions so that
there is a full audit trail and evidence of the appropriate checks being
carried out.

Market Risk
4.44. The risk that, through adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal
sums an organisation borrows and invests, its stated treasury management
policies and objectives are compromised, against which effects it has failed to
protect itself adequately.
4.45. This Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and
objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of
the principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect its self from the
effects of such fluctuations.

Risk Management, Reporting and Review
4.46. More information on the systems, procedures and policies in place to manage
these treasury management related risks is available in the Treasury Management
Framework, Annual Investment Strategy and within the Council’s Treasury
Management Practices all of which are subject to full Council approval and which
are included in the work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
4.47. The Treasury Management reporting requirements to full Council are as follows:


Annual reporting requirements before the start of the year:
21

Page 149

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
-




review of the organisation’s approved clauses, treasury management policy
statement and practices
strategy report on proposed treasury management activities for the year
comprising of the Treasury management strategy statement, Annual
Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement

Regular Monitoring reports, included within Corporate Financial Monitoring report.
Annual review report after the end of the year

4.48. Furthermore, Treasury Management activities are subject to internal and external
audit review to ensure compliance with codes of practice, policies and operate
within the parameters agreed by Council.
4.49. More generally, Risk is managed at two levels within the Council:


Operational Risks are those that threaten service level objectives and are listed in
annual Service Plans. The risks are reviewed and updated regularly by
Operational Managers on a quarterly basis. Operational risks can be escalated to
Senior Management Team if it is felt that they are more strategic in nature or that
help is required with mitigation. It helps to fully detail the impacts of the risk and to
describe why greater authority is needed to control the risk. For example,
Operational Risks identified in departmental service plans may include individual
capital schemes for which the service is responsible for delivering and the
Financial Services Operational Risk Register includes the risk ‘Profiling of Capital
Schemes’ as it is recognised that outstanding capital expenditure has a significant
revenue budget implication.



Strategic Risks can be seen within the Strategic Risks Register and also within
Council Plan Performance reports to Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
Cabinet. These tend to be the risks that threaten council wide objectives and
require senior level management. Senior Management Team manages the
Council's Strategic Risks by identifying and reviewing risks and ensuring
mitigation. The Strategic Risk register may contain business continuity risks and
mitigations. Senior Management Team reviews the risks along with Corporate
Plan performance monitoring on a quarterly basis. Medium Term Financial
Planning – delivery of a balanced budget is a key risk identified in the Strategic
Risk Register, this includes the effects of the capital programme and treasury
management activities.

22

Page 150

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
5.

Commercial Activity

5.1.

Some investments are taken out for non-treasury management purposes, and
these are held primarily or partially to generate a profit. Examples of this include
investment properties and loans supporting service outcomes.

5.2.

The Council has 23 Investment properties including retails units and industrial
sites. Which at 31st March 2018 had a value of £4.97 million and after expenses
earned the council £0.325 million in income, creating a return on investment of
9.3% overall. This will vary year on year depending on maintenance required.

5.3.

As part of the changes to the Treasury and Prudential Codes of Practice and the
CLG guidance a list of non-treasury investments is being compiled and will be kept
up-to-date.

5.4.

In the future such investments will have to go through a robust procedure to
ensure that they fit in with the council’s plans, are affordable and sustainable. The
principles of the procedure are:

5.5.



Ensuring the investment meets the councils risk profile



Ensuring the portfolio of assets is prudently balanced to minimise risk of
income fluctuations and loss of capital value.



Ensuring the rate of return exceeds that which could be achieved through
traditional sources of investments



Establishing a comprehensive due diligence process to minimise risks
including use of specialist external advice where appropriate



Establishing appropriate governance arrangements to ensure decisions are
made in a streamlined and efficient way.

The Council is also developing a Commercial Strategy because reductions in
funding mean the Council should look at whether it is appropriate to engage in
commercial activities to supplement its income and support service delivery.
However, to minimise risk of potential loss of income in the longer term it needs to
ensure that any investment opportunities are based upon sound decision making
that consider the future likelihood of investment income reducing.

23

Page 151

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
6.

Other Long-Term Liabilities and Investments

Soft Loans
6.1.








The Council make loans for a number of reasons primarily economic development
and investment objectives or to help meet other Council priorities. These are often
outside of normal commercial terms The Council in making these loans ensure
they are prudent and secured by:
Carrying out a full independent due diligence exercise
Using an expected loss model to assess the impact on the balance budget
requirement if the loan was at risk
On-going monitoring of the loans
Ensuring adequate security is in place
The financial exposure of the Council is proportionate to its size.
All loans are agreed by the Council’s Cabinet

6.2.

The loans are accounted for as soft loans and the Council’s accounting policy on
soft loans is described in the Accounting Policies of the Statement of Accounts.
The balance outstanding of these loans as at 31st March 2018 was £110,877.

6.3.

One such loan that the Council has agreed to make is to South Lakes Housing.
The aim of the loan is to provide low cost finance in order to enable a house
building programme to meet the Council Plan target of delivering 1000 affordable
homes for rent. A loan of £6m over 25 years has been agreed in principle by the
Council’s Cabinet.

Pension Guarantees
6.4.

The Council transferred in council housing stock to South Lakes Housing in 2012.
This involved the transfer of Council employees to the South Lakes Housing.
Employee’s rights are protected under the provision in Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). However, pension rights
are not fully covered within TUPE regulations. The Council have thus given
pension guarantees to the South Lakes Housing. This guarantee means that if an
admitted body fails to pay its pension obligations then the Council will be
responsible for taking on those obligations.

6.5.

The deficit on the South Lakes Housing pension scheme at 31st March 2017 was
£2.254m of which SLDC would be responsible for approximately 55%.

6.6.

The guarantee is reviewed annually as part of the closure of accounts process.
The pension balance is assessed on an annual basis by the Cumbria Pension
Fund and is subject to change due to the underlying assets. This is rebalanced on
24

Page 152

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
a three year basis, formerly known as a triennial review.

25

Page 153

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
7.

Knowledge and Skills

7.1.

The Council utilises the knowledge and skills of its internal officers when
considering capital investment decisions and where necessary it also relies on the
expert knowledge of specialist external advisors.

7.2.

The Council employs or contracts professionally qualified legal, finance and
property officers who are able to offer advice and guidance when considering any
capital investment decisions.

Finance
7.3.

Finance staff are professionally qualified to advise the Council on all financial
aspects of capital decisions. They also have the necessary experience of how the
Council works having been in post for a number of years. Finance staff also
undertake Continuous Professional Development and they maintain knowledge
and skills through regular technical updates from appropriate bodies.

Property
7.4.

The Council operates an outsourced contract for its property and asset services to
Lambert Smith Hampton. Their team is made up of a number of Chartered
Surveyors and Valuers who advise the Council on all property matters. They are
all members of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and comply
with the RICS’s rules in relation to Continuing Professional Development.

7.5.

The Council’s in-house Property and Contracts Manager is also a RICS
Registered Chartered Surveyor.

Legal
7.6.

Legal Staff are professionally qualified as either solicitors or legal executives and
are regulated by their respective professional bodies (Solicitors Regulation
Body/Institute of Legal Executives). The staff undertake Continuing Professional
Development and their rules of conduct require that they have an appropriate level
of skill and expertise to deal with the particular matter with which they are
dealing. All staff are aware of the operational structure of the Council. They
maintain knowledge and skills through regular technical updates from appropriate
bodies.

External Advice
7.7.

The Council uses external advisors where necessary in order to complement the
knowledge its own officers hold. Some of these advisors are contracted on long
term contracts or are appointed on an ad-hoc basis when necessary. The main
advisors the Council uses are as follows:

26

Page 154

Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3
 Link Asset Services – Treasury Management, including Cash
investments, borrowing and capital financing
 Lambert Smith Hampton – Property and Asset Management and asset
development.

8.

Review and monitoring of the Capital Strategy

8.1.

This Capital Strategy is based on the proposed Capital Programme for 2019/20 to
2023/24 which will be approved by Council on the 26th February 2019. It also
highlights the aspiration and unprioritised capital programme over the longer-term
to 2033/34. The strategy will be monitored and reviewed throughout the financial
year and may be updated or replaced as proposals are developed or the Capital
Programme is updated.

27

Page 155

Appendix A
Project bid template

REVENUE and CAPITAL 2019/20 Budget Change Pro Forma
This form is designed to capture the information required for budget changes in the 2019/20 budget setting cycle.
Finalised forms are to be emailed by Assistant Directors to accountancy@southlakeland.gov.uk no later than
Thursday 30/8/2018 but earlier if possible so that clarrifications may be sought. Please see comment boxes (red
triangles) and hyperlinks for further guidance. Please complete all grey cells.
Use this form if you are proposing:
- a revenue budget change that generates a net saving (including extra income) or net additional expenditure (including
reduced income)
- a revenue budget change that is net £0 but has a gross change to income or expenditure of £10k or more
- a new capital scheme or amendment to an existing scheme

1

Title of Poject

2

Type of Project

Please select …

3

Sponsoring Portfolio Holder

Please select …

Sponsoring Portfolio Holder (if more than 1 Portfolio Holder)

Please select …

4

Sponsoring Assistant Director

5

Officer Responsible for Delivery

6

Cost Centre/Service

7.0 Outline description of project/service change
7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5

Alignment with Council Plan priorities?
Equality Impact Assessment implications.
Legislative requirements
Alignment with Property Asset Review
Risk / Business continuity?

7.6 External 'partnership' and Localism benefits with public, private or voluntary sector?
7.7 Delivery risk including planning process.
What are the social, economic and environmental impacts of the proposal, if
7.8 accepted?
8

8.1

Costs and Financing

Capital Budget adjustments required

Existing Base (net)
£000

2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
Years thereafter
Total
Net capital cost/saving (+/-)

Changes to Capital
Expenditure (+/-)
£000

Changes to Capital
Income (-/+)
£000

BIDS TO START 2020/21

0.0

0.0
0.0

PLEASE INCLUDE THE REVENUE IMPACTS OF CAPITAL SCHEMES IN 8.2 BELOW

28

Page 156

0.0

Appendix A

8.2

Revenue Budget adjustments required

Existing Base (net)
£000

2019/20 Savings, Budget Pressures & One Off Growth
2020/21 Savings and Budget Pressures only
2021/22 Savings and Budget Pressures only
2022/23 Savings and Budget Pressures only
2023/24 Savings and Budget Pressures only
Years thereafter (Savings and Budget Pressures only)
Total
Net revenue cost/saving (+/-)

Change to Revenue
Expenditure (+/-)
£000

0.0

0.0
0.0

Change to Revenue
Income (-/+)
£000

0.0

8.3 What is the lifetime of the scheme/service change in years?
8.4 What is the basis of the figures (eg supplier quotation/market testing etc)?
8.5 Please give details of any grant funding or external income
What risks are there around the proposed timing of budget changes (as set out in
8.6 8.1 and 8.2)?
Does the proposal relate to a previous Committee decision? If so, please provide
8.7 minute ref?
8.8 Is the proposed saving/growth reflected in your 2018/19 budget monitoring report?
9.1 Details of procurement route to be followed
10.1 Proposed score (please complete scoring criteria tab)

PLEASE COMPLETE SCORING CRITERIA TAB

10.2 Scoring overide - if judged to be necessary please provide details why?
11 Assistant Director Declaration
11.1 Form complete and quality checked?
11.2 Portfolio Holder in agreement?

Please select …
Please select …

29

Page 157

Appendix A
Project prioritisation and assessment criteria
Ref:

Weighting

30
9

Criteria

Score

STRATEGIC
Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority Economy - Enabling and delivering opportunities for
sustainable economic growth.

0
No (0), Yes (6), Essential to delivery (9)

9

Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority Housing - Providing homes to meet need.

No (0), Yes (6), Essential to delivery (9)

6

Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority Environment - Protecting and enhancing our place.

No (0), Yes (4), Essential to delivery (6)

6

Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority - Culture
and Wellbeing - Improving wellbeing, reducing inequality and No (0), Yes (4), Essential to delivery (6)
supporting cultural activities.

A

25

Does the scheme impact on rurality, age, disability, race,
religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, pregnancy, maternity, marriage or civil
partnership
RISK MANAGEMENT / CONTINUITY OF SERVICE

C

5

Is the scheme consistent with the Property Asset Review?

No (0), Yes (5)

D1

5

Urgency of investmentdue to condition rating of a property
asset.

Urgent : Year 1 (5), Year 2 (4), Year 3 (3), 4-5 Years (2), 6-10
Years (1), Later Years (0)

D2

5

Urgency of investment in order to meet statutory obligations
(e.g Disability Discrimination Act, Health & Safety, Security)

Urgent : Year 1 (5), Year 2 (4), Year 3 (3), 4-5 Years (2), 6-10
Years (1), Later Years (0)

E

10
5

Yes (10); no (0)

F

5

Addressing future business continuity
PROMOTES PARTNERSHIP / LOCALISM
External 'partnership' and Localism benefits with public,
private or voluntary sector
FINANCIAL
Spend to Save Initiative - produces revenue savings /
additional income

B

0

40

Positive impact (+5), negative impact (-5), no impact (0)
0

0
No (0), Yes (5)
0
Annual net savings per year as % of cost; 1 mark for every 1%
to a max of 20 marks for 20% and above.

G

20

H

10

Is part funded from externally generated resources (e.g.
grants).

0-19% 5 points, 20-50% 7 points greater than this 10 points.

I

10

Maximises external funding eg NHB and Retained Business
Rates?

No (0), Yes (10)

Total

100

0

Notes
A

Please refer to the priorities and targets within the Council Plan. Does the scheme contribute to the delivery of a Council priority or target? Maximum points if the scheme is essential to delivery of
a priority or target.

B

We need evidence that these factors have been reviewed as part of the EIA on the capital programme. See guidance in the report writing toolkit.

C

Is the scheme consistent with the Property Asset Review? How and to what extent? Please complete this section in consultation with Sion Thomas (Corporate Asset Manager) who will be able to
provide guidance on whether the change relates to a corporate asset and whether it is consistent with the aims and objectives of the review.

D

Where there are major Health & Safety issues, or other legal obligations, the Capital Prioritisation Group may choose to override the priority score and recommend a project be included in the
Capital Programme. For existing property assets consider the condition rating of the asset and the technical life.

E

Yes or no depending on whether the scheme is necessary for continuation of current Council operations. If the proposal relates to an existing asset, is the asset critical to service delivery, could
technical failure of the asset lead to failure of service delivery.

F

Projects promoting joint working - across Council services, with other agencies, the public, private & voluntary sectors

G

If a score is given against this criteria, it must be supported by a financial analysis, which shows the estimated revenue savings and capital costs of the project. Where revenue savings are
identified, they will also need to be included in the relevant revenue budget

H

If a score is given against this criteria, it must be supported by a financial analysis, which shows the estimated reduction of the Council's projected deficits.

I

Does the scheme draw on grant funding mechanisms designed to encourage Local Authorities to increase the tax base and rates base?

30

Page 158

Appendix 4

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24
Programme Spending by Project

2018/19
Approved July
2018

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2018/19
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Play Areas (including community funded schemes and
schemes arising from the Play Space Audit)

341.0

144.2

485.2

Millerground Public Open Space, Access and Play Project

138.3

22.2

0.0

0.0

193.4

Grange Regeneration
Nobles Rest
Ferry Nab Redevelopment Phase 1
Cockshott Point Entrance Improvements

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

585.2

160.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

160.5

0.0

157.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

157.3

-15.3

178.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

178.1

42.6

0.0

42.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.6

Page 159

0.0

1.8

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.8

Waterhead Public Jetty

27.0

4.4

31.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

31.4

Public Realm - The Glebe phase I and II

50.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

Kendal Town Centre Public Realm

19.5

3.1

22.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

22.6

New Road Common (approved Council 12 Oct 2017)

231.0

0.0

231.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

231.0

Kendal Leisure Centre (including changing rooms)

159.6

0.0

159.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

159.6

Wordsworth Trust contribution

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.0

Festival Infrastructure

64.8

0.0

64.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

64.8

Flood impact works Rothay Park

207.2

0.0

207.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

207.2

Footway Lighting

49.4

0.0

49.4

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

174.4

IT Replacements

80.0

0.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

480.0

Customer Connect

290.0

0.0

290.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

590.0

Mobile Working

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

120.0

16.2

0.0

16.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

16.2

South Lakeland House carpark works

377.5

0.0

377.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

377.5

Car park re-surfacing

339.7

0.0

339.7

25.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

364.7

1,169.0

0.0

1,169.0

1,711.0

594.0

499.0

690.0

2,100.0

6,763.0

Town and Car Park signing

Vehicle & Plant Programme (inc bins and boxes)

Appendix 4

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24
Programme Spending by Project

2018/19
Approved July
2018

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2018/19
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Page 160

Disabled Facilities Grants

743.4

191.0

934.4

661.0

661.0

661.0

603.0

603.0

4,123.4

Right to buy replacement scheme

495.0

0.0

495.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

495.0

Affordable & Empty Homes, Town Centre Properties.

359.0

-191.0

168.0

260.0

260.0

260.0

260.0

0.0

1,208.0

S106 funded affordable homes purchase

146.0

0.0

146.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

146.0

Cross-a-Moor junction improvement

300.0

-300.0

0.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

Community Housing Fund

490.0

0.0

490.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

490.0

Kendal Museum contribution

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

85.0

Coronation Hall alterations

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

79.8

149.2

0.0

149.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

149.2

89.1

0.0

89.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

89.1

3.2

29.7

32.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

32.9

19.9

0.0

19.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

19.9

Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

140.0

LIPS (excluding contributions to SLDC property included under
individual properties)

439.1

-143.7

295.4

165.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.2

Grange Promenade Structural works

100.0

0.0

100.0

300.0

300.0

225.0

250.0

0.0

1,175.0

Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extention

214.3

0.0

214.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

214.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

0.0

0.0

240.0

Energy-saving building enhancements
Former Knitware Factory (Ulverston) site clearance
Kendal Town Hall stone work
Castle Dairy flood damage reinstatement

Burton Hertiage Grant Scheme (funded from LIPS)
Kendal Castle (funded from LIPS)

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.0

Car Parking Machines

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

140.0

Parkside Road, Kendal car park

160.4

0.0

160.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

160.4

50.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

1,556.7

-1,556.7

0.0

1,556.7

1,556.7

1,556.7

0.0

0.0

4,670.1

Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations

0.0

0.0

0.0

3,000.0

3,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

6,000.0

New Ulverston Leisure Centre

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

Disabled Toilet improvements
ERDF funded flood defence works
New Bids

Appendix 4

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24
Programme Spending by Project

2018/19
Approved July
2018

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19
Revised

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2018/19
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Homeless Accommodation for Families

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Abbot Hall redevelopment

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

Grange Lido

0.0

0.0

0.0

960.0

1,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1,960.0

9,760.3

-1,810.4

7,950.0

10,163.2

16,776.7

3,406.7

1,928.0

2,828.0

43,052.6

461.4

Bids subject to further assessment:
Accomodation review
Car park investments*
Employment site land acquisition
Rydal Road car park bridge
Depot review

Page 161

Total

*subject to detailed review of car parking strategy including potential new car parks at Oxenholme and Arnside, double decking options on existing car parks, provision in Kendal, Braithwaite
fold surfacing and electric charging points

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 162

Item No.12
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Friday, 11 January 2019

Update on the Building Financial Resilience Project
Portfolio:

Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

Report Author:

Simon Blyth – Principal Partnerships and Communities Officer

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Not applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

This report highlights the work done to date by the SLDC led Building Financial Resilience
(BFR) partnership group. The BFR action plan (appendix 1) links together key partner
agencies across the District to proactively promote the range of opportunities and sources of
support to those experiencing financial hardship in South Lakeland. The plan will make it
easier for people to access these opportunities and supports agencies to deliver consistent,
informed and constructive messages to those experiencing financial hardship in the area.
2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny:(1)

Note the progress achieved by the BFR group

(2)
Use the information to inform and educate colleagues and members of
the public to enable them to take positive steps to build financial resilience.
3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

SLDC’s first Tackling Poverty Workshop (December 2016) brought together officers,
councillors and external organisations to help to shape the work of the Council and
partners through a better understanding of poverty and by identifying any gaps in service
provision. All Members of the Council were invited to the workshop, and officers from the
Council’s partnerships, revenues and benefits, housing, economic development, public
protection and development strategy teams were present. Representatives from Age UK
South Lakeland, Barnardo’s, Cumbria County Council, South Lakes Citizens Advice and
South Lakes Housing were also in attendance. The workshop sought to raise ideas for
reducing poverty in South Lakeland through the work of both the Council and partner
organisations.

3.2

The outcomes of the workshop identified three clear areas of work:o Understanding the nature and extent of poverty in South Lakeland;
o Helping those in immediate need; and
o Focussing the work of the Council and partners in the long-term to help to
address the root causes of poverty in the area.

Page 163

3.3

Subsequently, a Position Statement was created which set out the broad aims for the
BFR group in tackling poverty. This statement evolved and now states – “Ensuring that
no-one in South Lakeland is excluded from an acceptable standard of living”.

3.4
•
•
•
•
•
•

Poverty in South Lakeland:
More than 1,200 children under the age of 16 are living in poverty
Around 4,810 households are classed as ‘fuel poor’ or unable to keep warm on their
income.
Wages tend to be lower here than the national average
The number of families on the very lowest income is increasing
Around 3,600 low income households receive Housing Benefit and more than 4,800
qualify for Council Tax reduction
Homelessness applications are on the increase

3.5

An SLDC BFR officers group developed an initial analysis/ mapping exercise of
poverty in South Lakeland and drafted an action plan through meetings with partner
agencies to take on their issues, concerns and recommendations. The action plan is in
appendix 1.

3.6

The full BFR partner group has now met 5 times, with a future meeting set for March
2019. Partners expressed the desire to continue meeting as they value the creative
collaborative networking opportunity where new initiatives and link ups are taken forward
to support people suffering financial hardship.

3.7

Key actions achieved by the group to date:











Creation of 5 task groups who have met to work on the actions.
Fuel poverty and money advice scheme (LEAP) has been launched providing free
energy saving household improvements and advice on switching and budgeting to all
fuel poor households in South Lakeland.
South Lakes News are including articles in each issue to give practical
advice/signposting to raise awareness of helpful schemes and promote the work of
partners.
BFR page on the SLDC website with useful resources and information.
SLDC are providing, ‘Assisted digital support’ to assist customers in making and
maintaining claims for Universal Credit and refer customers having difficulty with
payments to CAB for ‘Personal Budgeting Support’ course.
SLDC Revenues and Benefits Department manage alternative payments
arrangements of housing benefit, or Universal Credit (not rent) to pay direct to
landlords in certain circumstances.
Number of organisations using MARS (Multi Agency Referral System from Gateway)
has increased from 60 to 90 (as of September) - Age UK have used the partner
meetings to promote this system and are committed to promoting to more small
charities. This will help get the service user to the right support at the right time.
GP’s can now signpost and refer clients to 3rd sector via MARS and the ICC has
promoted MARS with ICC groups to encourage social prescribing.



SLDC is working with My Cumbria Card to increase the local discounts available and
promote these more widely.



The Environment agency have completed various actions to increase uptake of the
flood warning service to help prevent future loss and hardship through flooding.

3.8
Looking forward over the next 6 months, the BFR group will launch 3 media/
promotional campaigns aimed at building financial resilience. These will be:

Page 164

1. LEAP (fuel poverty support) scheme
2. My Cumbria Card
3. Skills and Education opportunities
3.9
The group have also linked in with the Morecambe Bay Poverty Truth Commission
who are doing some innovative work in Lancaster and Morecambe with people affected by
poverty. The BFR group are monitoring the work closely with a view to a future collaboration.
4.0

Consultation

4.1 Fourteen councillors from across South Lakeland attended the initial workshop, including
the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council.
4.2 Representatives from Age UK South Lakeland, Barnardo’s, Cumbria County Council,
South Lakes Citizens Advice and South Lakes Housing were present at the workshop and,
among many other agencies, attended the partner meetings.
4.3 The Council’s Senior Management Team and officers from the services referred to in
paragraph 3.1 above are involved in the group.
5.0

Alternative Options

5.1 The BFR project has been informed by the work of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, and partner organisations, and greatly adds value to the work of the Council in
its efforts to tackle poverty in South Lakeland. Ceasing this work now would make it harder
to comply with the Council’s Council Plan aims.
6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1 Council Plan priority - Economy: “we will continue to protect the vulnerable, mitigate the
effects of poverty and work with others in our community to address the pressures on people
experiencing poverty in South Lakeland”.
7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1
The actions are intended to make more effective use of existing resources rather
than require additional financial resources. By improving collaborative working, the combined
resources of local authorities and voluntary and community sector organisations will become
better focussed on tackling the impacts and causes of poverty.
Human Resources
7.2
The BFR project requires cross departmental working. A cross service officer working
group leads, coordinates and assigns specific responsibilities for this work. The activity
within the action plan is based around collaboration and service improvement, ensuring that
the resources in place are used more effectively.
Legal
7.3
The Council has entered into collaborative arrangements with other organisations (for
example Agility Eco for the LEAP scheme), and legal agreements document the
responsibilities of all parties.
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment?

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
is not a change to service or new service. It is a widening and coordinating of
opportunities for those in financial hardship.

Page 165

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: ***

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
is not a change to service or new service. It is a widening and coordinating of
opportunities for those in financial hardship.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Efforts to address issues of
financial resilience in South
Lakeland are not co-ordinated
and strategy led.

Duplication of, or gaps in,
service provision resulting
in a less effective and
inefficient approach.

A strategic approach to
building financial resilience
which includes work
across both the Council
and its partners

Contact Officers
Simon Blyth, Partnerships and Communities Officer, 01539 793262,
s.blyth@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

BFR Action Plan

Background Documents Available
None
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent

Page 166

Appendix 1

Building Financial Resilience Together
Ensuring that no-one in South Lakeland is excluded from an acceptable standard of living

Partner Action Plan
Task Group 1
Aim: Increase partner collaboration and
publicise support available to public

Partners: SLDC, Age UK, Integrated Care Communities, Cumbria County Council, Credit Union

Actions:

Outcomes to date

1.1 Increase sign up and use of Compass in
Cumbria/Multi Agency Referral System
(MARS)

 5 x Partner meetings to date where sharing and networking has improved partners
knowledge of what’s on offer.

Page 167

 Age UK and SLDC to promote MARS/ Compass in Cumbria to partners:
 SLDC have 9 staff trained and set up on MARS since signing up in April 2018
 September 2018: 90 organisations now signed up to MARS and Age UK are continuing
promoting, particularly to smaller charities
 Kendal ICC have signed up to the eHub and the other South Cumbria ICC development
leads have been informed of the opportunity
 Compass in Cumbria – a web resource for the 3rd sector highlighting local organisations and
the work they do with contacts etc. has been promoted through BFR events– compass in
Cumbria

1.2 Investigate role of GPs in signposting clients
to supporting agencies/local groups/
societies (known as social prescribing)
1.3 Create a public webpage on support services
and opportunities available (with weblinks to
agencies)

 (Sept 2018) – MARS now linked to strata (the GPs system) and GP’s can now signpost and
refer clients to 3rd sector
 Cara Stride (ICC) has promoted compass in Cumbria with ICC groups to encourage social
prescribing
 SLDC BFR webpage now live (updates and improvements ongoing)
 A social media campaign to mirror South Lakeland News content covering BFR areas by
topic is planned to start end 2018

1.4 Produce an easy to read and appealing
leaflet to direct to support and include leaflet in
food bank deliveries,
Safe and Well visits, GP’s surgeries etc.

 Currently investigating using the ‘Piggy Bank’ booklet for inclusion in food bank deliveries,
and to be available at people’s café, and through any other interested partners

1.5 Promote the Eden & South Lakeland Credit
Union

 Included on BFR webpage
 Included in South Lakeland News promotional piece

Task group 2
Aim: Build local wealth

Actions

Page 168

2.1 Promote local resident discounts for
attractions, shopping and activities in South
Lakeland.
 Cumbria Tourism to investigate how to
offer discounted MyCumbria cards to
those most in need.
 Cumbria Tourism to Investigate public
transport discounts for My Cumbria Card
 GLL to promote discounts to local partner
agencies

Partners:
SLDC - Economic Development
Cumbria Tourism
GLL
CCC
Outcomes to date





SLDC has promoted MyCumbria card internally to all staff
MyCumbria card promoted on BFR page on SLDC website
GLL offer promoted on BFR webpage
SLDC social media campaign has included affordable summer holiday activities and is
ongoing for key times
 SLDC have promoted MyCumbria card via social media
 SLDC planning to promote MyCumbria card reminder to local businesses via newsletter
‘Invest in South Lakeland’

2.2 Encourage more local spend by raising
awareness of good procurement practice and
sustainable contracts. An emphasis on good
knowledge of local suppliers, reducing carbon
emissions and the living wage. (Preston Model)

 SLDC to investigate following council re-structure in January 2020

2.3 Promote and increase spending with local
independent businesses.
 CCC and SLDC to coordinate a
campaign on supporting independents
(e.g independents day, social media

 SLDC Social media campaign has been undertaken via ‘Explore South Lakeland’ and ‘Invest
in South Lakeland’

campaign on benefits etc.) – SLDC
Economic Development (MW) and CCC
(KJ).

Task Group 3
Aim: Increase access to skills and education

Actions
3.1 Make it easier for “hard to reach” young
people and adults to participate in local College
open days

 Ulverston STEM day (10 November) and Skills Fest, Kendal College – 17th November.
 Planning meeting held with Kendal College, Inspira and Community Development team –
next step CCC Community Development Officers to discuss with Local Community Wellbeing
Groups. (MC)
 Skills and education news and offer went out in summer South Lakeland News

Page 169

3.2 Promote links between local Colleges and
Schools to increase local intake to Colleges
 South Lakeland to learn from best
practise peers in West Cumbria and
Barrow to raise profile of apprenticeships/
T Levels and other options (e.g. work
based learner providers forum, Copeland
skills and work partnership) – LEP to
supply contacts/ arrange meeting

Partners:
Kendal College, Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Schools, SLDC (Economic
Development and Partnerships), CCC, Community Learning and Skills
Employer reps
Outcomes to date

3.3 Increase local business placement
opportunities for Colleges and local schools
 South Lakeland Schools and Kendal
College to link into Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) careers hub and skills
strategy – LEP (CI) to update group on
these, BP/ DB to advise on schools
uptake.
 Coordinate careers fairs between schools
(to reduce number of Fairs) so less
frequent attendance needed for SMEs,
industry etc.– Queen Katherine School

 T Levels (including 45 days in industry) to be introduced from 2020.
 Government apprenticeship website: https://www.gov.uk/apply-apprenticeship and Kendal
College offers work based training to support apprenticeships:
http://www.kendal.ac.uk/departments/apprenticeships/
 Cumbria LEP is coordinating Sector Panels (for example Advanced Manufacturing and
Creative and Cultural) to help grow business sectors across Cumbria. SLDC will have
representation on these Panels.
Cumbria LEP sponsored Enterprise advisors from business and industry now going into
schools in South Lakeland and promoting business and industry as a career.
 Cumbria Careers Hub: Launch on 22 January 2019 with a Manager and 2 Enterprise
coordinators. Will work with schools Careers Leads (Governor, nominated Careers Lead, and
a school representative).

3.4 Promote availability of free skills sessions to
organisations who can put people forward

Task Group 4
Aim: Reduce Fuel Poverty

 Free skill sessions from CCC have been promoted at partner meetings and literature
circulated
 Free skill sessions have been included on BFR webpage and South Lakeland News
 New Enterprise allowance for Job Seekers to help them to set up their own business –
funding and advice support.
Partners:
CAfS
SLDC – P&C Team
SLDC housing standards - David Bradley

Actions

Outcomes to date

4.1 Deliver a scheme to tackle fuel poverty in
South Lakeland

 SLDC, Agility Eco and CAfS agreed to take the LEAP scheme forward in South Lakeland.
 Meeting has taken place between provider Agility Eco, supplier CAfS and sponsor SLDC to
train staff on scheme and referral process. 20 plus SLDC staff attended across departments.
 Scheme training session for SLDC staff on 13 September raising awareness of the scheme
and to encourage referrals.
 Partner training session delivered on 11th October
 Scheme was launched end of Nov.
Partners:
CCC
Kendal People’s café
SLDC
Sandylands Methodist Church
Maria and Mike– CCC
FareShare
SLDC



Page 170

Task Group 5
Aim: Food waste and re-distribution

Actions
5.1 Investigate food schemes in South Lakeland

Outcomes to date
 Kendal People’s café formed partnership with church for bigger premises and holiday
provision (update at next meeting to be requested)
 Provision currently adequate for food schemes in South Lakeland – if need is identified
contact the BFR group for fareshare info)

5.2 Investigate school holiday meal provision
 Mike Conefrey to update

5.3 Initiate a campaign to minimise household
food waste

 Katherine Smith promoted offer at BFR Partner meeting on 27 September.

Aim:
Promote and increase sign up to Environment
Agency flood warning service

Action
6.1
- Articles in community/parish newsletters
-Targeted mail out
-Pilot project in Ulverston using Safe and Well to
promote
- Explore options for those with sight/reading
issues

Outcomes to date

Page 171

 Articles have gone into Kendal and Ulverston newsletters which have gone to every
household and business in those towns.
 An article was included in the South Lakes News which goes to every household in South
Lakeland
 The Ulverston pilot working with the Fire and Rescue Service is in progress, and a review
meeting will update on its achievements in the next few weeks.
 Contact has been made with South Lakes Sight Advice with a view to including an article in
its regular newsletter (which is produced in various formats)

Aim:
Investigate listening/ truth events on model of
Morecambe poverty truth commission
Action
7.1 Meet with Morecambe Bay Poverty Truth
Commission
7.2 Attend Poverty Truth Event in Lancaster 6th
July 2018

Outcomes to date
 Meeting taken place
 MBPTC attended and presented at September partner meeting and partners advised of their
work and opportunity for collaboration
 Taken place

Any Other Actions

Action
8. SLDC Revs and Bens dept. continuing
engagement with landlords and DWP

Outcomes to date
 SLDC are providing, ‘Assisted digital support’ to assist customers in making and maintaining

 Private Landlords forum to be arranged
by DWP (Shane Byrne, update due Nov
18)

claims for Universal Credit and refer customers having difficulty with payments to CAB for
‘Personal Budgeting Support’ course.
 SLDC Revs and Bens dept. manage alternative payments arrangements of housing benefit,
or Universal Credit (not rent) to pay direct to landlords in certain circumstances

Page 172

The following groups and people have helped shape this action plan with their insights and experiences.

NAME ORGANISATION

Page 173

Karen Evans
Penny Pullinger
Paul Latham and Susan Scott O’Neil
Karen Shaw
Catherine Moody
Andrea Aldridge
Debbie Binch
Eric Barker
Shane Byrne
Alan Davis
Rachel Earnshaw
Dan Hudson
Deborah Clark
Eve Martin and Hilary Claxton
Chris Parks and Lyn Richardson
Mike Conefrey and team
Economic Development Team
Helen Edmonds
Gillian Cowburn
Cara Stride
Craig Ivison
Linda Sutherland
Victoria Emmett and Damian Bonsall

Citizens Advice Bureau
Age UK
Cumbria Police
Kendal College
Fire service (HART)
Manna House
Environment Agency
Lake District National Park
DWP/Job Centre
SLDC
SLDC
SLDC
SLDC
Credit Union
South Lakes Housing
CCC
SLDC
Community Learning and Skills
Kendal People’s café
Kendal Integrated Care Community
Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership
King’s Food Bank
Inspira

Background mapping exercise
HOUSING

Poverty risk
factors

Page 174

KEY ISSUES
FOR SOUTH
LAKELAND

INCOME/ WORK

EDUCATION/
SKILLS

HEALTH

ENVIRONMENT

FOOD and
NUTRITION

CRIME AND
COMMUNITY
SAFETY

High Housing
costs
Security of Tenure
Substandard
housing
Fear of
complaining
Unsuitable
housing
Adaptability
Heating costs
Isolation/transport;
Benefit changes

Unemployment
Low wages
Job insecurity
Multiple jobs
Childcare issues
‘gig economy’
Business failure
Benefits regime

Qualifications
Numeracy
Literacy
Language skills
Lifestyle issues
Self Esteem
Benefit eligibility
Discrimination

Serious illness
Disability
Mental Illness
Substance issues
Obesity/Diet
Alcohol/Smoking
Access to Exercise
Age related issues

Isolation
Exclusion
Exposure to
pollution
Green space
Leisure facilities
Transport & IT
links
‘Bad area’
reputation
Dereliction/neglect
Non-mains water

Cost of food
Access to good
food
Food shops
Benefits regime
Hot food
takeaways
Nutrition
knowledge
Cooking skills

Loan sharks
People trafficking
Vandalism
Drug trade
Domestic violence
Sexual abuse
Gangs/youth crime
Rural crime
Cyber crime

Homelessness –
increase with
homelessness
reduction act

Low wages

Life skills

Health inequality

11.8% providing
unpaid care

Dealing with the
benefit system.

Age related issues

Isolation –
Localised pockets
of deprivation.

High rates of sexual
offence reporting
(possibly skewed
by institutions)

Poor Housing –
rural isolation

7% of households
‘difficult to manage’

Ability to source
help and advice.

Kings Food Bank
had 387 referrals
in the first half of
2017. A 40%
increase on the
previous year.

Median property
prices 7-12 times
household
incomes

Hidden Poverty –
asset rich/income
poor.

Digital inclusion

Alcohol

Retaining qualified
young people

Rural isolation
Fuel poverty
DEBT
DEBT
Issue of distrust
of agencies –
(Manna House
raised and e.g of
EA’s flood
warning service
sign up and
HART in rural
areas)

Unclaimed benefits –
money not coming
into the area

Rural isolation –
transport to
college

End of life planning –
age uk

Local companies
not offering
apprentices/work
experience to
Kendal college

Issue of distrust of
agencies

Issue of distrust
of agencies

Being banned from
appointments with
key agencies for not

Government
funding for
students from

Access to
jobs/transport

Kendal air quality
Access to leisure,
recreation and green
space.
Access to mental
health services
Rural isolation – lack
of outreach services
Issue of distrust of
agencies
Being banned from
Drs/other
appointments for
not turning up –
Manna house

Access to quality
play areas
Flooding
Digital inclusion
Issue of distrust
of agencies

DEBT
Issue of distrust
of agencies
Rural isolation –
getting to shops
problem for
elderly and lack
of digital
inclusion means
can’t do online
shopping

Drug use and
other addictions –
causes debt and
theft - Police
Issue of distrust
and not wanting
help from
agencies in rural
areas with older
people especially–
Safe and Well
team

turning up – Manna
House
Needing photo id for
bank account –
Manna House raised

AGENCIES
INVOLVED

Page 175

SLDC
CCC
Ser
DWP
CAB, Age UK,
Manna House
CAFS
Energy Saving
Trust
Housing
Associations
Cumbria Law
Centre
Oaklea Trust
RVS
South Lakes
Carers
Stonham
Turning Point
Cumbria
Community
Foundation
Churches
Royal British
Legion

SLDC
Age UK
Chamber of
Commerce
DWP
Jobcentre Plus
Credit Union
LEP/Chamber
CAB
Major employers
Parent Carer Forum
Families Programme
Gamcare
Inspira
Money Advice Service
People First
British Legion
Shaw Trust
Veterans Welfare
Right2Work
Cumbria Community
Foundation
Christians Against
Poverty
Ingeus UK

poorer
backgrounds
reduced to Kendal
College
Kendal College
reporting low
levels of wellbeing
in students
increasing
Kendal College
Schools/FE/HE
CCC community
Learning/Skills
Surestart
CAB
Barnados
Brathay Trust
Croftlands Trust
Equalities Comm
LEP skills planning
CCC/Employers
SLDC – Hsg
Options
SLDC – TVF
Cumbria Youth
Alliance
Dyslexia
association
Inspira – National
Careers Service,
work with those at
risk of NEET,
contract with
CCC,also National
Citizen Service
and Enterprise
Adviser Network –
all proven to
support young
people out of
NEET and into
EET.

NHS
CCC – Public Health
Samaritans
SLDC – PP
Age UK, MIND,
Disability Groups,
Barnados
Caritas
CCABIRT
Disability Network
and groups
Sight Advice
Defence Medical
Welfare Service
Dignity in Dementia
ICAS
Life after Stroke
MND association
MS Association
Terence Higgins
Unity

Abilitynet
SLDC
CAFFS
Groundwork
Public and
Community
Transport
Providers
Broadband and
Telecoms
providers
Parish Councils
Environment
Agency

Ambleside
Community Hall
Kings Food Bank
SLDC – Town
View Fields
Supermarkets
Schools
Churches

Birchall Trust
Bridgeway
Police
Community
Rehabilitation
Letgo
CCC – Outreach
and Respite
Terence Higgins
Victim Support

WHAT IS
ALREADY
BEING DONE?

Homelessness
Prevention - SLDC

Debt advice –
CAB/Age UK

Benefits

Council Tax Reduction
Scheme

Affordable
Housing delivery
Affordable
Housing grants

Credit Union
Benefits system

Access to advice
Intervention in
schools
Barnados Focus
Family Support/
anti-natal classes
citizenship
lessons) /
community skills
courses, etc

Emergency loans
SLDC Handy
person scheme
Grants available –
‘Affordable
Housing Grant’,
‘Empty Homes
Grant’ and
‘Disabled
Facilities’ grants –
Housing
Standards

Page 176

Manna House
provides debt
advice; benefits
support and
guidance; and
distributes free
clothing and meals
three days a week

CAB advice.

Kendal College –
support for
students from low
incomes

Support to set up
social enterprises/
employment and small
businesses.

Age UK: events.
Training and job
skills
CCC basic IT skills

DWP supporting
people into work and
disability grants for
small businesses

Kendal College do
budgeting classes
as part of PSE and
offer emergency
food packs, free
lunches and bus
passes to those in
most need.
Kendal college is
arranging for
mental health
group sessions to
tackle low levels of
wellbeing

DHPs

Right to work
CCC A2B bus passes
for young people
Work & Health
Programme Ingeus UK

CCC coffer free
skills training
through
community
learning team for
groups of 8 or
more
Cumbria
Exchange scheme
https://www.cumbr
iaexchange.co.uk/

Health advice

Flood prevention
warning list

Emergency food
provision.

CSP: community
safety

LIPs Scheme

Holiday lunch
clubs

Police problem
solving approach –
The Hub

MARS (Gateway).
Fire Service – Safe
and Well.
H&WB messages in
schools

Flood resilience
grants – SLDC
and EA

Integrated Care
Communities.

Cumbria Flood
Action plan

Health and
Wellbeing coaches
(HAWCS)

Environment
Agency –
Community
Resilience work

Community
growing projects
Kendal People’s
café
Food banks

CSP: community
safety
Mind offer free
mental health
awareness training
Rural Wheels,
Village Wheels and
Community Wheels
GLL leisure group
offer 50% discount
for those who qualify
on low income
Red Box project –
Cumbria roll out at
Strategic child
poverty meeting

CCC Community
grants
CCC: Waste less
events

Cyber proficiency
courses

